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Blount has a significant share of the
global cutting chain and guide bar market
and our products are used as original
equipment by approximately 90% of the
world’s chainsaw manufacturers.
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corporate information
The Company’s primary business is the Outdoor
Products segment. This segment manufactures and
markets cutting chain, guide bars, sprockets and
accessories for the chainsaw industry, outdoor care
products for the lawn and garden industry, and
concrete-cutting systems for the construction
industry. The segment operates eight manufactur
ing facilities and distributes its products through a
diverse network of distributors, dealers, mass
merchants and original equipment manufacturers.
The segment sells its products under the Oregon®,
Carlton®, ICS®, Windsor® and Tiger® brand names.
The Company also owns and operates Gear
Products, Inc., a manufacturer of rotational
bearings, hydraulic pump drives and winches used
by heavy equipment manufacturers for the utility,
construction, environmental and forestry industries.

Blount International, Inc. is a leading provider of equipment, accessories
and replacement parts to the global forestry, lawncare and construction
industries. Blount manufactures and markets branded products to focused
end markets, serving professional loggers, construction workers and home

Inquiries
Stockholders with questions about
their stock holdings are invited
to call 1-877-498-8865 between
8am and 7pm Eastern Time,
Monday through Friday. Internet
account access is available at
www.computershare.com.

Blount International, Inc.
Common Stock
The common stock is traded on
the New York Stock Exchange
under the ticker symbol “BLT.”
Blount International, Inc. is
incorporated under the laws of
the State of Delaware.

Inquiries for general information
about Blount International, Inc.,
including stock records or address
changes, should be directed to
Richard H. Irving, III, Senior Vice
President, General Counsel and
Secretary, at the Corporate office.
Security analysts, portfolio
managers and others seeking
financial information should
contact Calvin E. Jenness, Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, at the Corporate office.

Trademarks
The following are trademarks
of the Company: Oregon®,
Carlton®, Windsor®, Tiger®, Power
Match®, INTENZ®, Jet-Fit®, Fusion®,
Arborol®, Gator Mulcher®,
Magnum Edger™, Gator Dig™, ICS®,
FORCE4™, RentMAX™, SealPro®
and Speedhook®. Some forms of
Windsor® are used under license
from affiliates of Snap-On, Inc.

Also, please see Blount’s Website
at www.blount.com.

owners through a distribution network consisting of equipment distributors
and dealers, original equipment manufacturers and mass merchants. We

Year End
The Company’s fiscal year ends
December 31.

believe we are a global leader in chainsaw cutting chain, guide bars and
related accessories. The Company sells its products in more than 100
countries around the world with approximately 66% of 2008 sales generated
outside the United States. Blount is headquartered in Portland, Oregon.

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
A Proxy Statement and Notice
of Annual Meeting is expected
to be mailed by April 28, 2009
to stockholders of record as of
March 27, 2009.
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Forward-Looking Statements
Forward-looking statements
in this report, as defined by
the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, are based
upon available information
and upon assumptions that the
Company believes are reasonable;
however, these forward-looking
statements involve certain risks
and uncertainties and may not
be indicative of actual results
that the Company may achieve
in the future.

Financial Highlights
(Dollar amounts in millions except per share data)

Year Ended December 31		

Sales

2008		

2007		

2006		

2005		

2004

$ 597.0

$ 515.5

$ 487.5

$ 478.8

$ 445.3

Operating income

87.5

80.7

80.5

91.6

89.3

Interest expense, net of interest income

25.7

31.7

35.4

36.7

59.0

Income (loss) from continuing operations

38.8

32.1

32.6

88.2

(11.5)

Net income

38.6

42.9

42.5

106.6

6.3

Diluted earnings (loss) per share from
continuing operations

0.81

0.67

0.68

1.86

(0.30)

Diluted earnings per share

0.80

0.89

0.89

2.24

0.16

Capital spending

26.1

18.5

21.7

17.3

19.3

Cash and cash equivalents

58.3

57.6

27.6

12.9

48.6

Working capital

128.0

128.6

117.9

112.2

98.0

Property, plant and equipment, net

119.7

89.7

99.7

101.5

97.9

Total assets

499.7

411.9

430.5

455.2

424.7

Total debt

325.5

297.0

350.9

407.7

494.2

Stockholders’ deficit

(43.5)

(54.1)

(105.3)

(145.2)

(256.2)

Backlog

103.5

69.3

61.3

90.5

84.3

47,614

47,292

47,243

47,004

44,970

Shares outstanding (in thousands)
Operating income as % of sales

14.7%

15.7%

16.5%

19.1%

20.1%

Capital spending as % of sales

4.4%

3.6%

4.4%

3.6%

4.3%

Ratio of total debt to operating income

3.7

3.7

4.4

4.5

5.5

3,600

3,200

3,050

3,150

3,050

Employees

Operating Income

Sales

2005

2006

2007

$87.5

2004

$80.7

2008

$80.5

2007

$89.3

2006

$597.0

$487.5

2005

$515.5

$478.8

$445.3
2004

$91.6

(in millions)

(in millions)

2008
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letter to stockholders

Growing
in a Challenging Environment
2008 was another successful
year for our Company, as we
achieved our sixth consecutive
record for sales from continuing
operations, despite a challenging
economic environment. Solid
organic growth and the acquisition
of Carlton Holdings in May con
tributed to this outstanding perfor
mance. The strategic acquisition of
Carlton, along with
meaningful investments
in new product develop
ment during the past
year, will enhance our
Company’s long-term
growth profile in the years
to come. I am pleased with
the solid improvement in
operating income achieved
in 2008 despite the head
winds created by rising
commodity costs and
foreign currency.
       The challenges will  con
tinue in 2009 and require that
we successfully navigate through
the issues caused by the worldwide
economic downturn. We are com
mitted to long-term growth and
will manage our business accor
dingly. As in past economic down
turns, we will manage our opera
ting costs tightly but still make the
right long-term investments for the
future. We will continue to invest
capital for growth and productiv
ity. In addition, we have initiated
2

infrastructure actions for efficiency
gains and put in place contingency
plans to reduce operating costs.
We undertook the consolidation of
our Tennessee plant into two of our
Portland locations during the first
quarter of 2009 to reduce operating
costs and improve manufacturing
efficiency. I am confident that our
actions, combined with our market
position, will enable Blount to
come through this recession as an
even stronger company.

2008 Highlights
The May acquisition of Carlton
was a significant investment for
Blount and has already provided
production and marketing
benefits. We acquired a modern
manufacturing facility within the
geographic vicinity of our existing
Portland plant that will provide
synergistic operating efficiencies.
The consolidation of duplicate
administrative functions between
the two facilities was completed
in early 2009. The Carlton sales
base is predominately offshore and
the acquisition gives us better
access to key international markets.
I am pleased with the progress we
have made to date with the
integration of Carlton into the
Blount family. Equally pleasing
to me in 2008 was our stepped
up investment in new product
development. Our dedicated team

of individuals has developed
many product concepts that are
expected to yield solid revenue
and profit growth in future years.
Although we have yet to commer
cialize these products, I believe a
few of them are breakthrough in
nature and should build on our
strong market position.
Blount’s sales for 2008 were
an all-time high for continuing
operations. Sales increased in
2008 by 15.8%, with about half
the growth coming from the
Carlton acquisition. The organic
growth reflected strong market
demand for wood-cutting saw
chain for the majority of the year.
Sales growth in international

2008 Sales
By Product Category

Chainsaw components & accessories 76%
Outdoor equipment parts &
accessories

14%

Concrete-cutting saws & components

5%

Gears, winches & bearings

5%

Professional timber cutters know they can rely on
the quality of Oregon® saw chain and guide bars
to provide the performance they require.

James S. Osterman, Blount Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, at the Carlton manufacturing
facility near Portland, Oregon. Blount purchased
Carlton Holdings on May 2, 2008 – a move that
added to our existing saw chain manufacturing
capacity and leverages synergies between the
two companies.
The new 880F4 hydraulic concrete-cutting
chainsaw, built to power FORCE4™ diamond
chain (patent pending), is one of the latest
innovations from ICS®.

A new warehouse and distribution center
under construction at Courcelles in Belgium
will improve service and logistics support to
our customers throughout Europe.

Ratio of Debt to
Operating Income

Total Debt

3.7

2006

2007

2008

$325.5

2005

3.7
2007

4.4

2006

$297.0

$350.9

5.5
2005

4.5

2004

$407.7

$494.2

(in millions)

2008

2004

The creativity and knowledge of our
employees was tapped during a two-day,
innovation-centered event dubbed
“PROTOFEST.” The event was a resounding
success, as numerous prototypes of potential
new products were demonstrated.

Mr. Deguang Pang (left) and Mr. Guojian Wu
(right) unload consumer guide bars from
the paint line at our factory in Fuzhou,
Fujian China. We have continued to invest
in this facility and to increase its low-cost
production capacity.

markets has been strong in recent
years and 2008 was no exception,
with 8.5% comparable growth.
Additionally, selling prices were
increased during the year in
response to rising steel costs and
foreign currency pressures on our
manufacturing costs. Our position
in the replacement market, which
accounted for 76% of our 2008
sales, contributed to our solid topline performance. The recurring
revenue stream of sales to the
replacement market provided some
insulation from economic down
turn as we started to see sales of
new chainsaws by original equip
ment manufacturers decline in the
second half of the year.
Profitability in 2008 improved
from 2007 despite the challenging
cost pressures. Operating income
was $87.5 million in 2008, up 8.4%
from 2007. This improvement in
profit includes the negative effects
of $5.2 million from foreign cur
rency fluctuations and $7.9 million
in higher costs for steel. In 2008,
we generated $61.2 million in
cash flow from operations, a $32.0

million improvement compared
to 2007. We utilized this free cash
flow to increase our capital spend
ing by about 36% from the most
recent three year average level
and to help fund the purchase of
Carlton. Our ratio of total debt to
operating income was unchanged
in 2008 despite the higher invest
ment levels.

2008 Sales
By Region

North America

38%

Europe & Russia

36%

Asia Pacific

16%

Rest of World

10%

2009 Outlook
Currently, we are operating in
an economic environment that
creates significant challenges for
any business. Although our Com
pany has performed reasonably
well in past economic downturns,
we will not be managing by histor
ical standards. We have instituted
actions that are geared to minimize
the effects of further economic
erosion. Our plant consolidation
effort, our newly-implemented
foreign exchange hedging program
and selected organizational actions
should help to improve operating
margins on a go-forward basis.
Additionally, we expect to see a
bigger benefit from the Carlton
acquisition in 2009 now that the
majority of the integration into
Blount is behind us. We will
manage our capital resources
tightly, but continue to invest
capital for productivity and growth
and apply excess cash flow to the
repayment of debt.
Although these are challenging
times, I am still very optimistic
about the long-term health of the
business. We fully expect to
maintain our worldwide market

leadership position in chainsaw
products regardless of the direction
of the economy. Our geographic
diversity, technical expertise and
strong distribution network have
consistently fueled growth, a trend
we expect to continue in the
future. Investment in innovation
that was started in 2008 will
continue in 2009 and begin to
generate incremental revenues in
the second half of the year. We will
fully support our customers with
both innovation and service in
2009 to ensure that we continue to
be a superior supplier.
In summary, 2008 was a good
year from a growth and profit
standpoint. Our business model of
recurring sales in the replacement
markets allowed Blount to post
record sales despite the deterior
ating economic climate. We know
the challenges ahead of us in 2009
and believe we are capable and
well-positioned to succeed once
again. I am confident that Blount
will be an even stronger company
in the future given our plans,
people and brands. Thank you for
your support as we continue to
build value for owners, investors
and employees.

James S. Osterman
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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Outdoor Products

Chainsaw Products
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OUTDOOR PRODUCTS

Segment Sales

2005

2006

2007

$565.6

$486.7

$455.0

2004

$452.3

(in millions)

$422.9

2008

OUTDOOR PRODUCTS

Segment Contribution

2006

2007

$102.6

2005

$95.9

2004

$97.8

(in millions)

$105.5

cutters added to the many other
exclusive features already present.
Another innovative product
launched in 2008 was Arborol®, a
biodegradable bar and chain oil
made from specially processed,
renewable vegetable oils and emul
sifiers. When mixed with water, the
environmentally friendly product
provides outstanding lubricating
and cooling performance com
pared to standard mineral-based
chain oils. Blount’s
product develop
ment team also
has other innova
tive products in
the works.
      Improving ware
house and distribu
tion efficiencies
continued to be a
focus in 2008. After
a major North
American restruc
turing completed in
2007, Blount’s new
and expanded cen
tral distribution
center in Kansas
City, Missouri
began realizing sig
nificant gains. As one example, ontime shipping to servicing dealers
in the U.S. increased by approxi
mately 20%. Similar improvements
are being implemented in 2009 at
the Company’s new European
distribution center.
Looking forward to 2009,
Blount’s focus will be on
continued leadership
through product inno
vation and customer
service, while pursuing
additional growth in
strategic markets worldwide. n

$104.4

As an industry leader in innova
tion and quality, Blount’s Outdoor
Products segment produces saw
chain, guide bars, drive sprockets
and maintenance tools that are
well respected around the world.
Blount offers these products
under the brand names Oregon®,
Carlton®, Windsor® and Tiger®.
Blount’s products serve a wide
range of customers, including
original equipment manufact ur
ers, timber harvesters,
arborists, small woodlot
owners and home
owners in more than
100 countries. Approx
imately two-thirds of
the Company’s products
for chainsaws are sold
outside of the United
States. Over the last
year, Blount increased
its focus on rapidly
growing markets, such
as Russia and Asia.
In 2008, the Company
invested in growth
through the acquisition
of Carlton, a manufac
turer of saw chain based
near Portland, Oregon.
Carlton’s strength in international
markets and manufacturing
expertise complements Blount’s
existing market presence and
strategy to expand sales globally.
Blount’s reputation for product
innovation remains steadfast. The
Company introduced several new
and enhanced models of saw chain
and guide bars over the last year
including Oregon® 20LPX/BPX,
72LGX/LPX and 68LX saw chains.
These new cutting chains offer
advanced grind geometry to
improve performance and blued

2008

Oregon® professional-grade saw chain and
guide bars are recognized worldwide for
their quality, performance and durability.

In 2008, arborists, utility workers and
consumers throughout the U.S. relied
on our products for damage clean up
after weather events from hurricanes
to winter storms.

Shown below at our newly acquired
Carlton facility, Kris Hoffman (foreground)
and Ron Gorski process saw chain
components through the heat-treating
operation to meet or exceed our hardness
standards, providing our customers with
durable and reliable products.

Blount continues to expand automation
within our manufacturing operations,
reducing costs and enhancing quality
and safety. Here, Abdikarim Jeilani
checks the operation of a robotic parts
handler that feeds lawnmower blades
into a straightening device at our Kansas
City, Missouri manufacturing facility.
The robot also optically inspects the
parts to ensure compliance with specific
tolerances and communicates directly
with the straightening machine to adjust
settings, if necessary.

Outdoor Products

Concrete-Cutting
After a decade of double-digit
growth, the Company’s ICS® busi
ness cooled in 2008 due to a diffi
cult global construction economy.
ICS outperformed the industry in
sawing, drilling and cutting equip
ment due to key new products and
a corresponding emphasis on two
important customer groups. This
success included a full product line
built around the proprietary, new
FORCE4™ diamond chain for pro
fessional sawing and drilling con
tractors. FORCE4™ is second genera
tion diamond chain technology
that offers users greater durability
and economic value. Continued
market conversion is a major
component of ICS’s strategy for
future growth.
Additionally, the Company
launched a new RentMAX™
diamond chain priced below $200
retail, which drove more than 50%
growth in the rental channel. We
believe this new ICS rental propo
sition will be a significant growth
driver in the current recession
climate, as contractors continue to
make rent versus buy decisions. The
rental market also serves to grow
both product and brand awareness,
positioning the product line well for
eventual construction market
strengthening. Operating margins
remain outstanding and increased
investment in new product develop
ment will bring future opportuni
ties to leverage this premium brand
and infrastructure. n

8

Professional sawing and drilling con
tractors used ICS® concrete chain saws
to make modifications to the Tacoma
Narrows Bridge in Washington state.

We believe FORCE4™ diamond chain
(patent pending) is the strongest
diamond chain on the market and
another reason ICS® is the world
leader in Diamond Chain Technology.

Outdoor Products

Outdoor Care
Blount’s portfolio of outdoor
care products is well known in
the landscape care business –
both for the high quality and
features offered as well as the
depth of products. With more
than 5,000 lawnmower blades,
string trimmer accessories and
small engine replacement parts,
the Company is a leader in the
industry. Blount manufactures
lawnmower blades as OEM and
replacement parts for use on more
than 70 brands of riding and
walk-behind mowers.
Among the industry leading
products are the Gator Mulcher®
family of lawnmower blades

Our outdoor care products business continues to
expand. We offer lawnmower blades, Gatorline™
trimmer line, edger blades (such as the Magnum
Edger ™ featured here), and a large selection of

and the Magnum Gatorline™
family of string trimmer lines.
Other innovative products intro
duced in 2008 include Gator Dig™,
a patented plant bedding tool, and
the Magnum Edger™, a unique
edging and landscaping blade.
The product category increased
its already strong market share
in North America in 2008 and
continues to expand in markets
around the world. n

other parts and accessories worldwide.

Gear Products
For over fifty years, Gear
Products has been a manufacturer
of high-quality planetary and
gear swing drives, planetary and
worm gear winches, hydraulic
pump drives and large rotational
bearings. Originally serving the
oil and gas industry, Gear
Products has grown to serve addi
tional industries with its primary
product focus centered on the
utility, construction, environ
mental and forestry markets.
Backed by strong engineering
know-how, Gear Products has
developed a reputation for meet
ing the special needs of its cus
tomers – from conceptual design
to production. In 2008, Gear
Products continued to build for

the future with capacity improve
ments made through capital
investments and a continued
focus on lean manufacturing
techniques. Looking forward to
2009, particular emphasis is
being placed on customers servic
ing the wind-energy market. We
plan to leverage our new capacity
for new product introductions
and anticipate generating addi
tional business with existing and
new customers. n

Capable of handling a 350,000 ft-lb. moment
load, these large bearings manufactured at our
Tulsa, Oklahoma facility are used throughout
the utility and construction industries. At the
facility, Donel Pennington prepares a finished
bearing for shipment.
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blount worldwide locations
A Strong and Diverse Distribution Network – Blount distributes its products through a distribution
network that includes more than 9,500 distributors and dealers in more than 100 countries, 30+ chainsaw
original equipment manufacturers in the U.S. and abroad, and mass merchants. The Company has very long
and well-established relationships with its distribution partners, which offers a major competitive advantage
for purchase decisions.
CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

MANUFACTURING LOCATIONS

SALES AND DISTRIBUTION LOCATIONS

Blount International, Inc
P.O. Box 22127 (97269-2127)
4909 SE International Way
Portland, OR 97222 U.S.A.
Ph: 503-653-8881
Fx: 503-653-4201
www.blount.com

l

Curitiba, Parana Brazil

n

Fuzhou, Fujian China

l

Fuzhou, Fujian China

n

Guelph, Ontario Canada

l

Guelph, Ontario Canada

n

Kansas City, Missouri U.S.A.

l

Kansas City, Missouri U.S.A.

n

Moscow, Russia

l

Milan, Tennessee U.S.A.*

n

Nishi-ku, Japan

l

Portland, Oregon U.S.A. (3)

n

l

Tulsa, Oklahoma U.S.A.

Nivelles and Mont-Saint-Guibert,
Belgium

n

Tewkesbury, United Kingdom

n

Tübingen, Germany

n

Varberg, Sweden

n

Vaulx-en-Velin, France

*The Company has announced its intention to close
this facility during 2009.
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549
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[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. [X] Yes [ ] No
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein,
and will not be contained, to the best of the Registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K, or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Blount International, Inc. (“Blount” or the “Company”) is
an international industrial company with one business segment: Outdoor Products. We also wholly-own and operate a
manufacturer of gear-related products. Our products are
sold in over 100 countries and approximately 66% of our
2008 sales were outside of the United States of America
(“U.S.”). Our Company is headquartered in Portland,
Oregon. We have manufacturing operations in the U.S.,
Canada, Brazil and the People’s Republic of China
(“China”). Additionally, we operate marketing, sales and
distribution centers in other parts of the world.
Oregon®, Carlton®, Windsor®, Tiger®, Power-Match®,
INTENZ®, Jet-Fit®, Fusion®, Gator Mulcher®, Magnum
Edger ™, ICS®, FORCE4™, SealPro® and SpeedHook® are
registered or pending trademarks of Blount and its subsidiaries. Some forms of Windsor® are used under license
from affiliates of Snap-On, Inc.
During 2006, we sold our lawnmower segment. During
2007, we sold our Forestry Division, which constituted the
majority of our other remaining business segment at that
time. During 2008, we purchased Carlton Holdings, Inc.
and its subsidiaries (“Carlton”), a manufacturer of cutting
chain for chainsaws located near Portland, Oregon.
Outdoor Products Segment
Overview. Our Outdoor Products segment accounted for
95% of our sales from continuing operations in 2008. This
segment manufactures and markets cutting chain, guide
bars, sprockets and accessories for chainsaw use, concretecutting equipment and accessories and lawnmower blades.
This segment also markets branded parts and accessories
for the lawn and garden equipment market. The segment’s
products are sold to original equipment manufacturers
(“OEMs”) for use on new chainsaws and yard care equipment, and to the retail replacement market through distributors, dealers and mass merchants. Chainsaw cutting
chain, guide bars and other items are currently sold to most
of the chainsaw OEMs in the world, and many of these
products are also privately branded for our OEM customers.
During 2008, approximately 24% of the segment’s sales
were to OEMs, with the remainder sold into the replacement market. Approximately 69% of the segment’s sales
were outside of the U.S. in 2008.
The segment is headquartered in Portland, Oregon.
Marketing personnel are located throughout the U.S. and in
a number of foreign countries. Segment products are manufactured in Portland, Oregon; Milwaukie, Oregon; Milan,
Tennessee; Kansas City, Missouri; Guelph, Ontario, Canada;
Curitiba, Parana, Brazil; and in Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
China. A portion of our accessories and spare parts, as well
as our concrete-cutting saws, are sourced from vendors in
various locations around the world. In January 2009, we

announced our intent to close our manufacturing facility in
Milan, Tennessee during the second quarter of 2009.
Chainsaw Cutting Chain, Bars, Sprockets and Accessories.

These products are sold under the Oregon, Carlton,
Windsor, and Tiger brands, as well as private labels for
OEM customers. Product lines include a broad range of
cutting chain, chainsaw guide bars, cutting chain drive
sprockets and maintenance tools used primarily on
portable gasoline and electric chainsaws and mechanical
timber harvesting equipment.
Outdoor Care Products. These products are sold under the
Oregon brand name, as well as private labels for OEM
customers. The product line includes various cutting attachments, spare parts and accessories to service the lawn
and garden industry. These lawn and garden equipment
parts include lawnmower blades to fit a variety of
machines and cutting conditions, as well as replacement
parts that meet product specifications of OEMs.
ICS Products. The ICS product line includes specialized
concrete-cutting equipment for construction markets. The
principal product is a proprietary diamond-segmented
chain, which is used on gasoline and hydraulic powered
saws and equipment. ICS also markets and distributes
branded gasoline and hydraulic powered concrete-cutting
chainsaws and circular saws to its customers. The power
heads for these saws are manufactured by a third party.
Industry Overview. We believe we are the world leader in
the production of cutting chain. Oregon, Carlton, Windsor
and Tiger branded cutting chain and related products are
used by professional loggers, farmers, arborists and homeowners. Additionally, the Oregon line of lawnmower-related
parts and accessories are used by commercial landscape
companies and homeowners. Our ICS products are used by
contractors, concrete-cutting specialists and tool rental
companies. Due to the high level of technical expertise and
capital investment required to manufacture cutting chain
and guide bars, we believe that we are able to produce
durable, high quality cutting chain and guide bars more
efficiently than most of our competitors. We also work with
our OEM customers to improve the design and specifications of cutting chain and guide bars used as original
equipment on their chainsaws.
Weather and natural disasters can influence our sales
cycle. For example, severe weather patterns and events,
such as hurricanes, tornadoes and storms, generally result
in greater chainsaw use and, therefore, stronger sales of
cutting chain and guide bars. Seasonal rainfall plays a role
in demand for our lawnmower blades and yard care-related
products. Above-average rainfall drives greater demand for
products in this category, while drought conditions tend to
reduce demand for these products.
The Outdoor Products segment’s principal raw material,
cold-rolled strip steel, is purchased from multiple
BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

3

intermediate steel processors and can be obtained from other
sources. Changes in the price of steel can have a significant
effect on the manufactured cost of our products and on the
gross margin we earn from the sale of these products.
The segment’s profitability is also affected by changes in
currency exchange rates, changes in economic and political conditions in the various markets in which we operate
and changes in the regulatory environment in various
jurisdictions.
The segment’s competitors include Stihl, Tri-Link,
Rotary, Stens and most major outdoor power equipment
manufacturers, such as Briggs & Stratton, MTD and John
Deere. In addition, new and existing competitors are
expanding capacity or contracting with suppliers in China
and other low cost manufacturing locations. We also supply products or components to some of our competitors.
Gear Components
Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Gear Products, Inc.
(“Gear Products”), manufactures rotation bearings, worm
gear reducers, hydraulic pump drives, swing drives and
winches. These products represented 5% of our consolidated sales in 2008, and are used by heavy equipment
OEMs for the construction, utility, environmental and
forestry industries. We also sell these products in the
replacement parts market in addition to our sales to OEMs.
For 2008, approximately 90% of Gear Products’ sales were
to OEMs and approximately 96% of sales were made to
customers within the U.S.
Discontinued Forestry Equipment Division
On November 5, 2007, we sold our Forestry Division,
which constituted the majority of our Industrial and Power
Equipment segment, to Caterpillar Forest Products Inc., a
subsidiary of Caterpillar Inc. (“Caterpillar”), for gross proceeds of $79.1 million. We recognized a pretax gain of
$26.0 million net of related transaction expenses on the sale
in 2007. This division accounted for 26% of our sales in
2006 and 21% of our sales in the first nine months of 2007.
The Forestry Division is reported as discontinued operations
for all periods presented. This division was headquartered in
Zebulon, North Carolina and manufactured and marketed
timber harvesting and handling equipment and industrial
tractors and loaders. The division had manufacturing facilities in Owatonna, Minnesota; Prentice, Wisconsin; and
Söderhamn, Sweden. We retained certain liabilities related
to the business, as well as a dormant manufacturing facility
located in Menominee, Michigan. In December 2007, we
sold the land and building in Menominee, Michigan for net
cash proceeds of $0.5 million.
Discontinued Lawnmower Segment
On July 27, 2006, we sold the business of our whollyowned subsidiary Dixon Industries, Inc. (“Dixon”), which
constituted our entire Lawnmower segment, to Husqvarna
4
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Professional Outdoor Products Inc. (“Husqvarna
Professional Outdoor Products”) for gross proceeds of
$33.1 million. We recognized a pretax gain of $17.4 million
net of related transaction expenses on the sale in 2006.
This segment accounted for 7% of our sales in the first
six months of 2006. The Lawnmower segment is reported
as discontinued operations for all periods presented. Dixon
was located in Coffeyville, Kansas, and manufactured
zero-turn radius riding lawnmowers and related attachments. We retained certain liabilities related to the business, as well as the land and buildings in Coffeyville,
Kansas, following the sale. In September 2007, we sold the
land and buildings in Coffeyville, Kansas for net cash
proceeds of $1.5 million.
Capacity Utilization
Based on a five-day, three-shift work week, capacity
utilization for the year ended December 31, 2008 was as
follows:
% of Capacity

Outdoor Products segment
Gear components

98%
83%

Capacity for the Outdoor Products segment has been
expanded in recent years with the purchase of Carlton in
2008 and the establishment of our manufacturing plant in
Fuzhou, Fujian Province, China in 2005. In addition,
investments in new machinery and equipment for the manufacturing plants in Portland, Oregon; Kansas City, Missouri;
Guelph, Ontario Canada; and Curitiba, Parana, Brazil have
increased manufacturing capacity. In January 2009, we
announced our intention to close our manufacturing plant in
Milan, Tennessee during the second quarter of 2009.
Products currently manufactured in that facility will be produced in our other manufacturing facilities after the closure.
For 2008, approximately 5% of the production output of our
Outdoor Products segment was manufactured in the Milan,
Tennessee plant. To meet the fluctuation in demand for its
products, this segment operates on an expanded work week
basis from time to time at certain locations.
Backlog
The backlog for our continuing operations was as
follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

2008

December 31,
2007

2006

Outdoor Products segment $ 98,882
Gear components
4,647

$ 63,289
6,029

$ 54,785
6,524

Total backlog

$ 69,318

$ 61,309

$ 103,529

The backlog as of December 31, 2008 includes
$31.2 million attributable to Carlton. The total backlog as
of December 31, 2008 is expected to be completed and
shipped within twelve months.

Employees
At December 31, 2008, we employed approximately
3,600 individuals. None of our domestic employees belong
to a union. The number of foreign employees who belong
to unions is not significant. We believe our relations with
our employees are satisfactory, and we have not experienced any significant labor-related work stoppages in the
last three years with the exception of a one week period in
June, 2007 at our Curitiba, Parana, Brazil location.
Environmental Matters
The Company’s operations are subject to comprehensive
U.S. and foreign laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment, including those governing discharges of pollutants into the air, ground and water, the
management and disposal of hazardous substances and the
cleanup of contaminated sites. Permits and environmental
controls are required for certain of those operations,
including those required to prevent or reduce air and water
pollution, and our permits are subject to modification,
renewal and revocation by issuing authorities.
On an ongoing basis, we incur capital and operating
costs to comply with environmental laws and regulations.
In 2008, we spent approximately $2.6 million for environmental compliance, including approximately $1.1 million
in capital expenditures. We expect to spend approximately
$1.4 million to $1.6 million per year in capital and
operating costs in the next three years for environmental
compliance and anticipate continued spending at a similar
level in subsequent years. The actual cost to comply with
environmental laws and regulations may be greater than
these estimated amounts.
Some of our current and former manufacturing facilities
are located on properties with a long history of industrial
use, including the use of hazardous substances. For certain
of our former facilities, we retained responsibility for past
environmental matters under the terms of the agreements
by which we sold the properties to third party purchasers.
We have identified soil and groundwater contamination
from these historical activities at certain of our current and
former facilities, which we are currently investigating,
monitoring or remediating. Management believes that
costs incurred to investigate, monitor and remediate known
contamination at these sites will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flow. We cannot be sure, however, that
we have identified all existing contamination on our current and former properties or that our operations will not
cause contamination in the future. As a result, we could
incur material future costs to clean up contamination.
From time to time we may be identified as a potentially
responsible party under the U.S. Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
(commonly known as the Superfund law) or similar state

statutes with respect to sites at which we may have disposed of wastes. The U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (or an equivalent state agency) can either (a) allow
such parties to conduct and pay for a remedial investigation and feasibility study and remedial action or (b) conduct the remedial investigation and action on its own and
then seek reimbursement from the parties. Each party can
be held liable for all of the costs, but the parties can then
bring contribution actions against each other or potentially
responsible third parties. As a result, we may be required to
expend amounts on such remedial investigations and
actions, which amounts cannot be determined at the
present time, but which may ultimately prove to be
material to the consolidated financial statements.
For additional information regarding certain environmental matters, see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
Financial Information about Industry Segments and Foreign
and Domestic Operations
For financial information about industry segments and
foreign and domestic operations, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Item 7 and Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Seasonality
The Company’s operations are somewhat seasonal in nature. Year-to-year and quarter-to-quarter operating results
are impacted by economic and business trends within the
respective industries in which we compete, as well as seasonal weather patterns. See further discussion within the
business descriptions above.
Available Information
Our website address is www.blount.com. You may obtain free electronic copies of our annual reports on Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, all amendments to those reports and other SEC
filings by accessing the Investor Relations section of the
Company’s website under the heading “SEC Filings”.
These reports are available on our Investor Relations website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file them with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”).
Once filed with the SEC, such documents may be read
and/or copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450
Fifth Street, N.W. Washington, D.C. 20549. Information regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room may
be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. In
addition, the SEC maintains an internet site at
www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information
statements, and other information regarding issuers,
including Blount, who file electronically with the SEC.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Substantial Leverage—Due to our substantial leverage, we may
have difficulty operating our business and satisfying our debt
obligations.

As of December 31, 2008, we have $543.2 million of total
liabilities, $325.5 million of total debt and a stockholders’
deficit of $43.5 million. While we have reduced our total
debt from $407.7 million at the beginning of 2006, our debt
remains significant. This substantial leverage may have
important consequences for us, including the following:
 Our ability to obtain additional or replacement financing
for working capital, capital expenditures or other purposes may be impaired, or such financing may not be
available on terms favorable to us, particularly in light of
the current global market conditions for credit. Our revolving credit facility matures on August 9, 2009, our
term loan matures on August 9, 2010 and our 87⁄8%
senior subordinated notes are due on August 1, 2012.
 A significant portion of our cash flow from operations is
dedicated to the payment of interest expense, which reduces the funds that would otherwise be available to
fund operations and future business opportunities.
 A substantial decrease in net operating income and cash
flows or an increase in expenses may make it difficult
for us to meet our debt service requirements or force us
to modify our operations.
 Our substantial leverage may make us more vulnerable
to economic downturns and competitive pressures.
The agreements governing our senior credit facilities and
the indenture for our 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes contain restrictions that affect our operations, including our
and certain of our subsidiaries’ ability to incur indebtedness or make acquisitions or capital expenditures. However, these restrictions do not fully prohibit us or our
subsidiaries from incurring additional indebtedness or
making certain types of acquisitions. In addition, we have
available borrowing capacity under the revolving portion
of our existing senior credit facilities of $115.2 million as
of December 31, 2008, although the revolving credit facility matures on August 9, 2009. If we or any of our subsidiaries incur additional indebtedness, the risks outlined
above could worsen.
Our ability to make payments on our indebtedness and to
fund planned capital expenditures and research and product development efforts will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future. Our ability to generate cash, to a
certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial,
competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that
are beyond our control.
Our historical financial results have been, and we anticipate that our future financial results will be, subject to
fluctuations. Our business may not be able to generate
6
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sufficient cash flow from our operations or future borrowings may not be available to us in an amount sufficient to
enable us to service our indebtedness or to fund our other
liquidity needs. An inability to pay our debts would require
us to pursue one or more alternative strategies, such as
selling assets, refinancing or restructuring our indebtedness or selling equity capital. However, alternative
strategies may not be feasible at the time or may not prove
adequate, which could cause us to default on our
obligations and would impair our liquidity. Also, some
alternative strategies would require the prior consent of our
secured lenders, which we may not be able to obtain. See
also “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.”
Restrictive Covenants—The terms of our indebtedness contain a
number of restrictive covenants, the breach of which could result in
acceleration of payment of our senior credit facilities and our 87⁄8%
senior subordinated notes.

The terms of our indebtedness contain a number of restrictive covenants, the breach of which could result in acceleration of our obligations to repay amounts owed under
our senior credit facilities and our 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes. An acceleration of our repayment obligations
under our senior credit facilities could result in a payment
or distribution of substantially all of our assets to our secured lenders, which would materially impair our ability to
operate our business as a going concern. The indenture and
our senior credit facilities, among other things, restrict
and/or limit our and certain of our subsidiaries’ ability to:
 borrow money and issue preferred stock;
 guarantee indebtedness of others;
 pay dividends on our stock;
 purchase our stock or the stock of our “restricted
subsidiaries”, a defined term;
 make certain types of investments;
 use assets as security in other transactions;
 sell certain assets or merge with or into other companies;
 enter into sale and leaseback transactions;
 enter into certain types of transactions with affiliates;
 enter into new businesses; and
 make certain payments in respect of subordinated
indebtedness.
The senior credit facilities also restrict our ability to prepay principal in respect of the 87⁄8% senior subordinated
notes and restrict our ability to engage in any business or
operations other than those that are incidental to our ownership of the capital stock of Blount, Inc., our whollyowned operating subsidiary. In addition, the senior credit
facilities require us to maintain certain financial ratios and
satisfy certain financial condition tests, which may require
that we take actions to reduce debt or to act in a manner
contrary to our business objectives. Our ability to meet

those financial ratios and tests could be affected by events
beyond our control, and there can be no assurance that we
will meet those ratios and tests. A breach of any of these
covenants could, if uncured, constitute an event of default
or a default under the indenture for the notes or the senior
credit facilities. Upon the occurrence of an event of default
under the senior credit facilities, the lenders could elect to
declare all amounts outstanding under the senior credit facilities, together with any accrued interest and commitment
fees, to be immediately due and payable. If we and certain
of our subsidiaries were unable to repay those amounts, the
lenders under the senior credit facilities could enforce the
guarantees from Blount, Inc. and the guarantors and proceed against the collateral securing the senior credit facilities. The assets of Blount, Inc. and the applicable
guarantors could be insufficient to repay in full that indebtedness and our other indebtedness.
Assets Pledged as Security on Credit Facilities—The majority of
our assets and the capital stock of Blount, Inc. are pledged to
secure obligations under our senior credit facilities.

The Company and all of its domestic subsidiaries other
than Blount, Inc. guarantee Blount, Inc.’s obligations under
the senior credit facilities. The obligations under the senior
credit facilities are collateralized by a first priority security
interest in substantially all of the assets of Blount, Inc. and
its domestic subsidiaries, as well as a pledge of all of
Blount, Inc.’s capital stock held by Blount International,
Inc. and all of the stock of domestic subsidiaries held by
Blount, Inc. Blount, Inc. has also pledged 65% of the stock
of its non-domestic subsidiaries as additional collateral.
Further, our senior credit facilities provide that payments
on the 87⁄8% notes and the guarantees thereof will be
blocked in the event of a default under the senior credit facilities. In addition, upon any distribution to Blount, Inc.’s
creditors or the creditors of the guarantors in a bankruptcy,
liquidation, receivership, administration for the benefit of
creditors or reorganization or similar proceeding relating
to the property that constitutes security for the senior credit
facilities, the lenders under the senior credit facilities will
be entitled to be paid in full in cash before any payment
may be made with respect to such notes or the guarantees.
While Blount International, Inc. and all of Blount, Inc.’s
existing domestic subsidiaries guarantee the 87⁄8% senior
subordinated notes, none of Blount, Inc.’s existing foreign
subsidiaries guarantee these notes. We will not permit any
of our non-guarantor restricted subsidiaries to guarantee or
pledge any assets to secure the payment of our senior
credit facilities, unless that subsidiary is a guarantor of
those notes or that subsidiary becomes a guarantor. Any
existing or future non-guarantor subsidiary of Blount International, Inc. that we properly designate as an unrestricted
subsidiary or a receivables subsidiary will not guarantee
those notes.

Competition—Competition may result in decreased sales,
operating income and cash flow.

The markets in which we operate are competitive. We
believe that design features, product quality, customer
service and price are the principal factors considered by
our customers. Some of our competitors may have greater
financial resources, lower costs, superior technology or
more favorable operating conditions than we do. For example, our competitors are expanding capacity or contracting
with suppliers located in China and other low cost manufacturing locations as a means to lower costs. Although we
have also established a manufacturing facility in China,
international competition from emerging economies may
nevertheless be formidable and negatively affect our business. We may not be able to compete successfully with our
existing or any new competitors, and the competitive pressures we face may result in decreased sales, operating
income and cash flows. Competitors could also obtain
knowledge of our proprietary manufacturing techniques
and processes and reduce our competitive advantage by
copying such techniques and processes.
Key Customers—Loss of one or more key customers would
substantially decrease our sales.

In 2008, $84.4 million (14.1%) of our sales were to one
customer (Husqvarna AB) and our top five customers accounted for $138.2 million (23.2%) of our sales. Aside
from our top customer, no other customer individually accounted for more than 3.2% of our sales. While we expect
these business relationships to continue, the loss of any of
these customers, or a substantial portion of their business,
would most likely significantly decrease our sales, operating income and cash flows.
Key Suppliers and Raw Materials Costs—The loss of a few key
suppliers or increases in raw materials costs could substantially
decrease our sales or increase our costs.

We purchase important materials and parts from a limited
number of suppliers that meet our quality criteria. We generally do not operate under long-term written supply contracts
with our suppliers. Although alternative sources of supply
are available, the sudden elimination of certain suppliers
could result in manufacturing delays, an increase in costs, a
reduction in product quality and a possible loss of sales in
the near term. In 2008, we purchased approximately
$14.3 million of raw materials from our largest supplier.
Some of these raw materials, in particular cold-rolled
strip steel, are subject to price volatility over periods of
time. We have not hedged against the price volatility of any
raw materials. It has been our experience that raw material
price increases are sometimes difficult to recover from our
customers in the short term through increased pricing. For
example, we estimate that a 10% change in the price of
steel would have affected 2008 income from continuing
operations before taxes by $8.2 million.
BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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Key Employees—The loss of key employees could adversely affect
our manufacturing efficiency.

Many of our manufacturing processes require a high
level of expertise. For example, we build our own complex
dies for use in cutting and shaping steel into components
for our products. The design and manufacture of such dies
are highly dependent on the expertise of key employees.
We have also developed numerous proprietary manufacturing techniques that rely on the expertise of key employees.
Our manufacturing efficiency and cost could be adversely
affected if we are unable to retain these key employees or
continue to train them or their replacements.
Foreign Sales and Operations—We have substantial foreign sales
and operations, which could be adversely affected as a result of
changes in local economic or political conditions, fluctuations in
currency exchange rates, unexpected changes in regulatory
environments or potentially adverse tax consequences.

In 2008, approximately 66% of our sales by country of
destination occurred outside of the U.S. International sales
are subject to inherent risks, including changes in local
economic or political conditions, the imposition of currency exchange restrictions, unexpected changes in regulatory environments and potentially adverse tax
consequences. Under some circumstances, these factors
could result in significant declines in international sales.
Some of our sales and expenses are denominated in local
currencies that can be affected by fluctuations in currency
exchange rates in relation to the U.S. Dollar. Historically,
our principal exposures have been related to local currency
manufacturing costs and expenses in Canada and Brazil,
and local currency sales and expenses in Europe. From
time to time, we manage some of our exposure to currency
exchange rate fluctuations through derivative products.
However, such derivative products merely reduce the shortterm volatility of currency fluctuations, and do not eliminate their effects over the long-term. Any change in the
exchange rates of currencies in jurisdictions into which we
sell products or incur expenses could result in a significant
decrease in reported sales and operating income. For example, we estimate that a 10% stronger Canadian Dollar in
relation to the U.S. Dollar would have reduced our operating income by $5.8 million and a 10% stronger Brazilian
Real in relation to the U.S. Dollar would have reduced our
operating income by $2.6 million in 2008. We estimate that
a 10% weaker Euro in relation to the U.S. Dollar would
have reduced our sales by $6.1 million and operating income by $2.2 million in 2008. We estimate that the yearover-year movement of foreign exchange rates reduced our
operating income by $5.2 million in 2008.
Also, approximately 61% of our foreign sales are denominated in U.S. Dollars. We may see a decline in revenues during periods of a strengthening U.S. Dollar, which
can make our prices less competitive in international
8
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markets. Furthermore, if the U.S. Dollar strengthens
against foreign currencies, as it did during the latter half of
2008, it becomes more costly for foreign customers to pay
their U.S. Dollar balances owed. They may have difficulty
in repaying these amounts, and in turn, our bad debts
expense may increase.
In addition, we own substantial manufacturing facilities
outside the U.S. As of December 31, 2008, 639,730 square
feet, or 44% of the total square feet of our owned facilities,
were located outside of the U.S. and 32% of our leased
square footage is located outside the U.S. This foreignbased property, plant and equipment is subject to inherent
risks for the reasons cited above. Loss of these facilities or
restrictions on our ability to use them would have an adverse effect on our manufacturing capabilities, and would
result in reduced sales, operating income and cash flows.
Weather—Sales of many of our products are affected by weather
patterns and the occurrence of natural disasters.

Sales of many of our products, such as yard care parts
and accessories, including lawnmower blades, are influenced by weather patterns that are clearly outside our control. For example, drought conditions tend to reduce the
demand for yard care products. Natural disasters such as
hurricanes, typhoons, and ice and wind storms that knock
down trees can stimulate demand for our chainsaw-related
products. Conversely, a relative lack of severe weather and
natural disasters can result in reduced demand for these
same products.
General Economic Factors—We are subject to general economic
factors that are largely out of our control, any of which could,
among other things, result in a decrease in sales and net income
and an increase in our interest or other expenses.

Our business is subject to a number of general economic
factors, many of which are largely out of our control, that
may, among other effects, result in a decrease in sales and
net income and an increase in our interest or other expenses. These include recessionary economic cycles and
downturns in customers’ business cycles, as well as downturns in the principal regional economies where our operations are located. Economic conditions may adversely
affect our customers’ business levels and the amount of
products that they need. Furthermore, customers encountering adverse economic conditions may have difficulty in
paying for our products and actual bad debts may exceed
our allowances. Current world-wide economic conditions
have contributed to a slowdown in orders for our products
and may adversely affect our business results. Current
world-wide economic conditions may also adversely affect
our suppliers and they may not be able to provide us with
the goods and services we need on a timely basis, which
could adversely affect our ability to manufacture our products. Our senior credit facility borrowings are at variable
interest rates. Increases in interest rates could increase our

interest expense payable under the senior credit facilities to
levels in excess of what we currently expect. We estimate a
one hundred basis point higher average level of interest
rates on our variable rate debt would have increased our interest expense in 2008 by $1.5 million. In addition, the
global reduction in market values of equity and debt securities has adversely affected the funding status of our defined benefit post-retirement plans. The expense and future
funding requirements for these plans may increase in the
near term as a result of the reduced values of the plan assets. Finally, terrorist activities, anti-terrorist efforts, war or
other armed conflicts involving the U.S. or its interests
abroad may result in a downturn in the U.S. and global
economies and exacerbate the risks to our business
described in this paragraph.
Litigation—We may have litigation liabilities that could result in
significant costs to us.

Our historical and current business operations, including
discontinued operations, have resulted in a number of litigation matters, including litigation involving personal injury or death, as a result of alleged design or manufacturing
defects of our products. Certain of these liabilities relating
to certain of our discontinued operations were retained by
us under terms of the relevant divestiture agreements. Some
of these product liability suits seek significant or unspecified damages for serious personal injuries for which there
are retentions or deductible amounts under our insurance
policies. In the future, we may face additional lawsuits, and
it is difficult to predict the amount and type of litigation
that we may face. Litigation, insurance and other related
costs could result in future liabilities that are significant and
that could significantly reduce our cash flows and cash
balances. See “Business—Legal Proceedings.”
Environmental Matters—We face potential exposure to environmental liabilities and costs.

We are subject to various U.S. and foreign environmental
laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment, including those governing discharges of pollutants into the air and water, the management and disposal
of hazardous substances and the cleanup of contaminated
sites. Violations of, or liabilities incurred under, these laws
and regulations could result in an assessment of significant
costs to us, including civil or criminal penalties, claims by
third parties for personal injury or property damage, requirements to investigate and remediate contamination and
the imposition of natural resource damages. Furthermore,
under certain environmental laws, current and former owners and operators of contaminated property or parties who
sent waste to the contaminated site can be held liable for
cleanup, regardless of fault or the lawfulness of the disposal activity at the time it was performed. This potential
exposure to environmental liabilities and costs can apply to

both our current and former operating facilities, including
those related to our discontinued operations.
Future events, such as the discovery of additional contamination or other information concerning past releases of
hazardous substances at ours or others’ sites, changes in existing environmental laws or their interpretation and more
rigorous enforcement by regulatory authorities may require
additional expenditures by us to modify operations, install
pollution control equipment, clean contaminated sites or
curtail our operations. These expenditures could significantly reduce our net income and cash flows. See
“Business—Environmental Matters” and “Business—Legal
Proceedings.”
Dividends—We may not pay dividends on our common stock in
the future.

We have not paid dividends on our common stock since
1999. We intend to retain future earnings for debt service
and for funding growth; therefore, we do not expect to pay
any dividends in the near term. In addition, our senior
credit facilities and the terms of our 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes restrict our ability to pay dividends. See “Item 5,
Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.”
Common Stock Sales—Future sales of our common stock in the
public market could lower our stock price.

Ownership and control of our common stock is concentrated in a relatively small number of institutional investors. As of December 31, 2008, approximately 65% of
our outstanding common stock was owned or controlled by
our five largest stockholders. Furthermore, our former majority owner, Lehman Brothers Merchant Banking
Partners II, L.P. and its affiliates (“Lehman Brothers”),
which controls or manages equity investment funds that
currently own 8.9 million shares of our common stock, is
currently operating under Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection. Lehman Brothers may sell or lose control of the funds
that hold these shares, which may result in the sale of a
substantial number of the shares those funds own or control in a secondary stock offering or distribution of some or
all of the shares to investors in one or more of the investment funds they manage. We may sell additional shares of
common stock in subsequent public offerings, or other
stockholders with significant holdings of our common
stock may also sell large amounts of shares they own in a
secondary or open market stock offering. We may also issue additional shares of common stock to finance future
transactions. We cannot predict the size of future issuances
of our common stock or the effect, if any, that future issuances and sales of shares of our common stock will have
on the market price of our common stock. Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock (including shares
issued in connection with an acquisition or shares sold by
existing stockholders), or the perception that such sales
BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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could occur, may adversely affect the prevailing market
price of our common stock.
Common Stock Price —The price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly, and stockholders could lose all or part of their
investment.

Volatility in the market price of our common stock may
prevent stockholders from being able to sell their shares at
or above the price paid for the shares. The market price of
our common stock could fluctuate significantly for various
reasons that include:
 our quarterly or annual earnings or those of other
companies in our industries;
 the public’s reaction to events and results contained in
our press releases, our other public announcements and
our filings with the SEC;
 changes in earnings estimates or recommendations by
research analysts who track our common stock or the
stock of other comparable companies;
 changes in general conditions in the U.S. and global
economies, financial markets or forestry industry,
including those resulting from war, incidents of terrorism or responses to such events;
 sales of common stock by our largest stockholders,
directors and executive officers; and
 the other factors described in these “Risk Factors.”
In addition, in recent years, the stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. This volatility has had a significant impact on the market price of
securities issued by many companies, including companies
in our industries. The changes in prices frequently appear
to occur without regard to the operating performance of
these companies. For example, over the two preceding calendar years, our highest closing stock price has exceeded
our lowest closing stock price by 104% in 2008 and by
33% in 2007. The price of our common stock could fluctuate based upon factors that have little or nothing to do with
our company, and these fluctuations could materially
reduce our stock price.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters occupy executive offices at
4909 SE International Way, Portland, Oregon 97222-4679.
The other principal properties of the Company and its subsidiaries are as follows:
Cutting chain, guidebar and accessories manufacturing
plants are located in Portland, Oregon; Milwaukie, Oregon;
Milan, Tennessee; Guelph, Ontario, Canada; Curitiba,
Parana, Brazil; and Fuzhou, Fujian Province, China. Lawnmower blade manufacturing facilities are located in Kansas
City, Missouri. Sales offices and distribution centers are
located in Kansas City, Missouri; Milwaukie, Oregon;
10
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Europe, Japan, Australia and Russia. Rotation bearings,
worm gear reducers, hydraulic pump drives, swing drives
and winches are manufactured in Tulsa, Oklahoma.
All of these facilities are in relatively good condition, are
currently in normal operation and are generally suitable
and adequate for the business activity conducted therein.
The approximate square footage of facilities located at our
principal properties as of December 31, 2008 is as follows:
Area in Square Feet
Owned
Leased

Outdoor Products segment
Corporate and other
Total

1,358,211
103,500

244,994
–

1,461,711

244,994

We have entered into new agreements to lease office and
warehouse space in Belgium for our European headquarters and distribution center. We intend to move into these
new leased facilities and to sell our existing facilities in
Belgium during 2009. This change in location will have
the effect of reducing the square feet of owned facilities in
the Outdoor Products segment shown in the preceding
table by about 82,000 square feet, with an increase in the
corresponding leased facilities of about 134,500 square
feet. In January 2009, we announced our intent to close our
manufacturing facility in Milan, Tennessee and move production of the products manufactured there to our other
facilities. The facility in Milan, Tennessee accounts for
68,000 of the square feet of owned space above in the
Outdoor Products segment.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding legal proceedings see Note 13
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY
HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stockholders
during the quarter ended December 31, 2008.

PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (ticker “BLT”). The following table presents
the quarterly high and low closing prices for the Company’s common stock for the last two years. Cash dividends have not
been declared for the Company’s common stock since 1999. The Company’s senior credit facility and 87⁄8% senior subordinated note agreements limit our ability to pay dividends. See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” for further discussion. The Company had approximately 9,200 stockholders of record as
of December 31, 2008.
Common Stock
High
Low

Year Ended December 31, 2008:
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter
Year Ended December 31, 2007:
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

$ 13.04
14.13
13.05
10.65

$ 10.83
11.61
10.18
6.93

$ 13.50
14.30
14.00
13.19

$ 11.36
12.58
11.36
10.76

Our outstanding shares of common stock do not include 382,380 shares held as treasury stock, which we have accounted
for as constructively retired in the consolidated financial statements.

Period

June 28, 2005

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased

Average
Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans
or Programs

382,380

$ 16.05

382,380

Maximum
Number of Shares
That May Yet Be
Purchased Under
Existing Plans or
Programs

0
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
(In thousands except per share data)

Statement of Income Data:
Sales
Operating income
Interest expense, net of interest income
Income (loss) from continuing operations before taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Net income
Earnings per share:
Basic income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Shares used in earnings per share computations:
Basic
Diluted

(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Working capital
Property, plant and equipment, net
Total assets
Long-term debt
Total debt
Stockholders’ deficit

2008

Year Ended December 31,
2007
2006

(1)
$ 597,035 $ 515,535
87,480
80,700
25,705
31,706
63,588
48,173
38,843
32,143
(244)
10,714
38,599
42,857

2005

2004

$ 487,494
80,460
35,404
46,391
32,645
9,901
42,546

(2)
$ 478,829
91,628
36,707
53,958
88,214
18,401
106,615

(3)
$ 445,340
89,265
59,019
(13,399)
(11,533)
17,802
6,269

0.82
(0.01)

0.68
0.23

0.69
0.21

1.91
0.40

(0.32)
0.49

0.81

0.91

0.90

2.31

0.17

0.81
(0.01)

0.67
0.22

0.68
0.21

1.86
0.38

(0.30)
0.46

0.80

0.89

0.89

2.24

0.16

47,510
48,130

47,280
48,078

47,145
47,868

46,094
47,535

36,413
38,474

2008

2007

2005

2004

As of December 31,
2006

$ 58,275 $ 57,589 $ 27,636 $ 12,937 $ 48,570
127,986
128,588
117,862
112,214
97,986
119,749
89,729
99,665
101,538
97,929
499,684
411,949
430,466
455,192
424,742
293,539
295,758
349,375
405,363
491,012
325,520
297,000
350,875
407,723
494,211
(43,520)
(54,146)
(105,291)
(145,187)
(256,154)

The table above gives effect to the sale of the Company’s Forestry Division on November 5, 2007 and the sale of the
Company’s Lawnmower segment on July 27, 2006 and their treatment as discontinued operations for all periods presented,
as well as the acquisition of Carlton on May 2, 2008 and inclusion of its operations for the period from May 2 through
December 31, 2008.
(1) Income from continuing operations in 2008 includes non-recurring charges of $2.9 million related
to purchase accounting from the acquisition of Carlton.
(2) Income from continuing operations in 2005 includes a $55.5 million tax benefit from the reversal
of a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets related to U.S. federal NOL carryforwards.
(3) Loss from continuing operations before taxes in 2004 includes charges totaling $47.0 million
related to refinancing transactions.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report, as well as the information
in Item 6, “Selected Consolidated Financial Data”.
Overview
We are an international industrial company that manufactures and markets branded products to OEMs and consumers. Our products are sold in over 100 countries. We
believe we are a global leader in the sale of cutting chain,
guide bars and accessories for chainsaws.
We have one operating and reporting segment, Outdoor
Products, which accounted for 95% of our revenue in 2008.
This segment manufactures and markets forestry-related
cutting chain, guide bars, sprockets and accessories for
chainsaw use, concrete-cutting equipment and accessories,
and outdoor equipment parts that include lawnmower
blades and other replacement parts and accessories. The
segment’s products are sold to OEMs for use on new
chainsaws and landscaping equipment and to the retail replacement market through distributors, dealers and mass
merchants. During 2008, approximately 24% of the segment’s sales were to OEMs, with the remainder sold into
the replacement market. Approximately 69% of the segment’s sales were outside of the U.S. in 2008, up from
68% in 2007 and 65% in 2006.
The Outdoor Products segment’s performance can be
impacted by trends in the forestry industry, weather patterns and natural disasters, including wind and ice storms,
foreign currency fluctuations and general economic conditions. The segment faces price pressure from competitors
on a worldwide basis. The maintenance of competitive
selling prices is dependent on the segment’s ability to manufacture its products efficiently and to market newly developed products successfully, such as our replacement chain
and bars and concrete-cutting saws. This segment operates
four manufacturing plants in the U.S., one in Canada, one
in Brazil and one in China, all of which pursue continuous
cost improvement. The Chinese facility was constructed in
2004, and manufacturing at this facility commenced in
2005. Production capacity in the Chinese facility was
increased during 2006, 2007 and 2008, with further expansion expected in 2009. Timely capital investment into this
segment’s manufacturing plants for added capacity and
cost reductions, as well as effectively sourcing critical raw
materials at favorable prices, is required for us to remain
competitive.
We also own and operate a gear components business
specializing in the manufacture of mobile equipment rotation bearings, worm gear reducers, hydraulic pump drives,
swing drives and winches. Sales in this business accounted
for about 5% of our total sales in 2008. In 2008, 90% of

these sales were made to OEMs, and 96% were to customers
in the U.S. Customers of this business supply equipment
primarily to the utility, construction, environmental and
forestry equipment markets. The performance of this unit
is closely aligned with general economic trends and more
specifically with business conditions for these industries in
North America.
We maintain a centralized administrative staff at our
headquarters in Portland, Oregon. This centralized administrative staff provides the accounting, finance and
information technology functions, administers various
health and welfare plans, supervises the Company’s capital
structure, and overseas the regulatory, compliance and
legal functions.
In January 2009 we announced our intent to close our
manufacturing facility in Milan, Tennessee during the
second quarter of 2009. Products currently manufactured
in that facility will be produced in our other manufacturing
facilities after the closure. We also took actions in early
2009 to reduce the number of employees we have in certain of our other locations. We expect to record charges of
between $6.0 million and $7.0 million during the first
quarter of 2009 for the costs of the Milan closure and
move, including asset disposal and impairment charges, as
well as employee severance benefits related to Milan and
other locations.
In November 2007, we sold our Forestry Division to
Caterpillar. The Forestry Division constituted the majority
of the operations comprising our former Industrial and
Power Equipment segment. The Forestry Division manufactured timber harvesting equipment and industrial tractors
and loaders and is reported as discontinued operations for
all periods presented. In July 2006, we sold our Lawnmower segment business, consisting of our Dixon subsidiary, to Husqvarna Professional Outdoor Products. The
Lawnmower segment manufactured zero-turning radius
riding lawnmowers and is reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented.
Our capital structure has experienced significant
changes over the past three years. We began 2006 with
$407.7 million in total debt. In 2006 and 2007, we made
significant reductions in outstanding debt by utilizing cash
generated from operations and the proceeds from the sale
of our discontinued businesses. We borrowed an additional
$58.5 million under our revolving credit facility in
May 2008 to fund the acquisition of Carlton. Debt outstanding at the end of 2008 was $325.5 million, representing a net reduction of $82.2 million over the preceding
three-year period.
Acquisition of Carlton
On May 2, 2008, we acquired all of the outstanding
stock of Carlton, a manufacturer of cutting chain for chainsaws located near Portland, Oregon. We paid a total of
BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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$66.2 million in cash for Carlton, including related acquisition costs of $1.5 million, and we also assumed liabilities
totaling $21.3 million. Carlton had $1.8 million in cash on
the date of acquisition, resulting in a net cash outflow of
$64.4 million for the acquisition. The acquisition was
financed with a combination of cash on hand and borrowings under our revolving credit facility. The operating
results of Carlton are included in our consolidated financial
statements from May 2, 2008 forward. Included in these
Carlton operating results for 2008 are non-cash charges
totaling $3.5 million for amortization of intangible assets,
depreciation of the step-up to fair value for property, plant
and equipment and expensing of the step-up to fair value
related to inventories.
Carlton’s sales, operating income and depreciation and
amortization for the twelve months ended April 30, 2008
were approximately $58.1 million, $4.9 million and
$2.3 million, respectively. The acquisition of Carlton is
consistent with our intention to invest in and grow our core
business, the Outdoor Products segment. We expect to
benefit from the added capacity and potential operating
synergies as a result of the acquisition of Carlton. Carlton’s
sales have historically been more than 80% to international
markets.
We accounted for the acquisition in accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 141, “Business
Combinations” (“FAS No. 141”). Accordingly, Carlton’s
assets and liabilities were recorded at their estimated fair
values on the date of acquisition. We estimated the fair value
of assets using various methods and considering, among
other factors, projected discounted cash flows, replacement
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cost less an allowance for depreciation, recent comparable
transactions and historical book values. We estimated the
fair value of inventory by considering the stage of completion of the inventory, estimated costs to complete the
manufacturing process and the normal gross profit margin
typically associated with its sale. We estimated the fair
value of liabilities assumed considering the historical book
values and projected future cash flows. A summary of the
purchase price allocation for the fair value of the assets
acquired and the obligations assumed at the date of acquisition is presented below.
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $1,590
Inventories
Current intangible asset subject to amortization
Other current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Noncurrent intangible assets subject to amortization
Goodwill and other intangible assets
not subject to amortization
Non-current deferred tax asset
Total assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liability
Total liabilities assumed
Cash paid for acquisition, before consideration of
cash acquired

May 2, 2008

$ 1,801
14,808
9,958
1,240
348
26,703
8,790
22,587
1,267
87,502
7,645
3,430
10,227
21,302
$ 66,200

Operating Results
Year ended December 31, 2008 compared to year ended December 31, 2007
The table below provides a summary of results and the primary contributing factors to the year-over-year change.
(Amounts in millions)
(Amounts may not foot due to rounding)

Sales

2008

2007

Change

$ 597.0

$ 515.5

$ 81.5

Contributing Factor

$ 18.9
15.0
6.7
40.9
Gross profit
Gross margin

192.8
32.3%

175.0
33.9%

17.8

Selling, general and administrative
expenses (“SG&A”)
As a percent of sales

105.3
17.6%

94.3
18.3%

11.0

Operating income
Operating margin

87.5
14.7%

80.7
15.7%

6.8

Income from continuing operations

38.8

32.1

6.7

7.6
15.0
(7.8)
(2.7)
5.7

Sales volume
Selling price and mix
Product cost and mix
Foreign currency translation
Carlton operations

3.1
1.5
(1.3)
2.4
4.4
0.9

Compensation and other benefits
Severance
Professional services
Foreign currency translation
Carlton operations
Other, net

17.8 Increase in gross profit
(11.0) Increase in SG&A
6.8
6.0
2.6
(8.7)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations

(0.2)

10.7

Sales volume
Selling price and mix
Foreign currency translation
Carlton operations

Increase in operating income
Decrease in net interest expense
Change in other income (expense)
Increase in income tax provision

(11.0)
(26.0) 2007 gain on sale of net assets
(0.4) Decrease in operating results
15.4 Decrease in income tax provision

Net income

$ 38.6

Sales in 2008 increased $81.5 million (15.8%) from 2007,
due to higher sales volume, price and mix improvements,
favorable effects of translation of foreign currency denominated sales transactions into U.S. Dollars and the acquisition of Carlton in May of 2008. The Outdoor Products
segment experienced a $78.8 million (16.2%) increase in
sales during 2008 compared to 2007, and sales of our gearrelated products increased by $2.7 million (9.3%) from
2007 to 2008. International sales increased $63.6 million
(19.3%), while domestic sales increased $17.9 million
(9.6%). Included in the international increase is the
$6.7 million favorable impact from movement in foreign
currency exchange rates compared to 2007. The growth in
both international and domestic sales includes sales of
Carlton products for the last eight months of 2008. By
product line, sales of cutting chain, guide bars, sprockets

$ 42.9

$ (4.3)

and accessories increased 19.5%, driven by increased
demand for our products and selling price increases, as
well as the addition of the Carlton business during 2008.
Excluding Carlton, year-over-year growth in revenues from
these products was 8.8%. Sales of outdoor equipment parts
were up 10.8%. Sales of concrete-cutting products decreased
9.1% from 2007 to 2008, due to weakness in the construction
equipment markets in both Europe and North America.
Consolidated order backlog at December 31, 2008 was
$103.5 million compared to $69.3 million at December 31,
2007. The year-over-year increase primarily occurred in
the Outdoor Products segment, including the addition of
$31.2 million in backlog related to Carlton.
Gross profit increased $17.8 million (10.2%) from 2007
to 2008. Gross margin in 2008 was 32.3% of sales compared to 33.9% in 2007. Higher sales volume, improved
BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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price and product mix and the addition of Carlton’s operations added to our gross profit in 2008. Increases in product
costs, as well as the net unfavorable effect of movement in
foreign currency exchange rates, partially offset these
increases. Purchase accounting charges of $3.5 million
related to the Carlton acquisition reduced the gross margin
by 0.6 percentage points. These first year purchase accounting charges include non-recurring expenses of $1.7 million
for the adjustment of inventory to fair value at the acquisition date. We anticipate purchase accounting charges related
to Carlton to approximate $1.7 million in each of the next
two years before beginning to gradually decline in 2011 and
subsequent years. The higher product cost and mix, excluding the foreign currency exchange effect from translating
foreign operating costs into weaker U.S. Dollars, is primarily driven by higher year-over-year steel costs of $7.9 million,
as well as inflationary pressures from higher wages and
other conversion costs, partially offset by improved efficiencies and cost absorption resulting from higher production volumes compared to the prior year. Our steel costs
rose sharply during the first nine months of 2008, before
stabilizing in the fourth quarter. The impact of these steel
price increases affected our results primarily in the second
half of 2008, because we had purchased additional steel
ahead of the price increases and because of the inherent
delay for raw material to be manufactured into products and
then sold and recognized as cost of sales.
Fluctuations in currency exchange rates decreased our
gross profit in 2008 compared to 2007 by $2.7 million on
a consolidated basis. The translation of stronger foreign
currencies into a weaker U.S. Dollar resulted in higher
reported manufacturing costs in Brazil and Canada, where
local currencies strengthened compared to the U.S. Dollar.
These cost increases were only partially offset by the positive effect of translating sales in Europe to U.S. Dollars
with a stronger Euro.
SG&A was $105.3 million in 2008 compared to
$94.3 million in 2007, representing a year-over-year
increase of $11.0 million (11.7%). As a percent of sales,
SG&A declined to 17.6% in 2008, compared to 18.3% in
2007, reflecting the benefit of leveraging higher sales revenue on the semi-fixed nature of certain SG&A expenses.
Carlton operations added $4.4 million to SG&A expenses
in 2008. Compensation and other benefits expense
increased by $3.1 million, year-over-year, reflecting annual
merit increases for our employees, higher variable compensation expenses based on improved operating performance
and increased post-employment benefit expenses. Stockbased compensation expense was flat and we expect it to
remain relatively flat as we are past the phase-in effect from
implementing the new expensing requirements of
FAS 123(R). Future levels of stock-based compensation expense will depend on many factors, including the quantity,
16

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

type, vesting schedule and timing of future grants, the price
of our stock, the volatility of our stock and risk-free interest
rates. Severance costs and benefits related to a reorganization at our Portland headquarters, as well as similar actions
taken in Europe, accounted for $1.5 million of the increase.
Professional services decreased $1.3 million, primarily due
to lower fees for legal and audit services. International
SG&A increased $2.4 million from the prior year due to the
translation effect of converting foreign expenses into
weaker U.S. Dollars.
We maintain defined benefit pension plans for substantially all employees and retirees in the U.S., Canada and
Belgium. In addition, we maintain post-retirement medical
and other defined benefit plans covering the majority of
our employees and retirees in the U.S. The costs of these
benefit plans are included in cost of goods sold and
SG&A. The accounting effects and funding requirements
for these plans are subject to actuarial estimates, actual
plan experience and the assumptions we make regarding
future trends and expectations. See further discussion below of these key assumptions and estimates under “Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates”. Total expense recognized for these pension plans and other defined benefit
post-retirement plans was $5.4 million and $5.8 million for
the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
These amounts, which include amounts charged to both
continuing and discontinued operations, also include
pension curtailment charges of $0.2 million in 2007 related
to our discontinued Forestry Division. At December 31,
2008, we have $52.9 million of accumulated other comprehensive losses, related to our pension and other postemployment benefit plans, that will be amortized to
expense over future years, including $4.9 million to be
expensed in 2009. We expect a $6.5 million to $7.5 million
increase in expense for these plans in 2009 compared to
2008, as the sharp decline in value of the defined benefit
pension assets during the latter part of 2008 will result in a
reduced return on assets and increased amortization of
actuarial losses recognized in 2009.
Operating income increased by $6.8 million (8.4%) from
2007 to 2008, resulting in an operating margin for 2008 of
14.7% of sales compared to 15.7% for 2007. The increase
in operating income was due to higher gross profit, partially offset by higher SG&A expenses in 2008.
Interest expense was $27.1 million in 2008 compared to
$33.1 million in 2007. The decrease was due to lower variable interest rates and lower average debt balances, despite
an increase in borrowing following the acquisition of
Carlton in May 2008. Interest income was $1.4 million in
both 2008 and 2007. Interest income in 2008 reflects
higher average balances of cash and cash equivalents but
lower average interest rates, compared to 2007.

Other income was $1.8 million in 2008 compared to
other expense of $0.8 million in 2007. The income in 2008
is largely attributable to gains on the sale of marketable
securities, while the net expense in 2007 reflects losses on
the sale of idle real estate, as well as the write-off of
deferred financing costs from the prepayment of principal
on our term loans.
The following table summarizes our income tax provision for continuing operations in 2008 and 2007:
(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007

Income from continuing
operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

$ 63,588
24,745

$ 48,173
16,030

Income from continuing operations

$ 38,843

$ 32,143

Effective tax rate

38.9%

carryforwards are reduced by a valuation allowance reflecting the expectation that the carryforward period will expire
before they can all be fully utilized.
Income from continuing operations in 2008 was $38.8
million, or $0.81 per diluted share, compared to $32.1
million, or $0.67 per diluted share, in 2007.
Loss from discontinued operations in 2008 was $0.2
million, or $0.01 per diluted share, compared to income of
$10.7 million, or $0.22 per diluted share in 2007. The 2008
results consist of wind down and wrap up activities related
primarily to our discontinued Forestry Division. The 2007
results consisted of our discontinued Forestry Division
operations through the disposition date of November 5,
2007, and the related gain on disposition net of taxes.
Discontinued operations are summarized as follows:

33.3%

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007

(Amounts in millions)

The effective income tax rate increased from 33.3% in
2007 to 38.9% in 2008 primarily due to taxable foreign
currency gains at foreign subsidiaries driven by the stronger
U.S. Dollar. We also experienced a significant shift in the
relative proportion of pre-tax income earned in foreign
locations compared to domestic locations. The tax rates
that apply to our foreign locations can differ significantly
from our domestic income tax rate. These increases were
partially offset by tax benefits received by our subsidiary
in China, which is currently operating under a tax holiday.
Our U.S. federal Net Operating Loss (“NOL”) carryforward was fully utilized during 2007. We estimate our state
NOL carryforwards are $23.6 million as of December 31,
2008. These carryforwards expire at various dates from
2011 through 2024. Additionally, we have a foreign tax
credit carryforward of approximately $1.7 million that
expires in 2010. We also have state tax credit carryforwards of approximately $0.2 million that expire at various
dates from 2009 through 2021. The state NOL and other
carryforwards are available to reduce cash taxes on future
domestic taxable income, although a portion of these

Sales

–

$ 111,934

Operating loss
Gain on disposition of net assets

$ (589)
–

(195)
25,989

Income (loss) before taxes from
discontinued operations
Income tax provision (benefit)

(589)
(345)

25,794
15,080

Income (loss) from discontinued
operations

$ (244)

$ 10,714

Sales by the Forestry Division were $111.9 million in
2007 and the net operating loss was $0.2 million. The poor
operating results were primarily due to a deepening of the
cyclical downturn in the North American forest products
equipment market in 2007, as well as charges of $4.5 million
incurred in 2007 for employee severance, employee benefits, transition and closure costs related to the disposition
of this business. The 2007 results reflect the $26.0 million
pretax gain on the disposal of the Forestry Division’s net
assets. The net cash proceeds received in 2007 from the sale
of the Forestry Division were approximately $68.3 million
and were used to reduce outstanding debt.

Segment Results. The following table reflects segment sales and operating income for 2008 and 2007:
(Amounts in thousands)

Sales:
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other
Total sales

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
Increase

$ 565,557
31,478

$ 486,739
28,796

$ 78,818
2,682

$ 597,035

$ 515,535

$ 81,500

Operating income (loss)
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other

$ 102,601 $ 95,932 $ 6,669
(15,121)
(15,232)
111

Operating income

$ 87,480

$ 80,700

$ 6,780
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Outdoor Products Segment. Sales for the Outdoor Products
segment increased $78.8 million (16.2%) in 2008 compared
to 2007. Of this increase, $40.9 million was attributable
to the operations of Carlton, acquired in May 2008, and
$19.6 million was due to additional sales volume, primarily
from an increase in sales of wood-cutting saw chain and
outdoor equipment parts, driven by strong global demand
for these products. Domestic sales were stimulated, in part,
by hurricane activity along the U.S. Gulf Coast. Improved
selling price and product mix also contributed $11.5 million
to the year-over-year sales increase. Fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates added another $6.7 million to segment sales in 2008 compared to 2007. International sales
grew 19.2% year-over-year, including the favorable effects
of movements in foreign currency exchange rates, while
domestic sales increased 9.9%. Excluding the effects of
Carlton, replacement market sales increased by 10.6%
while sales to OEMs were flat. Sales of concrete-cutting
products decreased by $2.8 million (9.1%), primarily driven
by lower volume due to weakness in the domestic and
European construction equipment markets. Segment order
backlog increased by $35.6 million to $98.9 million at
December 31, 2008, of which $31.2 million was attributable to Carlton-related backlog.
Segment contribution to operating income increased
$6.7 million (7.0%) in 2008 compared to 2007. The favorable effects of increased sales volume ($7.6 million),
improved selling price and mix ($11.5 million) and the
addition of Carlton’s operating results were partially offset
by higher product cost and mix ($5.5 million), higher
SG&A expenses ($3.1 million) and the net unfavorable
effect of fluctuations in foreign currency translation rates

18

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

($5.2 million). In addition, we recognized purchase accounting charges totaling $3.5 million in 2008 related to the
acquisition of Carlton. The higher product cost and mix,
excluding the foreign currency exchange effect from translating foreign operating costs into weaker U.S. Dollars, is
primarily driven by higher year-over-year steel costs of
$6.4 million, as well as inflationary pressures from higher
wages and other conversion costs. These higher costs were
partially offset by improved efficiencies and cost absorption resulting from higher production volumes compared
to the prior year. The increase in SG&A expenses includes
higher compensation and benefit expenses partially offset
by reduced legal fees. The operating margin of 18.1% in
2008 compares to 19.7% in 2007.
Corporate and Other. The corporate and other category
includes the activity of our gear components business, as
well as the costs of certain centralized management and
administrative functions. Sales of gear-related products
increased 9.3% from 2007 to 2008, with improved selling
price and mix of $3.4 million partially offset by lower
volume of $0.7 million. Weak market conditions in the
construction and forestry equipment markets in the
U.S. were partially offset by increased business in the utility
and environmental equipment markets. The contribution to
operating income from our gear components business
increased $1.2 million (60%) year-over-year to $3.2 million
due to higher sales revenue driven by increased pricing.
Central administrative expenses were up $1.1 million
year-over-year, with an increase in variable compensation
costs of $0.5 million and severance costs of $0.8 million
partially offset by reduced professional fees.

Year ended December 31, 2007 compared to year ended December 31, 2006
The table below provides a summary of results and the primary contributing factors to the year-over-year change.
( Amounts in millions)
(Amounts may not foot due to rounding)

Sales

2007

2006

Change

$ 515.5

$ 487.5

$ 28.0

Contributing Factor

$ 10.0
10.0
8.0
Gross profit
Gross margin

175.0
33.9%

173.7
35.6%

1.3

Selling, general and administrative
expenses (“SG&A”)
As a percent of sales

94.3
18.3%

89.5
18.3%

4.8

Operating income
Operating margin

80.7
15.7%

80.5
16.5%

0.2

Income from continuing operations

32.1

32.6

6.3
10.0
(13.2)
(1.1)
(0.7)

2.0
0.7
0.8
(1.2)
2.6
(0.1)

10.7

9.9

Sales volume
Selling price and mix
Product cost and mix
Warehouse consolidation expenses
Foreign currency translation

Cash compensation expense
Stock compensation expense
Professional services
Retirement benefits expense
Foreign currency translation
Other, net

1.3 Increase in gross profit
(4.8) Increase in SG&A
3.7 2006 retirement plan redesign
(0.5)
0.2
3.7
(2.1)
(2.3)

Income from discontinued operations

Sales volume
Selling price and mix
Foreign currency translation

Increase in operating income
Decrease in net interest expense
Change in other income (expense)
Increase in income tax provision

0.8
8.6 Increase in gain on sale of net assets
(2.9) Decrease in operating results
(4.9) Increase in income tax provision

Net income

$ 42.9

Sales in 2007 increased $28.0 million (5.8%) from 2006,
due to higher sales volume, price and mix improvements
and the favorable effect of translation of foreign currency
denominated sales transactions, given the weaker U.S.
Dollar in comparison to 2006, particularly in relation to
the Euro. The Outdoor Products segment experienced a
$31.7 million (7.0%) increase in sales during 2007 compared
to 2006, while sales of our gear-related products decreased
$3.7 million (11.4%) from 2006 to 2007. International
sales increased $34.6 million (11.7%), but domestic sales
declined $6.5 million (3.4%). Included in the international
increase is the $8.0 million favorable impact from movement in foreign currency exchange rates compared to
2006. The decline in U.S. sales is attributed to weaker
market conditions in the lawn care, forestry and construction industries. By product line, sales of cutting chain,
guide bars, sprockets and accessories increased 6.0% and
sales of outdoor equipment parts were up 14.5%. Sales of

$ 42.5

$ 0.4

concrete-cutting products increased 2.7% from 2006 to
2007, lead by strength in Europe.
Consolidated order backlog for continuing operations at
December 31, 2007 was $69.3 million compared to $61.3
million at December 31, 2006. The year-over-year increase
primarily occurred in the Outdoor Products segment.
Gross profit increased $1.3 million (0.7%) from 2006 to
2007. Gross margin in 2007 was 33.9% of sales compared
to 35.6% in 2006. Higher sales volume and improved price
and product mix were largely offset by increases in product
costs, including higher freight and distribution costs, and
$1.1 million incurred to consolidate our North American
distribution centers. The increases in product costs include
the effects of higher energy costs for utilities, annual wage
increases to our manufacturing employees, $1.0 million in
higher steel costs and the effects of inflation on other cost
elements.
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Fluctuations in currency exchange rates decreased our
gross profit in 2007 compared to 2006 by $0.7 million on
a consolidated basis. The translation of stronger foreign
currencies into a weaker U.S. Dollar resulted in higher
manufacturing costs in Brazil and Canada, where local
currencies strengthened compared to the U.S. Dollar,
which were only partially offset by higher foreign exchange
rates for sales in Europe.
SG&A was $94.3 million in 2007 compared to $89.5
million in 2006, representing a year-over-year increase of
$4.8 million (5.3%). As a percent of sales, SG&A remained
at 18.3% in both 2007 and 2006. Cash-based compensation increased by $2.0 million year-over-year, reflecting
annual merit increases for our employees and higher variable compensation expenses. Stock-based compensation
expense increased $0.7 million in 2007 as we continued to
expense stock compensation granted in 2006 over the three
year vesting periods, as well as recognizing expense on
2007 grants. Professional services expense increased
$0.8 million, primarily due to higher legal costs. Employee
benefit expenses decreased $1.2 million primarily due to
the redesign of the Company’s U.S. retirement plans
effective January 1, 2007. International operating expenses
increased $2.6 million from the prior year due to the
weaker U.S. Dollar and its effect on the translation of
foreign expenses.
Total expense recognized for pension and other postretirement defined benefit plans was $14.3 million and
$5.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2007, respectively. These amounts, which include amounts
charged to both continuing and discontinued operations,
also include pension curtailment charges of $0.2 million in
2007 related to our discontinued Forestry Division, and
$3.6 million in 2006 to reflect the freezing of our U.S. defined benefit pension plan effective December 31, 2006.
Operating income increased slightly by $0.2 million from
2006 to 2007, resulting in an operating margin for 2007 of
15.7% of sales compared to 16.5% for 2006. The increase
was due to higher gross profit and the non-recurrence of a
$3.7 million charge to continuing operations in 2006 for the
redesign of our U.S. retirement plans, partially offset by
higher SG&A expenses in 2007.
Interest expense was $33.1 million in 2007 compared to
$35.8 million in 2006. The decrease was largely due to
lower average outstanding debt balances. Interest income
increased by $1.0 million from 2006 to 2007, reflecting
higher average balances of cash and cash equivalents.
Other expense was $0.8 million in 2007 compared to
other income of $1.3 million in 2006. The net expense in
2007 reflects losses on the sale of idle real estate, as well
as the write-off of deferred financing costs from the prepayment of principal on our term loans. The income in
2006 is largely due to proceeds from insurance settlements.
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The following table summarizes our income tax provision for continuing operations in 2007 and 2006:
(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2007
2006

Income from continuing
operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

$ 48,173
16,030

$ 46,391
13,746

Income from continuing operations

$ 32,143

$ 32,645

Effective tax rate

33.3%

29.6%

The increase in the effective tax rate from 2006 to 2007
is largely due to the discontinuation of a special deduction
for U.S. export sales, partially offset by the phase-in of a
new deduction for domestic production activities.
Our U.S. federal Net Operating Loss (“NOL”) carryforward was fully utilized during 2007. Our federal research
credits and alternative minimum tax credits were fully
utilized as of December 31, 2007.
Income from continuing operations in 2007 was $32.1
million, or $0.67 per diluted share, compared to $32.6
million, or $0.68 per diluted share, in 2006.
Income from discontinued operations in 2007 was $10.7
million, or $0.22 per diluted share, compared to $9.9 million,
or $0.21 per diluted share in 2006. The 2007 results consisted solely of our discontinued Forestry Division through
the disposition date of November 5, 2007. Results for 2006
include both the full year of activity of our Forestry Division and activity of our discontinued Lawnmower segment
through July 26, 2006. The Lawnmower segment, consisting of our former wholly-owned subsidiary, Dixon, was
sold on July 27, 2006.
Discontinued operations are summarized as follows:
(Amounts in millions)

Sales

Year Ended December 31,
2007
2006

$ 111,934 $ 196,826

Operating income (loss)
Gain on disposition of net assets

(195)
25,989

2,689
17,366

Income before taxes from
discontinued operations
Income tax provision

25,794
15,080

20,055
10,154

$ 10,714 $

9,901

Income from discontinued operations

Sales by the Forestry Division were $111.9 million in
2007 and $167.3 million in 2006. The Forestry Division
incurred a net loss of $0.2 million in 2007 and contributed
$8.5 million to operating income in 2006. The decline in
year-over-year sales and earnings was primarily due to a
deepening of the cyclical downturn in the North American
forest products equipment market in 2007, as well as
charges of $4.5 million incurred in 2007 for employee
severance, employee benefits, transition and closure costs
related to the sale of the division. Included in operating
income from the Forestry Division in 2006 is a charge of

$1.2 million for costs to shut down one of the Forestry
Division’s three manufacturing plants. The 2007 results
reflect the $26.0 million pretax gain on the disposal of the
Forestry Division’s net assets. The net cash proceeds
received in 2007 from the sale of the Forestry Division
were approximately $68.3 million and were used to reduce
outstanding debt. We expect to incur cash expenditures of
approximately $15.0 million in 2008 for the payment of
income taxes on the gain, as well as other liabilities associated with the discontinued business.
Sales by the Lawnmower segment for the partial 2006 year
were $29.5 million. The Lawnmower segment recognized a

loss from operations in 2006 of $5.3 million. The 2006 loss
from operations was primarily due to expenses necessary to
finalize the closure of the facility, including the termination
of the majority of the Lawnmower segment employees, and
to facilitate the transfer of assets sold to the buyer. These
results included compensation, severance and benefit costs,
a charge to write down assets we retained (primarily the
land and building) and other expenses. The 2006 results
reflect the $17.4 million pretax gain on the disposal of the
segment’s net assets. The net cash proceeds from the sale of
the Lawnmower segment were approximately $32.4 million
and were used to reduce outstanding debt.

Segment Results. The following table reflects segment sales and operating income for 2007 and 2006:

(Amounts in thousands)

Sales:
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other
Total sales

Year Ended December 31,
Increase
2007
2006 (Decrease)

$ 486,739
28,796

$ 455,009
32,485

$ 31,730
(3,689)

$ 515,535

$ 487,494

$ 28,041

Operating income
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other
Retirement plan redesign

$ 95,932 $ 97,805 $ (1,873)
(15,232)
(13,598)
(1,634)
–
(3,747)
3,747

Operating income

$ 80,700

Outdoor Products Segment. Sales for the Outdoor Products
segment increased $31.7 million (7.0%) in 2007 compared
to 2006. Of this increase, $15.7 million was due to additional sales volume, primarily from an increase in sales of
wood-cutting saw chain and outdoor equipment parts and,
to a lesser extent, concrete-cutting saw chain. Improved
price and product mix also contributed $7.9 million to the
year-over-year sales increase. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates added another $8.0 million to segment sales in 2007 compared to 2006. International sales
grew 11.8% year-over-year, while domestic sales decreased
by 1.8%. Sales to OEMs increased by 3.7%, while replacement sales increased 4.7%. Sales of concrete-cutting products increased $0.8 million (2.7%). Order backlog increased
by $8.5 million to $63.3 million at December 31, 2007.
Segment contribution to operating income decreased
$1.9 million (1.9%) in 2007 compared to 2006. The favorable effects of increased sales volume ($7.9 million) and
improved price and mix ($7.9 million) were offset by higher
product cost and mix ($12.4 million), higher SG&A expenses ($2.0 million) and the net unfavorable effect of fluctuations in foreign currency translation rates ($3.3 million).

$ 80,460

$

240

The higher product cost and mix, excluding the foreign
currency exchange effect, includes inflationary pressures
of higher wages and other conversion costs, higher freight
and shipping costs, $1.1 million incurred to consolidate the
North American distribution center and $0.5 million in
higher steel costs. The operating margin of 19.7% in 2007
compares to 21.5% in 2006.
Corporate and Other. The corporate and other category
includes the activity of our gear components business, as
well as the costs of certain centralized management and
administrative functions. Sales of gear-related products
decreased 11.4% from 2006 to 2007, with lower volume of
$5.7 million partially offset by improved price and mix of
$2.0 million. Weak market conditions in the construction
and forestry equipment markets in the U.S. were partially
offset by increased business in the utility equipment market.
The contribution to operating income from our gear
components business decreased $1.7 million (45.1%)
year-over-year due to lower sales revenue. Corporate
expense was flat year-over-year, with higher stock compensation costs ($0.7 million) and merit wage increases offset
by reduced legal and compliance costs.
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Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources
During 2006 and 2007, we significantly reduced our
debt, using cash flow from operations and the net proceeds
from the sale of our Lawnmower segment in 2006 and the
sale of our Forestry Division in 2007. In 2008, debt increased
primarily from additional borrowing of $58.5 million to
fund the acquisition of Carlton in May of 2008, partially
offset by debt repayments from operating cash flows. Total
debt was $325.5 million at December 31, 2008 and
$297.0 million at December 31, 2007, representing a net
increase of $28.5 million during 2008. Outstanding debt as
of December 31, 2008 consisted of a term loan balance of
$119.8 million, a revolving credit facility balance of
$30.7 million and 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes of
$175.0 million.
87⁄8% Senior Subordinated Notes. We have one registered
debt security, the 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes. The interest rate on these notes is fixed until their maturity on
August 1, 2012. These notes are subject to redemption at
any time at our option, in whole or in part, at redemption
prices of 104.438% through July 31, 2009; 102.219% from
August 1, 2009 through July 31, 2010; and at 100% on
August 1, 2010 and thereafter. These notes are issued by
our wholly-owned subsidiary, Blount, Inc., and are fully
and unconditionally, jointly and severally, guaranteed by
the Company and all of its domestic subsidiaries (“guarantor subsidiaries”) other than Blount, Inc. All guarantor subsidiaries of these 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes are 100%
owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. While the
Company and all of its domestic subsidiaries guarantee
these 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes, none of our existing
foreign subsidiaries (“non-guarantor subsidiaries”) guarantee these notes.
Senior Credit Facilities. We first entered into a credit agreement with General Electric Capital Corporation as Agent
on May 15, 2003. The agreement was amended and
restated on August 9, 2004, and has had several subsequent
amendments. The senior credit facilities consist of a term
loan facility and a revolving credit facility.
2006 Amendment to Credit Facilities. On March 23, 2006, we
amended certain terms of the senior credit facilities. This
amendment included the following changes:
 Maximum availability under the revolving credit facility
was increased from $100.0 million to $150.0 million.
 Interest rates were reduced by 0.75% for the term loans
and by 1.00% for the revolving credit facility.
 Certain financial covenants were modified, including increases to the amounts that may be paid for acquisitions,
dividends and repurchase of Company stock, as well as
modifications to certain financial ratio requirements.
 The Company incurred fees and third party costs of
$0.7 million related to the amendment.
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Immediately following the amendment, we completed
the following transactions:
 $82.1 million was borrowed under the revolving credit
facility.
 The total principal balance of $4.6 million was paid off
on a Canadian term loan, and that loan was cancelled.
 $77.5 million in principal was paid against the term
loans, leaving a balance of $150.0 million outstanding.
2007 Amendment to Credit Facilities. On November 5, 2007,
we amended certain terms of the senior credit facilities. No
changes were made to the interest rates, principal amounts,
maturity dates or payment schedules of the debt or to the
availability of credit under the agreement. This amendment
included the following changes:
 The agreement was modified to allow the Company to
sell the Forestry Division on the same day as the effective date of the amendment.
 Certain covenants, terms and conditions were modified
in the credit agreement, including an increased allowance for acquisitions, reduced reporting requirements
and a reduction in the required senior leverage ratio.
 The Company incurred fees and third party costs of
$0.7 million related to the amendment.
The revolving credit facility provides for total available
borrowings up to $150.0 million, reduced by outstanding
letters of credit and further restricted by a specific leverage
ratio and first lien credit facilities leverage ratio. As of
December 31, 2008, the Company had the ability to borrow
an additional $115.2 million under the terms of the revolving credit agreement. The revolving credit facility matures
on August 9, 2009 and bears interest at the LIBOR rate
plus 1.75%, or at the prime rate, at our option. Interest is
payable monthly in arrears on any prime rate borrowing
and at individual maturity dates for any LIBOR-based borrowing. Any outstanding principal is due in its entirety on
the maturity date. The entire balance is classified as a
current liability on the December 31, 2008 balance sheet
because the maturity date is less than 12 months from the
balance sheet date.
The term loan facility bears interest at the LIBOR rate
plus 1.75%, or at the prime rate, at our option, and matures
on August 9, 2010. The term loan facility requires quarterly payments of $0.3 million, with a final payment of
$117.6 million due on the maturity date. Once repaid, principal under the term loan facility may not be re-borrowed
by the Company.
The amended and restated senior credit facilities contain
financial covenants relating to maximum capital expenditures, minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, maximum
leverage ratio and maximum first lien credit facilities
leverage ratio. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the

Company’s fixed charge coverage ratio, as calculated under
terms of the credit facilities, was 1.85 compared to the
required minimum of 1.15. In addition, there are covenants
or restrictions relating to, among other categories, investments, loans and advances, indebtedness, dividends on our
stock and the sale of stock or assets. We were in compliance
with all debt covenants as of December 31, 2008. Noncompliance with these covenants, if it were to become an
event of default under the terms of the credit agreement,
could result in severe limitations to our overall liquidity, and
the term loan lenders could require actions for immediate
repayment of outstanding amounts, potentially requiring
sale of our assets. Such non-compliance, if any, could also
result in an event of default under the indenture agreement
related to the 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes. Our debt is
not subject to any triggers that would require early payment of debt due to any adverse change in our credit rating.
The amended and restated senior credit facilities may be
prepaid at any time. There can also be additional mandatory
repayment requirements related to the sale of Company assets, the issuance of stock under certain circumstances or
upon the Company’s annual generation of excess cash flow,
as determined under the credit agreement.
Blount International, Inc. and all of its domestic subsidiaries other than Blount, Inc. guarantee Blount, Inc.’s
obligations under the senior credit facilities. The obligations under the senior credit facilities are collateralized by
a first priority security interest in substantially all of the
assets of Blount, Inc. and its domestic subsidiaries, as well
as a pledge of all of Blount, Inc.’s capital stock held by
Blount International, Inc. and all of the stock of domestic
subsidiaries held by Blount, Inc. Blount, Inc. has also
pledged 65% of the stock of its non-domestic subsidiaries
as additional collateral.
Interest expense was $27.1 million in 2008, $33.1 million
in 2007 and $35.8 million in 2006. The reduction in interest
expense from 2006 to 2007 is primarily a result of the
reduction in the principal amount of long-term debt. Interest expense has been further affected by changes in interest
rates on our variable rate debt. The reduction in interest
expense from 2007 to 2008 is due to lower variable interest
rates and a $32.3 million lower average principal balance
outstanding. The weighted average of our variable interest
rates decreased by 343 basis points during 2008, and
decreased by 11 basis points during 2007 and 42 basis points
during 2006. Our annual interest expense may continue to
vary in the future because the senior credit facility interest
rates are not fixed. The weighted average interest rate on
all our outstanding debt as of December 31, 2008 was
6.42%, compared with 8.11% as of December 31, 2007.
Our debt continues to be significant, and future debt
service payments continue to represent substantial
obligations. This degree of leverage may adversely affect

our operations and could have important consequences.
See Item 1A, Risk Factors, “Substantial Leverage” for further discussion. Over the longer term, we expect to meet
our financial and capital needs, including payment of debt
obligations, through a combination of cash flow from operations and amounts available under existing credit facilities, as well as the potential issuance of new debt, sale of
additional shares of stock or establishment of new credit
facilities. While there can be no assurance, management
believes we will comply with all financial performance
covenants during the next twelve months. Should we not
comply with the covenants, additional significant actions
may be required. These actions may include, among others,
an attempt to renegotiate our debt facilities, sales of assets,
restructuring and reductions in capital expenditures.
Our revolving credit facility matures on August 9, 2009,
and our term debt facility matures on August 9, 2010.
Before these facilities mature, we will need to obtain
replacement financing. In the current global financial markets, credit facilities are generally more difficult to obtain
and terms are less favorable to borrowers, than comparable
market conditions existing at the time these facilities were
established and amended. In addition, our liquidity, capital
structure and credit profile has improved significantly during the terms of these agreements. We have begun preliminary discussions with financial institutions and advisors
concerning potential replacement financing options that
may be available to us. However, given the conditions of
the global credit markets, any replacement financing will
likely be more expensive and may contain more restrictive
terms than our existing facilities.
We intend to fund working capital, capital expenditures,
debt service requirements and obligations under our postretirement benefit plans for the next twelve months through
expected cash flows generated from operations and the
amounts available under our revolving credit agreement
through its maturity date and any a replacement facility or
extended facility thereafter. Interest on our debt is payable
in arrears according to varying interest rates and periods.
We expect our financial resources will be sufficient to
cover any additional increases in working capital and capital expenditures. There can be no assurance, however, that
these resources will be sufficient to meet our needs. We
may also consider other options available to us in connection with future liquidity needs, including, but not limited
to, the postponement of discretionary contributions to
post-retirement benefit plans, the postponement of capital
expenditures, restructuring of our credit facilities and
issuance of new debt or equity securities.
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2008 were
$58.3 million compared to $57.6 million at December 31,
2007.
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Cash provided by operating activities is summarized as
follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Income from
continuing operations
Non-cash items included
in net income

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

$ 38,843

$ 32,143

$ 32,645

33,880

35,082

35,432

Subtotal

72,723

67,225

68,077

Changes in assets and
liabilities, net
Discontinued operations

(7,201)
(4,318)

(32,838)
(5,209)

(13,807)
4,345

Cash provided by
operating activities

$ 61,204

$ 29,178

$ 58,615

Non-cash items consist of expense from the early extinguishment of debt, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, amortization, stock compensation, deferred
income taxes, (gain) loss on disposal of assets, the effect of
exchange rate changes on beginning cash balances and
other non-cash charges. Changes in assets and liabilities,
net, consists of those changes in assets and liabilities
included in the cash flows from operating activities section
of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
2008 cash provided by operating activities of $61.2
million reflected the following significant items:
 Income from continuing operations of $38.8 million, an
increase of $6.7 million over 2007.
 Non-cash items of $33.9 million, which included the
following:
 Depreciation expense of $21.2 million, increased over
the prior year due to capital expenditure levels in
excess of depreciation over the last several years, as
well as the addition of assets acquired with the acquisition of Carlton;
 Amortization of $7.4 million, increased over the prior
year due to the amortization of purchase accounting
intangibles from the acquisition of Carlton;
 Stock compensation costs of $3.3 million, comparable
to 2007 levels;
 A deferred income tax provision of $3.2 million; and
 Gain on disposal of assets of $1.5 million from the
sale of marketable securities.
 Changes in assets and liabilities reduced cash flow from
operations by $7.2 million, including the following
items:
 A decrease in accounts receivable of $5.9 million,
reflecting a lower level of sales in the last two months
of 2008 compared to the last two months of 2007;
 An increase in inventory of $11.0 million, as production volumes exceeded shipments during the last few
months of 2008, and higher steel costs increased year
end inventory values by approximately $4.1 million;
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 A decrease in other assets of $4.5 million, primarily
due to the collection of a portion of the sales price for
our 2007 sale of the Forestry Division, which was
held in escrow;
 A decrease in accounts payable of $7.3 million,
resulting from the timing of payments to vendors;
 An increase in accrued expenses of $2.0 million, primarily resulting from an increase in the accruals for
various customer rebate and coop advertising programs, which were higher due to the higher level of
sales in 2008 compared to 2007.
 Discontinued operations used $4.3 million in 2008 as we
paid accrued liabilities for employee severance, advisor
fees and other liabilities in connection with our sale of
the Forestry Division in November 2007.
2007 cash provided by operating activities of $29.2
million reflected the following significant items:
 Income from continuing operations of $32.1 million, a
decrease of $0.5 million from 2006.
 Non-cash items of $35.1 million, which included the
following:
 Depreciation expense of $17.6 million, up from the
prior year due to capital expenditure levels in excess
of deprecation over the last several years;
 Amortization and write-off of deferred financing
costs of $4.6 million;
 Stock compensation costs of $3.2 million, an increase
of $0.7 million from 2006;
 A deferred income tax provision of $11.1 million; and
 A net loss of $0.7 million related to the disposal of
assets.
 Changes in assets and liabilities reduced cash flow from
operations by $32.8 million, including the following
items:
 A decrease in accounts receivable of $3.6 million;
 An increase in inventories of $13.4 million as we
ramped up production and inventory on hand in
response to increasing orders;
 An increase in other assets of $3.6 million, primarily
related to income tax refunds receivable;
 An increase in accounts payable of $4.7 million;
 A reduction in accrued expenses of $7.5 million
primarily related to payment of accrued income taxes;
and
 A reduction in other liabilities of $16.6 million,
primarily related to pension funding in excess of the
amount charged to expense.
 Discontinued operations used $5.2 million, primarily for
transition costs incurred in selling the Forestry Division.

2006 cash provided by operating activities of $58.6
million reflected the following significant items:
 Income from continuing operations of $32.6 million;
 Non-cash items of $35.4 million, which included the
following:
 Depreciation expense of $15.1 million;
 Amortization of deferred financing costs of $3.7
million;
 A pension curtailment charge of $3.2 million;
 Stock compensation costs of $2.6 million;
 A deferred income tax provision of $13.0 million; and
 A net gain of $0.8 million related to the disposal of
assets.
 Changes in assets and liabilities reduced cash flow from
operations by $13.8 million, including the following
items:
 Decreases in accounts receivable of $1.3 million;
 A decrease in inventories of $2.7 million;
 An increase in other assets of $3.8 million, largely
due to income tax refunds receivable;
 An increase in accounts payable of $2.6 million;
 A reduction in accrued expenses of $7.1 million
primarily related to payment of accrued income taxes;
and
 A reduction in other liabilities of $9.6 million, primarily related to pension funding in excess of the
amount charged to expense.
 Discontinued operations provided $4.3 million, primarily
due to the full-year operating activities of our Forestry
Division partially offset by transition costs incurred in
selling the Lawnmower segment.
Cash contributions for all pension and post-retirement
defined benefit plans were $7.1 million in 2008, $23.4
million in 2007 and $21.7 million in 2006. Funding requirements for post-retirement benefit plans fluctuate significantly from year to year. See further discussion following
under “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.” The
Company intends to make contributions to our funded
pension plans in 2009 of approximately $12 million to
$14 million. The amount of contributions required in subsequent years will depend, in part, on future investment
returns on plan assets. The obligations under our other
post-retirement benefit plans are made on a pay-as-you-go
basis and we expect to pay between $2.5 million and $3.5
million in 2009 for these plans. We also make cash contributions to our U.S. 401(k) plan. We contributed $5.0 million in
2008, $2.6 million in 2007 and $2.7 million in 2006 to this
plan. We expect to contribute between $4.5 million and
$5.0 million to the 401(k) plan in 2009. The higher level of
contributions made in 2008 and expected in 2009 reflects
the additional contribution implemented as part of our
U.S. retirement plan restructuring and the freeze of our
U.S. defined benefit pension plan undertaken in 2006.

Net cash income tax payments were $13.2 million in
2008, $20.8 million in 2007 and $9.9 million in 2006. Income tax payments prior to 2007 have been primarily the
result of our foreign tax liability, with a portion also for
state and local taxes and alternative minimum tax. In the
years prior to 2007, U.S. taxable income has been offset by
our domestic net operating loss carryforwards. As expected,
we began paying cash income taxes in the U.S. during
2007, and expect to continue to do so as we have fully
utilized our U.S. net operating loss carryforwards.
Cash flows from investing activities are summarized as
follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

Proceeds from sale of assets $ 1,632 $ 2,309 $ 1,244
Purchases of property, plant
and equipment
(26,058) (18,517)
(21,653)
Acquisition of Carlton,
net of cash acquired
(64,399)
–
–
Discontinued operations
1,725
69,071
30,900
Cash provided by (used in)
investing activities

$ (87,100) $ 52,863

$ 10,491

In 2008 we used $87.1 million of cash in investing activities. Sale of marketable securities yielded $1.6 million in
proceeds during the year. We paid $66.2 million in cash for
Carlton, but the purchase included Carlton’s $1.8 million
of cash at the acquisition date, leaving a net cash outflow
of $64.4 million for the acquisition. Discontinued operations provided $1.7 million of cash during 2008 as we collected the final payment related to the November 2007 sale
of our Forestry Division.
In 2007 we generated $52.9 million of cash from investing activities, inclusive of $69.1 million of net activity
from discontinued operations. Discontinued operations in
2007 included net proceeds from the sale of our Forestry
Division, reduced by amounts held in escrow and capital
expenditures made by the Forestry Division prior to the
sale on November 5, 2007. Proceeds from the sale of assets
of $2.3 million reflect the sale of idle land and buildings
retained following the disposition of our Lawnmower
segment in 2006 and our Forestry Division in 2007.
In 2006, we generated $10.5 million from investing
activities, inclusive of $30.9 million of net activity from
discontinued operations. Discontinued operations in 2006
included net proceeds from the sale of our Lawnmower
segment, reduced by capital expenditures of our Forestry
Division. Proceeds from the sale of assets reflect the
receipt of insurance proceeds from fire damage we experienced in one of our manufacturing plants.
Purchases of property, plant and equipment for all three
years presented are primarily for productivity improvements,
expanded manufacturing capacity and replacement of consumable tooling and equipment. Generally one third of our
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capital spending represents replacement of consumable
tooling and existing equipment with the rest devoted to
capacity and productivity improvements. The increase in
2008 expenditures compared to 2007 and 2006 levels reflects
an effort to accelerate the replacement of older equipment,
as well as the incremental effect from adding Carlton’s
capital expenditures from May to the end of the year. Over
the three year period, we have invested $15.5 million for
construction and equipment at our facility in China, with
$4.0 million of the total expended in 2008. In 2009, we
expect to invest between $25 million and $28 million for
property plant and equipment, primarily for ongoing productivity and cost improvements in our manufacturing
processes and routine replacement of machinery and
equipment, including tooling that is consumed in the production process, as well as incremental capacity expansion.
Cash flows from financing activities are summarized as
follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

Net borrowing (reduction) of
debt principle
$ 28,520
Issuance, modification
and redemption costs
–
Proceeds and tax benefits
of share-based compensation
1,069
Cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

$ 29,589

$ (53,875) $ (56,848)
(700)
324

(700)
1,740

$ (54,251) $ (55,808)

2008 activity included the following:
 Net borrowings during the year of $28.5 million consisting of :
 Borrowing of $58.5 million under our revolving
credit facility for the purchase of Carlton; and
 Repayment of $30.0 million of principle on the
revolving credit facility and term loans from available
cash flows.
 $0.6 million of proceeds from the exercise of stock
options and a $0.5 million tax benefit that is recognized
as a financing activity under FAS No. 123(R), “ShareBased Payment” (“FAS No. 123(R)”).
2007 activity included the following:
 Net debt reduction of $53.9 million, primarily funded
with proceeds from the sale of our Forestry Division;
 Expenditures of $0.7 million incurred with the November,
2007 amendment to our senior credit facilities; and
 $0.2 million of proceeds from the exercise of stock
options and a $0.1 million tax benefit that is recognized
as a financing activity under FAS No. 123(R).
2006 activity included the following:
 Net debt reduction of $56.8 million, partially funded
with proceeds from the sale of our Lawnmower segment,
as well as cash flow from operations;
 Expenditures of $0.7 million incurred with the
March 2006 amendment to our senior credit facilities;
and
 $1.0 million of proceeds from the exercise of stock
options and a $0.7 million tax benefit that is recognized
as a financing activity under FAS No. 123(R).

As of December 31, 2008, our contractual and estimated obligations are as follows (in thousands):
(Amounts in thousands)

Total

2009

2010-2011

2012-2013

Thereafter

Debt obligations (1)
Estimated interest payments (2)
Purchase commitments (3)
Operating lease obligations (4)
Defined benefit pension obligations (5)
Other post-retirement obligations (6)
Other long-term liabilities (7)

$ 325,520
68,221
100
24,856
2,731
16,325
500

$ 31,981
19,595
100
2,886
2,731
1,739
25

$ 118,539
33,095
–
5,631
–
2,624
450

$ 175,000
15,531
–
3,803
–
2,328
25

–
–
–
$ 12,536
–
9,634
–

Total contractual obligations

$ 438,253

$ 59,057

$ 160,339

$ 196,687

$ 22,170

(1) Scheduled minimum principal payments on debt. Additional voluntary prepayments may also be made from time to time. Additional mandatory principal payments are required under certain circumstances.
(2) Estimated future interest payments based on existing debt balances, timing of scheduled minimum principal payments and estimated variable interest rates.
(3) Does not include amounts recorded as current liabilities on the balance sheet.
(4) See also Note 12 to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(5) Current minimum funding requirements for defined benefit pension plans. Does not include estimated future funding requirements for defined benefit pension
plans of approximately $7.7 million in 2010 and each year thereafter. Actual funding requirements may vary significantly from these estimates based on actual return on assets, changes in assumptions, plan modifications and actuarial gains and losses. See additional discussion of these key assumptions and estimates under “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” below. Additional voluntary funding payments may also be made, and the Company intends to
contribute between $12 and $14 million to these plans in 2009.
(6) Estimated payments for various non-qualified retirement benefits. The Company also has benefit payment obligations due under its post-retirement medical
plan that are not required to be funded in advance, but are pay-as-you-go, and are not included herein. See also Note 11 to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(7) Advisory and consulting fees for certain current and former officers and directors of the Company.
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As of December 31, 2008, our recorded liability for uncertain tax positions was $31.8 million. Due to the high degree of uncertainty regarding the timing of potential future
cash flows associated with uncertain tax positions, we are
unable to make a reasonable estimate of the amounts and
periods in which these remaining liabilities might be paid.
It is reasonably possible that the estimate of uncertain tax
positions could change materially in the near term.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
At December 31, 2008 and 2007, we did not have any
relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which would have been
established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or for other contractually narrow or limited
purposes. As such, we are not exposed to any financing,
liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise had we
engaged in such relationships.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial
condition and results of operations is based on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements that have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the U. S.
The preparation of these financial statements requires us
to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, equity components, revenues
and expenses. We base our estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable and consistent with industry practice. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We believe the following critical
accounting policies affect our more significant judgments
and estimates in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.
We record reductions to selling prices as products are
shipped. These reductions are based on competitive and
market conditions, in addition to specific customer contracts
in some instances. Some reductions are determined based on
sales volumes or other measurements not yet finalized at the
time of shipment. These reductions are estimated and
recorded at the time of shipment either through a reduction
to the invoice total or the establishment of a reserve or an
accrual for settlement at a later date. The amount reserved or
accrued may increase or decrease prior to payment due to
customer performance and market conditions.
We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses against our recorded accounts receivable.
Such allowance is based on an ongoing review of customer
payments against terms and a review of customers’ financial statements and conditions through monitoring services. Based on these reviews, the allowance is adjusted in

the appropriate period. Additional allowances may be required based on future events or as we obtain new information about our customers credit and financial situations.
Specific industry market conditions can significantly increase or decrease the level of inventory on hand in any of
our business units. We adjust for changes in demand by reducing or increasing production levels. We estimate the required inventory reserves for excess or obsolete inventory
by assessing inventory turns and market selling prices on a
product by product basis. We maintain such reserves until
a product is sold or market conditions require a change in
the reserves.
We perform an annual analysis for impairment of goodwill at the reporting unit level. We also perform an impairment analysis of goodwill whenever circumstances
indicate that impairment may have occurred. The impairment tests are performed by estimating the fair values of
the reporting units using a discounted projected cash flow
model and comparing those fair values to the carrying values of the reporting units, including goodwill. For the
analysis performed in the year ended December 31, 2008,
we used a discount rate of 11.3% based on our actual
weighted average interest rate for debt financing and an assumed 15% return on equity, and we projected future cash
flows for twelve years forward with no consideration of
terminal value. The sum of the fair values of the reporting
units is reconciled to our current market capitalization plus
an estimated control premium. If the carrying amount of
the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value
of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to that excess. Events or changes in circumstances may occur that could create underperformance
relative to projected future cash flows, which could result
in the recognition of future impairments.
We incur expenses in connection with product liability
claims as a result of alleged product malfunctions or defects. Under terms of the related divestiture agreements,
we remain contractually obligated, as between the buyer
and us, to defend or settle product liability claims for products manufactured during our ownership period for certain
discontinued operations. We maintain insurance for a portion of this exposure and record a liability for our estimated
non-insured obligations. We estimate our product liability
obligations on a case by case basis, in addition to a review
of product performance trends and consideration of the
potential liability for claims incurred but not yet reported.
These estimated obligations are frequently increased or
decreased as more information on specific cases becomes
available or performance trends change.
We incur expenses in connection with compliance with
environmental laws and regulations for investigation, monitoring and, in certain circumstances, remediation of environmental contamination at our current and certain of our
BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
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former operating locations. Under terms of the related divestiture agreements, we remain contractually obligated, as
between the buyer and us, for certain environmental claims
for any contamination determined to have occurred during
our ownership period for certain discontinued operations.
In certain limited circumstances, we maintain insurance
coverage for a portion of this exposure. We record a liability for our estimated non-insured obligations. We estimate
our environmental remediation obligations on a situation
by situation basis. These estimated obligations may be
increased or decreased as more information on specific
situations becomes available.
We incur expenses in connection with our self-insured
program for workers’ compensation costs. Under terms of
the related divestiture agreements, we remain contractually
obligated, as between the buyer and us, for workers’ compensation claims for injuries that occurred during our ownership period for certain discontinued operations. We
maintain insurance for a portion of this exposure and
record a liability for our estimated non-insured obligations.
We estimate our workers’ compensation obligations on a
case by case basis, in addition to consideration of the
potential liability for claims incurred but not yet reported.
These estimated obligations are frequently increased or
decreased as more information on specific cases becomes
available or performance trends change.
In 2006, we implemented FAS No. 123(R) under the
modified prospective approach. We expect to continue to
incur significant stock compensation expense in future
periods. Prior to 2006, we accounted for stock-based compensation under FAS No. 123 and provided pro-forma disclosure, but did not expense the majority of our stock-based
compensation. Under the modified prospective application
method, the results for prior periods have not been restated.
None of our outstanding stock awards were modified in
anticipation of the adoption of FAS No. 123(R). We determine the fair value of stock based awards using the BlackScholes model. We use the simplified method described in
SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 110 (“SAB 110”) for
estimated lives of stock options and SARs. Assumptions
for the risk-free interest rate, expected volatility and
dividend yield are based on historical information and
management estimates.
We determine our post-retirement obligations on an
actuarial basis that requires management to make certain
assumptions. These assumptions include the long-term rate
of return on plan assets, the discount rate to be used in calculating the applicable benefit obligation and the anticipated inflation trend in future health care costs. These
assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis and consideration is given to market conditions, applicable indices,
historical results, changes in regulations, as well as to the
requirements of FAS No. 158, “Employers Accounting for
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Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans”
(“FAS No. 158”).
The net post-retirement obligation is included in
employee benefit obligations on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The total post-retirement obligations are reduced
by the fair value of investment assets held in the related
pension plan trusts. These pension assets consist of ownership interests in various mutual and comingled investment
funds, which in turn hold investments in marketable debt
and equity instruments and other investment assets. The
fair value of these pension assets is determined in accordance with FAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”
(“FAS No. 157”). As specified in FAS No. 157, we determine the fair value of these assets by reference to quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities
where available (level 1). Where level 1 market prices are
not available, we utilize significant observable inputs
based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are not active and model-based valuations
for which all significant assumptions are observable
(level 2). Finally, if level 2 measurements are not available,
we utilize significant unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity that are significant to
the fair value of the assets or liabilities (level 3) to determine the fair values of such pension assets.
The weighted average assumed rate of return on pension
plan assets was 8.3% for 2008. This assumed rate of return
on plan assets is based on long-term historical rates of
return achieved on similar investments, weighted in the
same proportion as our current weighting, which is 55%
equity securities and 45% debt securities for the U.S. plan,
and 60% equities and 40% debt securities for the Canadian
plan. To validate this assumption, we obtained a study of
historical rates of return for similar investment categories
that calculated actual returns for randomly selected 20-year
periods of time over a much longer historical period. From
this study, we determined the range of most common
results between the 25th and 75th percentiles. We believe
this assumed rate of return is reasonable given the asset
composition, long-term historic trends and current economic
and financial market conditions. We anticipate using a
slightly lower assumed rate of return in 2009 and beyond,
reflecting management’s intent to implement a slightly more
conservative investment mix in the pension plan assets.
A weighted average discount rate assumption of 6.1%
was used to determine our plan liabilities at December 31,
2008, consisting of 5.75% for the U.S. plan and 7.50% for
the Canadian plan. The difference in discount rates
between the two plans is attributable to differences in the
relevant bond indices and market conditions between the
U.S. and Canada as of December 31, 2008. We believe
these discount rates are reasonable given comparable rates

for high quality corporate bonds with terms comparable to
the projected cash flows for our respective plans. To validate this assumption, we obtained published indices for
such bonds and our assumed discount rate is consistent
with these indices. To further help establish an appropriate
discount rate, we obtained the weighted average rate of
return on a hypothetical customized bond portfolio that
more closely matches the expected cash outflows of our
benefit obligation. Our assumed discount rate is consistent
with this customized bond portfolio rate of return and with
the relevant indices for similar debt securities.
We have assumed that health care costs will increase by
9% in 2009, 8% in 2010, 7% in 2011, 6% in 2012 and 5%
in 2013 and beyond. This assumption is based on historical
rates of inflation for health care costs and expectations for
future increases in health care costs.
Our annual post-retirement expenses can be significantly
impacted by changes in these assumptions. A 1% change
in the return on assets assumption would change annual
pension expense by $1.2 million in 2009. A 1% decrease in
the discount rate would increase pension expense by $2.1
million in 2009, and a 1% increase in the discount rate
would decrease pension expense by $1.8 million in 2009.
A 1% increase in the health care cost trend assumption for
2009 and beyond would increase annual post-retirement
medical costs by approximately $0.3 million per year and a
1% decrease in the health care cost trend assumption for
2009 and beyond would decrease annual post-retirement
medical costs by approximately $0.2 million a year.
Effective January 1, 2007, we account for uncertain tax
positions in accordance with FIN No. 48, which clarifies
the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized
in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with
FAS No. 109. The application of income tax law is inherently complex. Laws and regulations in this area are voluminous and are often ambiguous. As such, we are required
to make many assumptions and judgments regarding our
income tax exposures. Interpretations of income tax laws
and regulations and guidance surrounding them change
over time. Changes in our assumptions and judgments can
materially affect amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements. See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information on our uncertain
tax positions and the impact of adopting FIN No. 48.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax laws and
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled. Included in recorded tax liabilities are
estimated amounts related to uncertain tax positions. Actual

tax liabilities may differ materially from these estimates.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to
the amounts expected to be realized. As of December 31,
2008, we have a deferred tax asset valuation allowance of
$2.3 million, primarily related to foreign tax credit carryforwards and state tax net operating loss carryforwards.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, “Fair
Value Measurements” (“FAS No. 157”). FAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U. S., and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. We adopted FAS No. 157 for
financial assets and liabilities on January 1, 2008, with no
immediate effect on the consolidated financial statements.
As permitted by FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2,
“Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157”, we elected
to defer the adoption of SFAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial
assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. In February 2008, the FASB
issued Staff Position No. FAS 157-1, “Application of
FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and
Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair
Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification
or Measurement under Statement 13” (“FSP No. 157-1”).
We also adopted FSP No. 157-1 on January 1, 2008, with
no immediate effect on the consolidated financial statements. In October 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position
No. FAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial
Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active”
(“FSP No. 157-3”). We adopted FSP No. 157-3 on
October 1, 2008, with no immediate effect on the consolidated financial statements.
In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159, “Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities-Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115”
(“FAS No. 159”). FAS No. 159 permits entities to choose
to measure many financial instruments and certain other
items at fair value. We chose not to elect the fair value
option for our financial assets and liabilities existing at
January 1, 2008 and did not elect the fair value option on
financial assets and liabilities transacted subsequent to that
date. Therefore, FAS No. 159 has had no effect on our
consolidated financial statements.
In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141(R),
“Business Combinations” (“FAS No. 141(R)”).
FAS No. 141(R) replaces FAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” (“FAS No. 141”). The provisions of
FAS No. 141(R) are effective for us on January 1, 2009.
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The impact of adopting FAS No. 141(R) will depend on
the nature, terms and size of any business combinations
completed after the effective date. In addition, certain
transaction-related expenses that would have been capitalized as part of a transaction under FAS No. 141, will be
expensed as incurred under FAS No. 141(R) beginning
January 1, 2009.
In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements”
(“FAS No. 160”). FAS No. 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements.
The provisions of FAS No. 160 are effective for us on
January 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibited. The adoption of FAS No. 160 is not anticipated to have a material
impact on our financial position and results of operations.
In March 2008, the FASB issued FAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133”
(“FAS No. 161”). FAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an entity’s derivative and hedging activities.
The provisions of FAS No. 161 are effective for us on
January 1, 2009, and will result in expanded disclosures
about our derivative instruments and hedging activities.
In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position
No. FAS 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets” (“FSP No. 142-3”). This FASB Staff Position amends the factors that should be considered in
developing assumptions used to determine useful lives of
recognized intangible assets under FAS 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets”. The provisions of FSP
No. 142-3 are effective for us on January 1, 2009 and earlier adoption is prohibited. The impact of adopting FSP
No. 142-3 will depend on the nature, terms and size of any
business combinations completed after the effective date.
In December 2008 the FASB issued FASB Staff Position
No. FAS 132(R)-1, “Employers’ Disclosures about
Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets” (“FSP No. 132(R)-1”).
This FASB Staff Position amends FASB Statement
No. 132, Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other
Postretirement Benefits, to provide guidance on an
employer’s disclosures about plan assets of a defined benefit pension or other postretirement plan. The provisions of
FSP No. 132(R)-1 will be effective for us in our 2009
Form 10-K, and will result in expanded disclosures in our
financial statements.
Forward Looking Statements
“Forward looking statements,” as defined by the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, used in this
report, including without limitation our “outlook,” “guidance,” “expectations,” “beliefs,” “plans,” “indications,”
“estimates,” “anticipations,” and their variants, are based
upon available information and upon assumptions that the
Company believes are reasonable; however, these forward
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looking statements involve certain risks and uncertainties,
including those set forth in Item 1A, “Risk Factors”, and
should not be considered indicative of actual results that
the Company may achieve in the future. Specifically, issues
concerning foreign currency exchange rates, the cost to the
Company of commodities in general, and of steel in particular, the anticipated level of applicable interest rates, tax
rates, discount rates and rates of return and the anticipated
effects of discontinued operations involve estimates and
assumptions. To the extent that these, or any other such
assumptions, are not realized going forward, or other
unforeseen factors arise, actual results for the periods subsequent to the date of this report may differ materially.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market Risk
We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity
prices. We manage our exposure to these market risks
through our regular operating and financing activities, and,
when deemed appropriate, through the use of derivatives.
When utilized, derivatives are used as risk management
tools and not for trading or speculative purposes.
Interest Rate Risk. We manage our ratio of fixed to variable rate debt with the objective of achieving a mix that
management believes is appropriate. We have, on occasion,
entered into interest rate swap agreements to exchange
fixed and variable interest rates based on agreed upon notional amounts and we have entered into interest rate lock
contracts to hedge the interest rate of an anticipated debt
issue. A hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates would
decrease the fair value of our fixed rate long-term debt
outstanding by $5.5 million. A hypothetical 100 basis point
increase in the interest rates on our variable rate debt for
the duration of one year would have increased interest
expense by approximately $1.5 million in 2008. At
December 31, 2008 and 2007, no derivative financial
instruments were outstanding to hedge interest rate risk on
debt. Additionally, the interest rates available in certain
jurisdictions in which we hold excess cash may vary,
thereby affecting the return we earn on cash equivalent
short-term investments. At December 31, 2008 and 2007,
we had derivative financial instruments outstanding representing variable-to-fixed interest rate swaps on cash equivalents in Brazil to protect the return on those investments.
These contracts were not designated as hedging instruments. The total notional amount of such instruments was
$10.3 million at December 31, 2008 and $10.8 million at
December 31, 2007.
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk. Approximately 17% of our
sales and 26% of our operating costs and expenses were
transacted in foreign currencies in 2008. As a result,

fluctuations in exchange rates impact the amount of our reported sales and operating income. Historically, our principal exposures have been related to local currency operating
costs and expenses in Canada, Brazil and China, and local
currency sales and expenses in Europe and Japan. During
2008 and 2007, we used derivative instruments to protect
the U.S. Dollar value of cash equivalents held in Brazil. At
December 31, 2008 we had contracts outstanding to protect those investments from fluctuations in foreign currency.
In the fourth quarter of 2008, we entered into several contracts to hedge our currency exposure to Canadian Dollar
based production costs and operating expenses. We may
also, in the future, decide to manage some of our other
exposures to currency exchange rate fluctuations through
derivative products.
We make regular payments to our wholly-owned subsidiary in Canada, Blount Canada Ltd. (“Blount Canada”)
for contract manufacturing services performed on our behalf. In the latter part of 2008, we selectively hedged a portion of the anticipated payment transactions with Blount
Canada that were subject to foreign exchange exposure
using zero cost collar option contracts to manage our exposure to Canadian Dollar exchange rates. These zero cost
collar instruments are designated as cash flow hedges and
are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair
value. The effective portion of the contracts’ gains or
losses due to changes in fair value is initially recorded as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income
and is subsequently reclassified into earnings when we settle the hedged payment to Blount Canada. We use the hypothetical derivative method under FAS No. 133, as
amended by FAS 138 and FAS 149, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“FAS No. 133”)
to determine the hedge effectiveness of our zero cost collar
option contracts. These contracts are highly effective in
hedging the variability in future cash flows attributable to
changes in Canadian Dollar exchange rates. As of
December 31, 2008, the total notional amount of such contracts outstanding was $51.4 million. As of December 31,
2008 we did not have any zero cost collars mature which
would result in reclassification of accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings and we had not recognized
any amount in earnings due to ineffectiveness of the hedging instruments.
As of December 31, 2008, approximately 67% of our total
accounts receivable were owed to us by foreign customers. If
the U.S. Dollar strengthens against foreign currencies, as it
did during the latter half of 2008, it becomes more costly for
these foreign customers to pay their U.S. Dollar balances
owed. They may have difficulty in repaying these amounts,
and in turn, our bad debts expense may increase.

The table below illustrates the estimated effect on our
2008 operating results of a hypothetical 10% change in major currencies (defined for us as the Euro, Canadian Dollar,
Brazilian Real, Chinese RMB, Swiss Franc, Japanese Yen
and Swedish Krona):

(Amounts in thousands)

Euro
Canadian Dollar
Brazilian Real
Chinese RMB
Swiss Franc
Japanese Yen
Swedish Krona

Effect of 10% Weaker U.S. Dollar
Cost of Operating
Sales
Sales
Income

$ 6,076
1,068
–
–
–
900
859

$ (2,049)
(6,315)
(2,158)
(856)
(1,195)
(71)
(76)

$ 2,202
(5,752)
(2,602)
(959)
(1,195)
688
582

Commodity Price Risk. We secure raw materials through
purchasing functions at each of our manufacturing locations. These functions are staffed by professionals who determine the sourcing of materials by assessing quality,
availability, price and service of potential vendors. When
possible, multiple vendors are utilized to ensure competitive prices and to minimize risk of lack of availability of
materials. Some of these raw materials are subject to price
volatility over time. We have not hedged against the price
volatility of any raw materials by using any derivative
instruments during 2008, 2007 or 2006.
Raw material price volatility has not had a significant
impact on our results in recent years, with the exception
of steel pricing, where prices rose sharply in 2004 before
moderating somewhat in 2005 and 2006, rose somewhat in
2007 and rose sharply in 2008. We purchased approximately $82.4 million of steel in 2008, our largest sourced
commodity. A hypothetical 10% change in the price of
steel would have had an estimated $8.2 million effect on
pre-tax income in 2008. We utilize multiple suppliers to
purchase steel. We estimate the impact of price changes on
our cost of purchased steel were a decrease in costs of $1.0
million from 2005 to 2006, an increase of $1.0 million
from 2006 to 2007, and an increase of $7.9 million from
2007 to 2008. Some selling prices to our customers have
been increased, in part to offset the increase in steel commodity costs. We source many of our outdoor care products from Asia through brokers, and we anticipate
expanding this practice in the future. For example, we
believe that we can source certain components for gearrelated products at a lower cost from international locations. Historically, we have not incurred any significant
issues in sourcing internationally, in part due to the fact
that there are multiple suppliers for each of the products
we purchase.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Management of Blount International, Inc. is responsible
for the information and representations contained in this
report. The financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Reasonable judgments and estimates have been made
where necessary. Other financial information in this report
is consistent with these financial statements.
Our accounting systems include controls designed to
reasonably assure that assets are safeguarded from unauthorized use or disposition and that provide for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. These systems are supplemented by the selection and training of qualified financial
personnel and an organizational structure providing for appropriate segregation of duties.
Four directors of the Company, who are not members of
management, serve as the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors and are the principal means through which the
Board discharges its financial reporting responsibility. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the
independent registered public accounting firm and reviews
with the independent registered public accounting firm,
management and the internal auditors, the scope and the
results of the annual audit, the effectiveness of our internal
controls over financial reporting, disclosure controls and
procedures and other matters relating to financial reporting
and the financial affairs of Blount International, Inc. as
they deem appropriate. The independent registered public
accounting firm and the internal auditors have full access
to the Committee, with and without the presence of management, to discuss any appropriate matters.
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Management’s Report on Internal Controls Over Financial
Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Securities Exchange Act
Rules 13a -15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, our management conducted an evaluation of
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting based upon the criteria set forth in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Based on that evaluation, our management concluded that
our internal control over financial reporting was effective
as of December 31, 2008.
Management excluded the internal controls over financial reporting of Carlton, which was acquired by the Company during 2008 in a purchase business combination,
from its assessment of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2008. The acquired
Carlton business represented approximately 17% of the
Company’s total assets as of December 31, 2008 and
approximately 7% of its consolidated net revenues for the
year then ended.
Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide
absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives because of their inherent limitations. Internal control
over financial reporting is a process that involves human
diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Internal
control over financial reporting also can be circumvented
by collusion or improper management override. Because of
such limitations, there is a risk that material misstatements
may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the financial reporting
process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process
safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, this risk.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered
public accounting firm that has audited the consolidated financial statements, has also audited the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2008 as stated in their report which appears herein.
/s/ James S. Osterman

/s/ Calvin E. Jenness

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Blount
International, Inc.:
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Blount
International Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2008
and December 31, 2007, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2008 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule
listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein
when read in conjunction with the related consolidated
financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements, on the financial statement schedule, and on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based
on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement and whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the financial statements included
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for uncertain tax positions as of January 1, 2007.
As discussed in Notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in
which it accounts for defined benefit pension and other
post-retirement benefit plans as of December 31, 2006.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting, management has excluded its
Carlton operations from its assessment of internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 because it
was acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during 2008. We have also excluded Carlton from
our audit of internal control over financial reporting. Carlton’s total assets and total net revenues represent approximately 17% and 7%, respectively, of the related
consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2008.
/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Portland, Oregon
March 10, 2009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Retirement plan redesign
Operating income
Interest income
Interest expense
Other income (expense), net
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations
Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before taxes
Income tax provision (benefit)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Net income
Basic income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net income
Weighted average shares used in per share calculation:
Basic
Diluted
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$ 597,035 $ 515,535 $ 487,494
404,263
340,578
313,815
192,772
174,957
173,679
105,292
94,257
89,472
–
–
3,747
87,480
80,700
80,460
1,389
1,360
378
(27,094)
(33,066)
(35,782)
1,813
(821)
1,335
63,588
48,173
46,391
24,745
16,030
13,746
38,843
32,143
32,645
(589)
(345)
(244)
$ 38,599 $
$
$
$
$

25,794
15,080
10,714
42,857

20,055
10,154
9,901
$ 42,546

0.82 $
(0.01)
0.81 $

0.68
0.23
0.91

$

0.81 $
(0.01)
0.80 $

0.67
0.22
0.89

$

47,510
48,130

47,280
48,078

$

$

0.69
0.21
0.90
0.68
0.21
0.89
47,145
47,868

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
December 31,
2008
2007

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $3,800 and $2,181 respectively
Inventories, net
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

$

Total current assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficit
Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred income taxes
Total current liabilities

$

57,589
67,818
70,273
5,536
16,393

244,564

217,609

119,749
6,679
21,679
13,864
1,429
66,071
25,649

89,729
10,698
14,849
–
–
48,984
30,080

$ 499,684

$ 411,949

$

$

Property, plant and equipment, net
Deferred financing costs
Deferred income taxes
Intangible assets
Assets held for sale
Goodwill
Other assets
Total Assets

58,275
75,555
90,302
5,492
14,940

31,981
28,864
55,235
498

1,242
29,799
57,447
533

116,578

89,021

Long-term debt, excluding current maturities
Deferred income taxes
Employee benefit obligations
Other liabilities

293,539
2,223
93,898
36,966

295,758
–
48,948
32,368

Total liabilities

543,204

466,095

476
579,930
(579,548)
(44,378)

473
575,595
(618,147)
(12,067)

(43,520)

(54,146)

Commitments and contingent liabilities
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized,
47,614,236 and 47,291,647 outstanding, respectively
Capital in excess of par value of stock
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total stockholders’ (deficit)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ (Deficit)

$ 499,684

$ 411,949

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Early extinguishment of debt
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization
Stock compensation and other non-cash charges
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of impact of acquisitions:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Discontinued operations
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of assets
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of Carlton, net of cash acquired
Discontinued operations
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowings (repayments) under revolving credit facility
Repayment of term debt principal
Issuance costs related to debt
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and warrants
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2008

Year Ended December 31,
2007
2006

$ 38,843

$ 32,143

$ 32,645

–
21,212
7,351
4,157
(463)
3,166
(1,543)

625
17,641
3,951
1,245
(114)
11,059
675

1
15,058
3,729
5,140
(747)
13,025
(774)

5,945
(10,986)
4,461
(7,286)
1,995
(1,330)
(4,318)
61,204

3,585
(13,409)
(3,672)
4,680
(7,451)
(16,571)
(5,209)
29,178

1,337
2,749
(3,750)
2,601
(7,145)
(9,599)
4,345
58,615

1,632
(26,058)
(64,399)
1,725
(87,100)

2,309
(18,517)
–
69,071
52,863

1,244
(21,653)
–
30,900
10,491

30,750
(2,230)
–
463
606
29,589
(3,007)
686
57,589
$ 58,275

(27,000)
(26,875)
(700)
114
210
(54,251)
2,163
29,953
27,636
$ 57,589

27,000
(83,848)
(700)
747
993
(55,808)
1,401
14,699
12,937
$ 27,636

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Shares
(in 000’s)

Common
Stock

Capital in
Excess
of Par

Balance December 31, 2005
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized losses
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Comprehensive income, net
Cumulative effect of adopting FAS No. 158
Exercise of stock options
Stock compensation expense

47,004
–

$ 470
–

$ 566,692
–

–
–
–
–
–
239
–

–
–
–
–
–
2
–

–
–
–
–
–
1,738
3,253

Balance December 31, 2006

47,243

472

571,683

–

–

–

42,857

–

42,857

–
–
–
–
49
–

–
–
–
–
1
–

–
–
–
–
323
3,589

–
–
–
–
–
–

1,718
1,315
1,342
–
–
–

1,718
1,315
1,342
47,232
324
3,589

47,292

473

575,595

(12,067)

(54,146)

–

–

–

38,599

–
–
–
–
322
–

–
–
–
–
3
–

–
–
–
–
1,066
3,269

–
–
–
–
–
–

47,614

$ 476

$ 579,930

(Amounts in thousands)

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized gains
Pension liability adjustment
Comprehensive income, net
Exercise of stock options
Stock compensation expense
Balance December 31, 2007
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Unrealized losses
Pension liability adjustment
Comprehensive income, net
Exercise of stock options
Stock compensation expense
Balance December 31, 2008

Accumulated
Deficit

$ (703,550)
42,546
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(661,004)

(618,147)

$ (579,548)

Total

$ (8,799) $ (145,187)
–
42,546
1,682
(27)
2,957
–
(12,255)
–
–

1,682
(27)
2,957
47,158
(12,255)
1,740
3,253

(16,442)

(105,291)

–
(1,574)
(2,524)
(28,213)
–
–
–

38,599
(1,574)
(2,524)
(28,213)
6,288
1,069
3,269

$ (44,378) $ (43,520)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTE 1: BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business. Headquartered in Portland, Oregon, Blount
International, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) is a
manufacturer of equipment, accessories and replacement
parts to the global forestry, yard care and general contractor
industries. The Company manufactures and markets branded
products in focused end markets, serving professional loggers, construction workers, homeowners, equipment dealers
and distributors and original equipment manufacturers
(“OEMs”). The Company’s products include cutting chain,
guide bars, sprockets and accessories for chainsaws, lawnmower blades and other accessories for lawn and garden
equipment, concrete-cutting equipment and accessories,
mobile equipment rotational bearings, worm gear reducers
and swing drives. The Company maintains manufacturing
facilities in the U.S., Canada, Brazil and China.
Basis of Presentation. In the opinion of management, the
consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments
(consisting of only normal recurring adjustments)
necessary to present fairly the financial position at
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of operations
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2008.
Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include
the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries and are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.
Foreign Currency. For foreign subsidiaries whose operations
are principally conducted in U.S. Dollars, monetary assets and
liabilities are translated into U.S. Dollars at the current exchange rate, while other assets (principally property, plant and
equipment and inventories) and related costs and expenses are
generally translated at historic exchange rates. Sales and other
costs and expenses are translated at the average exchange rate
for the period and the resulting foreign exchange adjustments
are recognized in income. Assets and liabilities of the remaining foreign operations are translated to U.S. Dollars at the current exchange rate and their statements of income are
translated at the average exchange rate for the period. Gains
and losses resulting from translation of the financial statements of these operations are reflected as “other comprehensive income” in stockholders’ equity (deficit).
Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and the
components of equity and the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements, as well
38

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Estimates are used when accounting for
the allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory obsolescence, goodwill and other long-lived assets, product warranties, casualty insurance costs, product liability reserves
and related expenses, other legal proceedings, employee
benefit plans, income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities, discontinued operations and contingencies. It is reasonably possible that actual results could differ materially
from those estimates and assumptions and significant
changes to estimates could occur in the near term.
Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers cash
equivalents to be all highly liquid temporary cash investments, with original maturities of 90 days or less, that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and present
minimal risk of changes in value because of changes in
interest rates.
Inventories. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or
market. The Company determines the cost of most raw
materials, work in process and finished goods inventories by
the first in, first out (“FIFO”) or average cost methods. The
Company writes down its inventories for estimated obsolete
or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference between the
cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon
assumptions about future demand and market conditions.
Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment
is stated at cost and is depreciated on the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets. The
principal ranges of estimated useful lives for depreciation
purposes are as follows: buildings and improvements: 10 to
45 years; machinery and equipment: 3 to 10 years; furniture,
fixtures and office equipment: 3 to 10 years; and transportation equipment: 3 to 15 years. Gains or losses on disposal are
reflected in income. Property, plant and equipment under
capital lease is capitalized with the related obligations stated
at the principal portion of future lease payments.
Interest cost incurred during the period of construction
of plant and equipment is capitalized. No material amounts
of interest were capitalized on plant and equipment during
the three years ended December 31, 2008.
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets with Indefinite Useful Lives.

The Company accounts for goodwill, and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and other
Intangible Assets” (“FAS No. 142”). Under the provisions of
FAS No. 142, the Company performs an annual review for
impairment at the reporting unit level. The Company also performs an impairment analysis whenever circumstances indicate that an impairment may have occurred. The impairment
tests are performed by estimating the fair values of the reporting units using a discounted cash flow model and comparing
those fair values to the carrying values of the reporting units,
including goodwill. The sum of the fair values of the reporting units is reconciled to the Company’s current market capitalization plus an estimated control premium. If the fair value

of a reporting unit is less than its carrying value, the Company
then allocates the fair value of the unit to all the assets and liabilities of that unit, including any unrecognized intangible assets, as if the reporting unit’s fair value was the price to
acquire the reporting unit. The excess of the fair value of the
reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of the goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the
implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. Events or changes
in circumstances may occur that could create underperformance relative to projected future cash flows that would
create future impairments. No goodwill impairments have
been recognized in 2008, 2007 or 2006.
Deferred Financing Costs. The Company capitalizes costs
incurred in connection with borrowings or establishment
of credit facilities. These costs are amortized as an adjustment to interest expense over the life of the borrowing or
life of the credit facility using the straight line method. In
the case of early debt principal repayments, the Company
adjusts the value of the corresponding deferred financing
costs with a charge to other expense, and similarly adjusts
the future amortization expense.
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. The Company evaluates
the carrying value of long-lived assets to be held and used,
including finite lived intangible assets, whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable. The carrying value of a long-lived
asset is considered impaired when the total projected undiscounted cash flows from such asset are separately identifiable and are less than its carrying value. In that event, a loss
is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying
value exceeds the fair value of the long-lived asset. Fair
value is determined primarily using the projected cash
flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved. Losses on long-lived assets to be disposed of are
determined in a similar manner, except that fair values are
reduced for disposal costs. During 2006, the Company recognized an impairment charge of $1.5 million on property,
plant and equipment formerly used by its discontinued
Lawnmower segment. Also in 2006, the Company recognized an impairment charge of $0.8 million on property,
plant and equipment in Menominee, Michigan formerly
used by its Industrial and Power Equipment segment. No
impairment charges were recognized in 2007 or 2008.
Income Taxes. In accordance with FAS No. 109, deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Included in recorded tax liabilities
are estimated amounts related to uncertain tax positions. Actual tax liabilities may differ materially from these estimates.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax laws and rates expected to apply to taxable income
in the years in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred
tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax laws or rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts expected to
be realized. The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 includes a deduction of up to 9 percent (when fully phased-in)
of “qualified production activities income,” as defined in the
law and subject to certain limitations. The benefit of this deduction is accounted for as a special deduction when realized in accordance with FASB Staff Position No. 109-1.
Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted
FIN No. 48. There was no material adjustment to the net liability for uncertain tax positions as a result of the adoption of FIN No. 48. However, uncertain tax positions that
were previously netted on the balance sheet have been reported separately since January 1, 2007. The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to uncertain tax
positions as income tax expense.
Product Liability. The Company monitors claims that relate
to the alleged malfunction or defects of its products that
may result in an injury to the equipment operator or others.
The Company records an accrued liability and charge to
cost of sales for its estimated obligation as claims are incurred and evaluated. The accrual may increase or decrease
as additional information regarding claims is developed.
Insurance Accruals. It is the Company’s policy to retain a
portion of expected losses related to general and product liability, workers’ compensation and vehicle liability losses
through retentions or deductibles under its risk management
and insurance programs. Provisions for losses expected under
these programs are recorded based on estimates of the ultimate undiscounted aggregate liabilities for claims incurred.
Warranty. The Company offers certain warranties with
the sale of its products. An estimate of warranty costs is
recognized at the time the related revenue is recognized
and the warranty obligation is recorded as a charge to cost
of sales and as a liability on the balance sheet. Warranty
cost is estimated using historical customer claims, supplier
performance and new product performance.
Derivative Financial Instruments. The Company accounts for
derivative financial instruments in accordance with
FAS No. 133. The Company’s earnings and cash flows are
subject to fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. The Company’s risk management policy allows for the use of derivative
financial instruments to manage foreign currency exchange
rate, interest rate, and commodity price exposures prudently.
The policy specifies that derivatives are not to be used for
speculative purposes. All derivatives are recognized on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair value. As of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, derivatives consisted of foreign
currency hedge instruments and interest rate swaps. See also
Note 18. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging derivative
instruments are reported in current earnings. Changes in the
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fair value of hedging derivative instruments are recognized in
other comprehensive income, until the instrument is settled, at
which time the gain or loss is recognized in current earnings.
Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence that a sales arrangement exists, title and risk
of loss have passed, the price to the customer is fixed or
determinable and collectability is reasonably assured,
which has historically been upon the date of shipment of
product for the majority of the Company’s sales transactions. There are an insignificant amount of shipments with
FOB destination or similar shipping terms, for which revenue is not recognized until delivery has occurred.
Shipping and Handling Costs. The Company incurs expenses
for the shipment of goods to customers. These expenses are
recognized in the period in which they occur and are classified as gross revenues if billed to the customer and cost of
goods sold if incurred by the Company in accordance with
the Emerging Issues Task Force’s Issue (EITF) 00-10,
“Accounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Costs”.
Sales Incentives. The Company provides various sales incentives to customers in the form of coupons, rebates, discounts,
free product and advertising allowances. The estimated cost of
such expenses is recorded at the time of revenue recognition
and recorded as a reduction to revenue, with the exception
that free product is recorded as cost of sales, in accordance
with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) 01-9, “Accounting
for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer”.
Advertising. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, except for cooperative advertising allowances, which are accrued
over the period the revenues are recognized. Advertising costs
from continuing operations were $5.4 million, $5.0 million and
$4.7 million for 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Research and Development. Expenditures for research and
development are expensed as incurred and include costs of
direct labor, indirect labor, materials and outside services.
These costs were $8.4 million, $6.5 million and $6.6
million for 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively.
Reclassifications. Certain amounts in the prior years’ financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. Such reclassifications had no impact
on previously reported net income or net stockholders’ deficit.
Due to increased cash balances at the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries, and increased volatility in the movement of
foreign currency exchange rates, the Company has presented the effect of exchange rate changes as a separate
component on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
Previously, the effect of exchange rate changes on cash
flows was embedded within the cash flows from operating
activities section of the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows; however, such amounts were not material. The presentation of cash flows for prior years has been corrected to
the current year presentation.
NOTE 2: ACQUISITION OF CARLTON HOLDINGS, INC.

On May 2, 2008, the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Carlton Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries
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(“Carlton”), a manufacturer of cutting chain for chainsaws
located near Portland, Oregon. The Company paid a total of
$66.2 million in cash for Carlton, including related acquisition costs of $1.5 million, and also assumed liabilities totaling $21.3 million. Carlton had $1.8 million in cash on the
date of acquisition, resulting in a net cash outflow of
$64.4 million for the acquisition. The acquisition was financed
with a combination of cash on hand and $58.5 million borrowed under the Company’s revolving credit facility. The
operating results of Carlton are included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements from May 2, 2008 forward.
The Company accounted for the acquisition in accordance
with FAS No. 141. Accordingly, Carlton’s assets and liabilities were recorded at their estimated fair values on the date
of acquisition. The Company estimated the fair value of assets using various methods and considering, among other
factors, projected discounted cash flows, replacement cost
less an allowance for depreciation, recent comparable transactions, and historical book values. The Company estimated
the fair value of inventory by considering the stage of completion of the inventory, estimated costs to complete the
manufacturing process and the normal gross profit margin
typically associated with its sale. The Company estimated
the fair value of liabilities assumed considering the historical book values and projected future cash flows. A summary
of the purchase price allocation for the fair value of the
assets acquired and the obligations assumed at the date of
the acquisition is presented below.
Summary of Carlton Preliminary Purchase Price Allocation
(Amounts in thousands)

Cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $1,590
Inventories
Current intangible asset subject to amortization
Other current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Noncurrent intangible assets subject to amortization
Goodwill and other intangible assets
not subject to amortization
Non-current deferred tax asset
Total assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liability
Total liabilities assumed
Cash paid for acquisition, before consideration of
cash acquired

May 2, 2008

$ 1,801
14,808
9,958
1,240
348
26,703
8,790
22,587
1,267
87,502
7,645
3,430
10,227
21,302
$ 66,200

Reflected in the consolidated results of operations for
2008 are non-cash charges totaling $3.5 million for amortization of intangible assets, depreciation of the step-up to
fair value for property, plant and equipment and expensing
of the step-up to fair value related to inventories.

The following table summarizes the Company’s intangible assets:

Life
In Years

(Amounts in thousands)

Goodwill, Carlton acquisition
Goodwill, previous acquisitions

December 31, 2008
Gross
Carrying
Accumulated
Amount
Amortization

Indefinite
Indefinite

Total goodwill
Trademarks and trade names
Backlog
Covenant not to compete
Customer relationships

Indefinite
0.7
3
10

Total intangible assets

Amortization expense was $1.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008. No amortization expense was
incurred in 2006 or 2007. Amortization expense for these
intangible assets is expected to total $1.5 million in each of
2009 and 2010; $1.3 million in 2011; $1.1 million in 2012
and $1.0 million in 2013.
The following unaudited pro forma results present the
estimated effect as if the acquisition had occurred on the
first day of each period presented. The unaudited pro

December 31, 2007
Gross
Carrying
Accumulated
Amount
Amortization

$ 17,087
48,984

–
–

–
$ 48,984

–
–

66,071

–

48,984

–

5,500
1,240
590
8,200

–
$ 1,240
131
295

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

$ 81,601

$ 1,666

$ 48,984

–

forma results include the historical results of Carlton, pro
forma purchase accounting effects for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the pro forma interest expense
effects of additional borrowings to fund the transaction and
the related pro forma income tax effects. In addition to the
pro forma amortization of tangible and intangible asset adjustments to fair value, the unaudited pro forma results for
each period presented include a charge of $1.7 million to
expense the adjustment of inventory to estimated fair value.
2008

2007

As Reported

Pro Forma
(Unaudited)

As Reported

Pro Forma
(Unaudited)

Sales
Net income

$ 597,035
38,599

$ 617,178
38,830

$ 515,535
42,857

$ 571,302
40,594

Basic income per share

$

$

$

$

(Amounts in thousands)

Diluted income per share

NOTE 3: DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Discontinued Forestry Division. On November 5, 2007, the
Company sold its Forestry Division, which constituted the
majority of the Industrial and Power Equipment segment, to
Caterpillar Forest Products Inc., a subsidiary of Caterpillar
Inc., for gross proceeds of $79.1 million. Under the terms of
the related purchase agreement, $8.8 million of the gross
proceeds are initially held in escrow for up to three years
from the transaction date. The Company recognized a pretax
gain of $26.0 million net of related transaction expenses on
the sale in 2007. This division accounted for 26% of 2006
consolidated sales and 21% of consolidated sales for the
first nine months of 2007. The Forestry Division is reported
as discontinued operations for all periods presented. This division was headquartered in Zebulon, North Carolina and
manufactured and marketed timber harvesting and handling
equipment and industrial tractors and loaders. The division
had manufacturing facilities in Owatonna, Minnesota; Prentice, Wisconsin; and Söderhamn, Sweden. The sale included
the disposition of the Forestry Division’s recorded goodwill
in the amount of $22.9 million. The Company retained certain

0.81
0.80

0.82
0.81

0.91
0.89

0.86
0.84

liabilities related to the business, as well as an idle
manufacturing facility located in Menominee, Michigan. In
December 2007, the land and building in Menominee,
Michigan were sold for net cash proceeds of $0.5 million.
Discontinued Lawnmower Segment. On July 27, 2006, the
Company sold certain of the assets and liabilities of Dixon
Industries, Inc. (“Dixon”) to Husqvarna Professional Outdoor Products, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Husqvarna AB.
Dixon had previously been reported as the Company’s
Lawnmower segment. The Company received gross proceeds
of $33.1 million and recognized a pretax gain of $17.4 million net of related transaction expenses on the sale in 2006.
The Lawnmower segment accounted for 7.5% of consolidated sales for the first six months of 2006. The Lawnmower
segment is reported as discontinued operations for all periods
presented. Dixon was located in Coffeyville, Kansas, and
manufactured zero-turn radius riding lawnmowers and related attachments. The sale included the disposition of
Dixon’s recorded goodwill in the amount of $5.0 million.
Certain liabilities of Dixon, as well as the land, building,
building improvements, certain machinery and equipment
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and various other assets related to its Coffeyville, Kansas facility, were retained by the Company by merger of Dixon
with and into 4520 Corp. Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The land and building were sold in
September 2007 for net cash proceeds of $1.5 million.
Discontinued operations are summarized as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Sales
Operating income (loss)
Gain on disposition of
net assets

December 31,
2007

2008

2006

– $ 111,934 $ 196,826
$ (589)
(195)
2,689
–

25,989

17,366

(589)

25,794

20,055

Income tax provision (benefit)

(345)

15,080

10,154

$ (244) $ 10,714 $

9,901

The 2008 results consist of wind down and wrap up activities related primarily to the discontinued Forestry Division. Included in the operating loss for 2007 are charges
totaling $4.5 million for employee severance, employee
benefits, transition costs and closure costs. Included in the
operating income for 2006 are charges totaling $8.0
million for employee severance and benefits costs, impairment of assets and closure costs.

December 31,
2008
2007

(Amounts in thousands)

Raw materials and supplies
Work in progress
Finished goods
Total inventories

$ 14,260
14,169
61,873

$ 9,297
14,701
46,275

$ 90,302

$ 70,273

The balance at December 31, 2008 includes $10.6
million related to Carlton.
NOTE 5: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following:
December 31,
2008
2007

(Amounts in thousands)
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Balance at December 31, 2007
Amortization during period

$ 10,698
(4,019)

Balance at December 31, 2008

$ 6,679

Scheduled amortization, assuming no further cost deferrals or prepayments of principal, is as follows:
Estimated
Annual
Amortization

(Amounts in thousands)

2009
2010
2011
2012

$ 3,262
1,729
1,067
621

Total amortization

$ 6,679

Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

Inventories consisted of the following:

Total property, plant and
equipment, net

Deferred financing costs represent costs incurred in conjunction with the Company’s debt financing activities and
are amortized over the term of the related debt instruments.
Deferred financing costs and the related amortization
expense are adjusted when any pre-payments of principal
are made to the related outstanding term loan. See also
Note 8. During the year ended December 31, 2008, the
following occurred:

NOTE 7: ACCRUED EXPENSES

NOTE 4: INVENTORIES

Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment
Transportation equipment
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation

NOTE 6: DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

(Amounts in thousands)

Income (loss) before taxes
from discontinued operations

Income (loss) from
discontinued operations

The balance at December 31, 2008 includes $26.0
million related to Carlton.

$

7,469
57,782
210,683

$

29,537
865
14,267
(200,854)
$ 119,749

4,882
51,251
186,076
28,419
662
5,491
(187,052)

$

89,729

(Amounts in thousands)

December 31,
2008
2007

Salaries, wages and related withholdings $ 22,923
Accrued interest
6,908
Employee benefits
5,526
Advertising
4,530
Accrued customer incentive programs
4,684
Product liability
2,820
Unrealized loss on foreign currency hedges
1,837
Accrued professional services fees
1,795
Accrued taxes
785
Other
3,427
Total accrued expenses

$ 55,235

$ 26,455
7,205
4,467
2,985
4,261
3,506
–
1,605
1,550
5,413
$ 57,447

NOTE 8: DEBT AND FINANCING AGREEMENTS

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
(Amounts in thousands)

Revolving credit facility borrowings
Term loans
87⁄8% Senior subordinated notes
Total debt
Less current maturities
Total long-term debt

December 31,
2008
2007

$ 30,750
119,770
175,000
325,520
(31,981)
$ 293,539

–
$ 122,000
175,000
297,000
(1,242)
$ 295,758

Minimum principal payments required are as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

2009
2010
2011
2012
Total debt

Payments

$ 31,981
118,539
–
175,000
$ 325,520

The weighted average interest rate on outstanding debt
as of December 31, 2008 was 6.42%.
87⁄8% Senior Subordinated Notes. The Company has one registered debt security, the 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes.
The interest rate on these notes is fixed until their maturity
on August 1, 2012. These notes are subject to redemption
at any time at the option of the Company, in whole or in
part, at redemption prices of 104.438% through July 31,
2009; 102.219% from August 1, 2009 through July 31,
2010; and at 100% on August 1, 2010 and thereafter. These
notes are issued by the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Blount, Inc. and are fully and unconditionally,
jointly and severally, guaranteed by the Company and all of
its domestic subsidiaries (“guarantor subsidiaries”) other
than Blount, Inc. All guarantor subsidiaries of these 87⁄8%
senior subordinated notes are 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. While the Company and all of its
domestic subsidiaries guarantee these 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes, none of Blount’s existing foreign subsidiaries
(“non-guarantor subsidiaries”) guarantee these notes. See
also Note 19.
Senior Credit Facilities. The Company, through its whollyowned subsidiary, Blount, Inc., first entered into a credit
agreement with General Electric Capital Corporation as
Agent on May 15, 2003. The agreement was amended and
restated on August 9, 2004, and has had several subsequent
amendments. The senior credit facilities consist of a term
loan facility and a revolving credit facility.
2006 Amendment to Credit Facilities. On March 23, 2006,
the Company amended certain terms of the senior credit
facilities. This amendment included the following changes:
 Maximum availability under the revolving credit facility
was increased from $100.0 million to $150.0 million;

 Interest rates were reduced by 0.75% for the term loans
and 1.00% for the revolving credit facility;
 Certain financial covenants were modified, including increases to the amounts that may be paid for acquisitions,
dividends and repurchase of Company stock, as well as
modifications to certain financial ratio requirements; and
 The Company incurred fees and third party costs of
$0.7 million related to the amendment.
Immediately following the amendment, the Company
completed the following transactions:
 $82.1 million was borrowed under the revolving credit
facility;
 The total principal balance of $4.6 million was paid off
on a Canadian term loan, and that loan was cancelled;
and
 $77.5 million in principal was paid against the term
loans, leaving a balance of $150.0 million outstanding.
2007 Amendment to Credit Facilities. On November 5, 2007,
the Company amended certain terms of the senior credit
facilities. No changes were made to the interest rates, principal amounts, maturity dates or payment schedules of the
debt or to the availability of credit under the agreement.
This amendment included the following changes:
 The agreement was modified to allow the Company to
sell its Forestry Division on the same day as the effective
date of the amendment;
 Certain covenants, terms and conditions were modified
in the credit agreement, including an increased allowance for acquisitions, reduced reporting requirements
and a reduction in the required senior leverage ratio; and
 The Company incurred fees and third party costs of
$0.7 million related to the amendment.
The revolving credit facility provides for total available
borrowings up to $150.0 million, reduced by outstanding
letters of credit and further restricted by a specific leverage
ratio and first lien credit facilities leverage ratio. As of
December 31, 2008, the Company had the ability to borrow an additional $115.2 million under the terms of the
revolving credit agreement. The revolving credit facility
bears interest at the LIBOR rate plus 1.75%, or at the
prime rate, depending on the type of loan, and matures on
August 9, 2009. Interest is payable monthly in arrears on
any prime rate borrowing and at the individual maturity
dates for any LIBOR-based borrowing. Any outstanding
principal is due in its entirety on the maturity date.
The term loan facility bears interest at the LIBOR rate
plus 1.75%, or at the prime rate, depending on the type of
loan, and matures on August 9, 2010. The term loan facility requires quarterly payments of $0.3 million, with a
final payment of $117.6 million due on the maturity date.
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Once repaid, principal under the term loan facility may not
be re-borrowed by the Company.
The amended and restated senior credit facilities contain
financial covenant calculations relating to maximum capital expenditures, minimum fixed charge coverage ratio,
maximum leverage ratio and maximum first lien credit facilities leverage ratio. In addition, there are covenants and
restrictions relating to, among other categories, investments, loans and advances, indebtedness, dividends on our
stock and the sale of stock or assets. The Company was in
compliance with all debt covenants as of December 31,
2008.
The amended and restated senior credit facilities may be
prepaid at any time. There can also be additional mandatory
repayment requirements related to the sale of Company
assets, the issuance of stock under certain circumstances or
upon the Company’s annual generation of excess cash flow,
as determined under the credit agreement.
Blount International, Inc. and all of its domestic subsidiaries other than Blount, Inc. guarantee Blount, Inc.’s
obligations under the senior credit facilities. The obligations under the senior credit facilities are collateralized by
a first priority security interest in substantially all of the
assets of Blount, Inc. and its domestic subsidiaries, as well
as a pledge of all of Blount, Inc.’s capital stock held by
Blount International, Inc. and all of the stock of domestic
subsidiaries held by Blount, Inc. Blount, Inc. has also
pledged 65% of the stock of its non-domestic subsidiaries
as additional collateral.
NOTE 9: INCOME TAXES

The provision (benefit) for income taxes was as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Current
Federal
State
Foreign
Deferred
Federal
State
Foreign
Provision for income taxes

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

$ 10,717
(6)
9,797

$ 15,155
1,436
1,511

3,081
794
17

11,711
1,891
(594)

10,100
1,844
1,080

24,400

31,110

23,900

The provision (benefit) is reported as follows:
Continuing operations
24,745
16,030
Discontinued operations
(345)
15,080
Provision for income taxes
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$ 1,609
1,747
7,520

$ 24,400

$ 31,110

13,746
10,154
$ 23,900

The Company also recorded the following deferred tax
amounts directly to the components of stockholders’ equity
(deficit):
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

(Amounts in thousands)

Pension liability
adjustment
Change in unrealized
losses/gains
Stock options exercised

$ 17,286

$ (2,896)

246
463

785
114

$ 9,319
91
747

Income from continuing operations before income taxes
was as follows:
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

(Amounts in thousands)

Income before income taxes:
Domestic
$ 34,506
Foreign
29,082

$ 33,943
14,230

$ 13,481
32,910

Total

$ 48,173

$ 46,391

$ 63,588

A reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for income
taxes from continuing operations to the amount computed
by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income
from continuing operations before income taxes was as
follows:
% of income (loss) before tax
2008
2007
2006

Statutory tax rate
35.0%
Impact of earnings of
foreign operations
(0.6)
Repatriation of foreign earnings
2.3
Federal and state research tax credits (0.7)
State income taxes, net of
federal tax benefit
1.0
Permanent differences
1.3
Change in estimated contingencies
2.0
Other
(1.4)
Effective income tax rate
before valuation allowance
Valuation allowance
Effective income tax rate after
valuation allowance

38.9

35.0%

35.0%

(8.4)
1.3
(0.2)

(6.1)
1.4
(0.3)

3.8
(0.9)
2.3
1.1

4.2
(10.6)
7.6
(0.5)

34.0

30.7

–

(0.7)

(1.1)

38.9%

33.3%

29.6%

The effective income tax rate increased from 33.3% in 2007
to 38.9% in 2008 primarily due to taxable foreign currency
gains at foreign subsidiaries driven by the stronger U.S.
Dollar. The Company also experienced a significant shift in
the relative proportion of pre-tax income earned in foreign locations compared to domestic locations. These increases were
partially offset by a lower state effective income tax rate. The
effective income tax rate increased in 2007 to 33.3%, from
29.6% in 2006, primarily due to the discontinued special deduction for U.S. export sales, partially offset by the domestic
activities production deduction. The effective income tax rate

in 2006 was 29.6%, reflecting benefits derived from an adjustment to the tax rate applied to deferred tax items, partially
offset by increases in estimated contingencies.
The components of deferred income tax assets (liabilities) applicable to temporary differences at December 31,
2008 and 2007 are as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Employee benefits and compensation
Other accrued expenses
Net operating loss, capital loss
and credit carryforwards
Other
Foreign
Gross deferred tax assets
Less valuation allowance
Deferred tax assets net of
valuation allowance
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment
and intangible asset basis differences
Foreign
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax asset

December 31,
2008
2007

$ 38,358
6,077

$ 22,547
4,282

2,854
437
1,374

3,158
–
2,138

49,100
(2,348)

32,125
(2,318)

46,752

29,807

(19,580)
(2,720)
–

(8,603)
(533)
(819)

(22,300)

(9,955)

$ 24,450

$ 19,852

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had no remaining
U.S. NOL carryforwards but had state NOL carryforwards
estimated at $23.6 million that expire at various dates from
2011 through 2024. Additionally, the Company has a foreign
tax credit carryforward of approximately $1.7 million that
expires in 2010. The Company also has state research and
other tax credit carryforwards of approximately $0.2 million
that expire at various dates from 2009 through 2021.
The Company had recorded valuation allowances of
$2.3 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, pertaining
to certain tax credit and state NOL carryforwards, which
are not expected to be realized before they expire.
U.S. income taxes have not been provided on undistributed earnings of international subsidiaries. Management’s
intention is to reinvest these earnings indefinitely. As of
December 31, 2008, undistributed earnings of international
subsidiaries were approximately $126.5 million. Repatriation of foreign earnings in 2008, 2007 and 2006 pertained
to current earnings of one foreign subsidiary.
The periods from 2001 through 2007 remain open for review by the Internal Revenue Service. The U.S. Internal
Revenue Service is currently examining our U.S. income
tax return for the year ended December 31, 2005. In 2005,
the Company entered into a Bilateral Advance Pricing
Agreement (“BAPA”) negotiation with the Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) and the Internal Revenue Service.
This negotiation, now expected to take an additional six to

twelve months to complete, is intended to eliminate taxation of the same profits by both governments. The Company is pursuing the BAPA in order to bring certainty with
respect to transfer pricing between the U.S. and Canada.
The BAPA agreement will cover the years 2002 through
2011. For this reason, the Company released its reserve for
contingency related to this matter in 2004.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of
unrecognized tax benefits are as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007

Balance at beginning of period
$ 28,024
Increases (decreases) for tax
positions taken during a prior period
566
Increases for tax positions taken
during the current period
–
Settlements
–
Statute of limitations expirations
–
Balance at end of period

$ 28,590

$ 27,264
(1,890)
2,650
–
–
$ 28,024

Unrecognized tax benefits are included in other assets
and other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to
uncertain tax positions in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had recorded
$3.2 million and $2.5 million of accrued interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions, respectively.
The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that
would affect the Company’s effective tax rate if recognized
is $12.6 million as of December 31, 2008 and $12.0 million as of December 31, 2007. It is reasonably possible that
unrecognized tax benefits could change significantly during 2009. The Company estimates that up to $0.7 million
of unrecognized tax benefits could reverse during 2009.
NOTE 10: RETIREMENT PLANS

Funded Defined Benefit Pension Plans
The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans
covering substantially all of its employees in the U.S.,
Canada and Belgium. The changes in benefit obligations,
plan assets and funded status of these plans for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Pension Benefits
2008
2007

Change in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at
beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial gains (losses)
Benefits and plan expenses paid
Divestitures

$ (184,024)
(3,767)
(10,618)
17,517
9,329
–

$ (177,699)
(3,694)
(10,085)
(1,764)
9,424
(206)

Projected benefit obligations at
end of year

$ (171,563)

$ (184,024)
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(Amounts in thousands)

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at
beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Company contributions
Benefits and plan expenses paid
Fair value of plan assets at
end of year
Net funded status at end of year

Pension Benefits
2008
2007

$ 176,849
(47,529)
3,115
(9,329)

$ 148,177
18,478
19,618
(9,424)

123,106
$ (48,457)

176,849
$

(7,175)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Non-current assets
– $
2,284
Non-current liabilities
$ (48,457)
(9,459)
Net liability recognized in
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Amounts in thousands)

$ (48,457)

$

(7,175)

The accumulated benefit obligations for the above defined benefit pension plans at December 31, 2008 and 2007
totaled $160.2 million and $163.4 million, respectively.
The projected benefit payments for these plans over the
next ten years are estimated as follows:
Estimated
Benefit
Payments

(Amounts in thousands)

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014 – 2018

$

8,012
8,499
9,794
9,658
9,556
62,455

Total estimated benefit payments over next ten years $ 107,974

The Company expects to contribute approximately
$12 million to $14 million to its funded pension plans in
2009.
Domestic Benefit Plans
The Company recorded pension curtailment charges of
$0.2 million and $0.3 million, respectively, in discontinued
operations in 2007 and 2006, representing the portion of
unamortized prior service cost related to the former employees of the discontinued operations.
As of December 31, 2006, the Company implemented a
redesign of its U.S. defined benefit pension plan and the associated nonqualified plan. As of January 1, 2007, employees who were participants in the plans on that date ceased
accruing benefits and new employees are not eligible to participate. All retirement benefits accrued up to the time of the
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freeze were preserved. Accordingly, the Company recorded
a pension curtailment charge of $3.2 million in 2006 that
represented the immediate recognition of the unamortized
prior service cost for U.S. employees. The Company also incurred a total of approximately $0.5 million for related fees
and costs associated with the changes to its retirement plans.
Unfunded Supplemental Non-Qualified Plans
The Company sponsors various supplemental
non-qualified retirement plans covering certain employees
and former employees in the U.S. The changes in benefit
obligations and funded status of these plans for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

Change in Benefit Obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at
beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial gains (losses)
Benefits and plan expenses paid
Recognized loss due to special
termination benefits

Unfunded
Retirement Plans
2008
2007

$ (5,314)
–
(327)
(290)
483
(392)

$ (5,448)
(67)
(310)
47
464
–

Projected benefit obligations at
end of year

(5,840)

(5,314)

Net funded status at end of year

$ (5,840)

$ (5,314)

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Current liabilities
$ (526) $ (450)
Non-current liabilities
(5,314)
(4,864)
Net liability recognized in
Consolidated Balance Sheets

$ (5,840)

$ (5,314)

The Company accounts for its defined benefit pension
plans in accordance with FAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions (“FAS No. 87”) and FAS No. 158.
FAS No. 158 was effective December 31, 2006 and requires
the recognition of the funded status of the pension benefit
plans in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
implementation of FAS No. 158 on December 31, 2006 resulted in an $8.5 million charge to accumulated other comprehensive income. The net obligation for the Company’s
pension plans is included in employee benefit obligations
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Periodic Benefit Cost and Other Comprehensive Income
The components of net periodic benefit cost and other
comprehensive income and the weighted average

assumptions used in accounting for funded and unfunded
pension benefits follow:
Pension Benefits
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

(Amounts in thousands)

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost
$ 3,767 $ 3,761 $ 6,629
Interest cost
10,945
10,395
10,315
Expected return on plan assets (14,074) (13,297) (11,776)
Amortization of actuarial losses 1,103
1,411
2,398
Amortization of prior
service cost
(6)
(10)
195
Recognized loss due to special
termination benefits
392
–
–
Net curtailment loss, including
discontinued operations
–
206
3,570
Total net periodic
benefit cost

$

2,127 $

2,466 $ 11,331

Recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Actuarial (gains) losses
$ 45,158 $ (5,909) $ 34,613
Prior service cost
6
10
(46)
Total recognized in
accumulated other
comprehensive loss

$ 45,164 $ (5,899) $ 34,567

Weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate used to
determine net periodic
benefit cost
Discount rate used to
determine year end
benefit obligations
Expected return on plan
assets used to determine
net periodic benefit cost
Rate of compensation increase

6.1%

5.7%

5.5%

6.1%

6.0%

5.7%

8.3%
3.5%

8.5%
3.5%

8.9%
3.5%

The Company maintains target allocation percentages
among various asset classes based on investment policies
established for these plans. The target allocation is designed
to achieve long-term objectives of return, while mitigating
downside risk and considering expected cash flows. The
weighted average target allocation for 2008 was equity securities 56% and debt securities 44%. The weighted average
target allocation for 2007 was equity securities 62%, debt
securities 37% and other 1%. The weighted average target
allocation for 2006 was equity securities 64%, debt securities 35% and other 1%.
The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss
expected to be recognized as components of net periodic
benefit cost in 2009 are actuarial losses of $4.9 million and
prior service costs of $6 thousand.
Defined Contribution Plan
The Company also sponsors a defined contribution
401(k) plan (the “401(k) Plan”) covering substantially all
U.S. employees and matches a portion of employee contributions. The 401(k) Plan was amended in August, 2006 to
provide an additional annual Company contribution, effective January 1, 2007, of 3%, 4% or 5% of base compensation, depending upon the participant’s years of service. The
new contributions are made whether or not the employee
contributes to the plan. Total expense recognized for the
401(k) Plan was $2.7 million in 2006, $4.9 million in 2007
and $5.2 million in 2008.
NOTE 11: OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Company annually evaluates and selects the discount rates to be used for its pension plans. Consideration
is given to relevant indices for high quality fixed rate debt
securities, as well as comparable rates for high quality corporate bonds with terms comparable to the projected cash
flows for the respective plans, as of the measurement date.
The expected long-term rate of return on assets was chosen
from the range of likely results of compound average annual returns based on the current investment policies. The
expected return and volatility for each asset class was
based on historical equity, bond and cash returns over a
twenty year time horizon, based on repetitive modeling of
outcomes using an extended period of historical actual results. While this approach gives appropriate consideration
to recent fund performance and historical returns, the
assumption is primarily a long-term, prospective rate.

The Company sponsors various unfunded supplemental
retirement and post-retirement medical programs covering
many of its current and former employees. The changes in
benefit obligations, plan assets and funded status of these
plans for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,
were as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Other Post-Retirement
Benefits
2008
2007

Change in benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at
beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Participant contributions
Actuarial gains (losses)
Benefits and plan expenses paid
Divestitures

$ (35,976)
(253)
(2,155)
(1,992)
(1,464)
3,769
–

$ (33,805)
(358)
(2,082)
(1,295)
(5,019)
4,184
2,399

Projected benefit obligations at
end of year

$ (38,071)

$ (35,976)
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Other Post-Retirement
Benefits
2008
2007

(Amounts in thousands)

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at
beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets
Company contributions
Participant contributions
Benefits and plan expenses paid

–
–
$ 1,776
1,992
(3,768)

Fair value of plan assets at
end of year

$

111
1
2,776
1,295
(4,183)

–

Net funded status at end of year

$ (38,071)

–
$ (35,976)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:
Current liabilities
$ (2,801)
$ (2,779)
Non-current liabilities
(35,270)
(33,197)
Net liability recognized in
consolidated balance sheets

$ (38,071)

$ (35,976)

The projected benefit payments for these plans, net of
the estimated Medicare Part D subsidy expected to be
received by the Company, over the next ten years are
estimated as follows:

(Amounts in thousands)

Estimated
Gross
Benefit
Payments

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014 – 2018

$ 3,167
3,209
3,220
3,202
3,174
15,344

$

286
309
329
349
361
1,909

$ 2,881
2,900
2,891
2,853
2,813
13,435

$ 31,316

$ 3,543

$ 27,773

Total estimated
benefit payments
over next ten years

Estimated
Medicare
Part D
Subsidy

Estimated
Net Benefit
Payments

The Company expects to meet funding requirements for
its unfunded post-retirement medical and other benefit
plans on a pay-as-you-go basis during 2009.
The Company accounts for post-retirement medical plans
in accordance with FAS No. 106, “Employers’Accounting
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions”
(“FAS No. 106”) and FAS No. 158. The Company adopted
FAS No. 158 effective December 31, 2006. FAS No. 158
requires the recognition of the funded status of other
post-retirement benefit plans in the Company’s statement of
financial position. The implementation of FAS No. 158 on
December 31, 2006 resulted in a $3.8 million charge to accumulated other comprehensive loss. The obligation for the
other post-retirement benefit plans is reported in employee
benefit obligations in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Periodic Benefit Costs and Other Comprehensive Loss
The components of net periodic benefit cost and other
comprehensive loss and the weighted average assumptions
used in accounting for other post-retirement benefits
follow:
Other Post-Retirement Benefits
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

(Amounts in thousands)

Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost
$ 253 $ 358
Interest cost
2,154
2,082
Expected return on plan assets
–
–
Amortization of actuarial losses
831
932
Amortization of prior
service cost
7
8
Curtailment cost
–
3
Total net periodic
benefit cost

376
1,840
(16)
742
9
–

$ 3,383

$ 2,951

Amount recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive loss:
Actuarial losses
$ 627 $ 1,675
Prior service cost
–
–

$ 10,843
18

Total recognized in
accumulated other
comprehensive loss

$ 3,245

$

$

Weighted average assumptions:
Discount rate used to
determine net periodic
benefit cost
Discount rate used to
determine year end
benefit obligations
Expected return on plan assets

627

$ 1,675

$ 10,861

6.3%

5.8%

5.5%

5.8%
n/a

6.3%
2.0%

5.8%
9.0%

The amount in accumulated other comprehensive loss
expected to be recognized as a component of net periodic
benefit cost in 2009 is $1.0 million in actuarial losses.
The Company annually evaluates and selects the discount rates to be used for these plans. Consideration is
given to relevant indices for high quality fixed rate debt securities and to specific debt securities with maturity dates
similar to the expected timing of cash outflows for the
plans as of the measurement date. The annual rate of increase in the cost of health care benefits was assumed to
be 9% in 2006, 8% in 2007, 10% in 2008, 9% in 2009, 8%
in 2010, 7% in 2011, 6% in 2012 and 5% thereafter. A 1%
change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have
had the following effects for 2008:
(Amounts in thousands)

Effect on service and
interest cost components
Effect on other post-retirement
benefit obligations

1% Increase

$

239
3,035

1% Decrease

$

(198)
(2,555)

NOTE 12: COMMITMENTS

The Company leases office space and equipment under
operating leases expiring in one to 15 years. Most leases include renewal options and some contain purchase options
and escalation clauses. Future minimum rental commitments required under operating leases having initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as
of December 31, 2008, are as follows: 2009: $2.9 million;
2010: $3.1 million; 2011: $2.5 million; 2012: $2.3 million;
2013: $1.5 million; 2014 and beyond: $12.5 million.
Rentals charged to costs and expenses for continuing operations under cancelable and non-cancelable lease arrangements were $2.2 million, $2.0 million and $2.5 million in
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. As of December 31,
2008 the Company did not have any material capital leases.
Guarantees and other commercial commitments include
the following:
(Amounts in thousands)

December 31, 2008

Product warranty
Letters of credit outstanding
Other financial guarantees (1)

$

Total from continuing operations

136
4,175
905

$ 5,216

(1) Includes $0.2 million of guarantees to third party financing companies
under financing arrangements pertaining to our discontinued operations,
for which the Company remains contingently liable. These guarantees
have not had a material adverse effect on the Company’s operating results
or cash flows in the past, nor does the Company expect to incur any
material charges related to these agreements in the future based on past
experience.

In addition to these amounts, the Company also
guarantees certain debt of its subsidiaries. See also Notes 8
and 19.
Changes in the warranty reserve were as follows:
(Amounts in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period
Warranty reserve related to
discontinued operations
Accrued warranty expense
Payments made (in cash or
in-kind)
Balance at end of period

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

$ 160

$ 3,269

$ 4,888

–
317

(2,496)
1,536

(976)
2,778

(341)

(2,149)

(3,421)

$ 136

$

160

$ 3,269

The warranty reserve is included in accrued expenses on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The warranty reserve related to the discontinued Forestry Division was assumed
by Caterpillar in 2007 as part of the sale of the Forestry
Division, and the warranty reserve related to the discontinued Lawnmower segment was assumed by Husqvarna Professional Outdoor Products in 2006 as part of the sale of
Dixon Industries. See also Note 3.
Other guarantees and claims arise during the ordinary
course of business from relationships with suppliers and
customers when we undertake an obligation to guarantee

the performance of others if specified triggering events occur. Nonperformance of a contract could trigger an obligation of the Company. In addition, certain guarantees relate
to contractual indemnification provisions in connection
with transactions involving the purchase or sale of stock or
assets. These claims include actions based upon intellectual
property, environmental, product liability and other indemnification matters. The ultimate effect on future financial
results is not subject to reasonable estimation because considerable uncertainty exists as to the occurrence or, if triggered, final outcome of these claims. However, while the
ultimate liabilities resulting from such claims may be potentially significant to results of operations in the period
recognized, management does not anticipate they will have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position or liquidity. See also Note 13.
NOTE 13: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company reserves for product liability, environmental
remediation and other legal matters as management becomes
aware of such matters. A portion of these claims or lawsuits
may be covered by insurance policies that generally contain
both deductible and coverage limits. Management monitors
the progress of each legal matter to ensure that the appropriate reserve for its obligation has been recognized and disclosed in the financial statements. Management also
monitors trends in case types to determine if there are any
specific issues that relate to the Company that may result in
additional future exposure on an aggregate basis. As of
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, management
believes the Company has appropriately recorded and disclosed all material costs for its obligations in regard to known
matters. Management believes that the recoverability of the
costs of claims from insurance companies will continue in
the future. Management periodically assesses these insurance
companies to monitor their ability to pay such claims.
The Company was named a potentially liable person
(“PLP”) by the Washington State Department of Ecology
(“WDOE”) in connection with the Pasco Sanitary Landfill
Site (“Site”). This Site has been monitored by WDOE
since 1988. From available records, the Company believes
that it sent 26 drums of chromic hydroxide sludge in a nontoxic, trivalent state to the Site. The Company further believes that the Site contains more than 50,000 drums in
total and millions of gallons of additional wastes, some
potentially highly toxic in nature. Accordingly, based both
on volume and on the nature of the waste, the Company
believes that it is a de minimis contributor.
The current on-site monitoring program is being conducted and funded by certain PLPs, excluding the Company and several other PLPs, under the supervision of
WDOE. During 2007 and 2008, WDOE requested that the
participating PLPs conduct further study and prepare a
new “scope of work.” It is likely that such new scope of
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work, once proposed by the participating PLPs and approved by WDOE, will result in additional work and costs
in the future. The Company may or may not be required to
contribute to the cost of this new or any subsequent studies
or remediation, if any. The Company is unable to estimate
such costs, or the likelihood of being assessed any portion
thereof. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company
had accrued $0.1 million for the potential costs of any
clean-up at the Site. The Company incurred no costs during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 in
connection with the remediation efforts at the Site.
On September 12, 2003, the Company received a General
Notice Letter as a Potentially Responsible De Minimis
Party from Region IX of the EPA regarding the Operating
Industries, Inc. Superfund Site in Monterey Park, California. The notice stated that the EPA would submit an offer to
settle and an explanation as to why it believes the Company
or a predecessor unit is a de minimis participant at the site.
The Company was subsequently informed by the EPA that
its report would be delayed, and on September 17, 2004,
was notified of further delay in the process. The EPA has
indicated that its de minimis settlement offer will be based
on volume of waste at a uniform per gallon price among all
de minimis parties. The site was operated as a landfill from
1948 to 1984, and received wastes from over 4,000 generators. At the present time, the Company has no knowledge as
to which of its units, if any, was involved at the site, or the
amounts, if any, that were sent there. However, based upon
its current knowledge of the site, and its alleged status as a
Potentially Responsible De Minimis Party, the Company
does not believe that any settlement or participation in any
remediation will have a materially adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, operating results or cash flows.
The Company has received no further notice or explanation
from Region IX of the EPA as of December 31, 2008.
With respect to certain proceedings involving Carlton,
which the Company acquired on May 2, 2008, the Company has determined that, in 1989, contamination of soil
and groundwater by trichloroethylene (“TCE”) and other
volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”) was discovered at
Carlton’s facility located in Milwaukie, Oregon (the
“Carlton Site”) in connection with the removal of two underground storage tanks. On November, 19, 1990, Carlton
entered into a Consent Order with the Oregon Department
of Environmental Quality (“DEQ”), which was amended in
1996, 1997 and 2000, pursuant to which the Company continues to investigate, remediate and monitor the contamination under the supervision of the DEQ. The Company has
accrued an amount based upon the current estimated potential remediation costs of the clean-up at the Carlton Site
through the year 2028. Although there can be no assurance
that the currently estimated cost and scope of remediation
will not change in the future due to the imposition of additional remediation obligations by the DEQ, the detection of
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additional contamination in the future or other later discovered facts, the Company does not believe that any remediation will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated
financial position, operating results or cash flows.
The Company is a defendant in a number of product liability lawsuits, some of which seek significant or unspecified damages, involving serious personal injuries for which
there are retentions or deductible amounts under the Company’s insurance policies. Some of these lawsuits arise out
of the Company’s duty to indemnify certain purchasers of
the Company’s discontinued operations for lawsuits involving products manufactured prior to the sale of certain of
these businesses. In addition, the Company is a party to a
number of other suits arising out of the normal course of its
business, including suits concerning commercial contracts,
employee matters and intellectual property rights. In some
instances the Company is the plaintiff, and is seeking recovery of damages. In others, the Company is a defendant
against whom damages are being sought. While there can be
no assurance as to their ultimate outcome, management does
not believe these lawsuits will have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s consolidated financial position, operating
results or cash flows. The Company recognized $0.7 million
in other income related to legal settlements in 2006.
The Company accrues, by a charge to income, an amount
representing management’s best estimate of the undiscounted
probable loss related to any matter deemed by management
and its counsel as a reasonably probable loss contingency in
light of all of the then known circumstances. The Company
does not accrue a charge to income for a matter deemed by
management and its counsel to be a reasonably possible loss
contingency in light of all of the current circumstances.
NOTE 14: CAPITAL STOCK AND EARNINGS PER SHARE DATA

The number of shares used in the denominators of the
basic and diluted income per share computations was as
follows:
Weighted Average Common Shares
(In thousands)

Shares for basic income
per share computation –
weighted average common
shares outstanding
Dilutive effect of stock
options, stock appreciation
rights and warrants
Shares for diluted income
per share computation
Options and stock appreciation
rights excluded from
computation as anti-dilutive

Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

47,510

47,280

47,145

620

798

723

48,130

48,078

47,868

2,113

1,676

1,687

No adjustment was required to reported amounts for
inclusion in the numerators of the per share computations.

NOTE 15: STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in
accordance with FAS No. 123(R). FAS No. 123(R) requires
all share-based compensation to employees, directors and
others who perform services for the Company to be valued
at fair value on the date of grant and to be expensed over
the applicable service period.
Under the Company’s 1999 Stock Incentive Plan and
2000 Stock Incentive Plan, options to purchase the Company’s common stock, and, by amendment, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) could be granted to employees,
directors and other persons who perform services for the
Company. Such options could be either incentive stock
options or non-qualified stock options. Options and SARs
generally vested in equal installments over a three year
period and expire ten years from the date of grant. The
number of shares that could have been issued under these
two plans could not exceed an aggregate of 5,875,000 shares.
On April 25, 2006, the Company’s stockholders approved the Blount International, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive
Plan (the “2006 Plan”) and the 1999 and 2000 plans were
replaced at that time. The 2006 Plan provides for substantially similar terms and conditions of stock-based awards
to the predecessor plans, but also provides for the use of
restricted stock awards, restricted stock unit grants and

other forms of equity instruments. The maximum number
of shares that may be awarded under the 2006 Plan is
4,236,919, of which 736,919 represent shares that remained unused under the 1999 and 2000 plans that were
transferred to the 2006 Plan. The maximum number of incentive stock options that may be issued under the 2006
Plan is 1,750,000. Outstanding stock-based awards issued
under the 1999 and 2000 plans remain unaffected by the
adoption of the 2006 Plan.
The fair value of options and SARs was estimated on
their respective grant dates using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model. The estimated average life of SARs
granted in 2006, 2007 and 2008 was derived from the
“simplified” method described in SAB 110. The risk-free
interest rate is based on the implied yield available on U.S.
Treasury zero-coupon issues with the remaining term
equal to the average life. The expected volatility factors
used are based on the historical volatility of the Company’s
stock. The expected dividend yield is based on historical
information and management estimate. The expense recognized for each stock award is reduced by an estimated
forfeiture rate of 5.6%. The estimated forfeiture rate is
based on the historical forfeiture rate, and is adjusted to the
actual forfeiture rate over the life of the stock awards
accounted for under FAS No. 123(R).

The following assumptions were used to estimate fair value of stock options and SARs:

Estimated average lives
Risk-free interest rate
Expected volatility
Weighted average volatility
Dividend yield
Weighted average grant date fair value

2008

Year Ended December 31,
2007

2006

6 years
2.7%
32.4%
32.4%
0.0%
$4.37

6 years
4.5%
29.1%-29.5%
29.3%
0.0%
$4.50

6 years
4.6%
26.7%
26.7%
0.0%
$6.09

A summary of stock option and stock-settled SARs activity for the year December 31, 2008 is presented in the following tables:
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Shares
(in 000’s)

Weighted
Average
Contractual
Life

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value
(in 000’s)

$ 11.01
11.93
4.43
15.40
14.22

–

–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

Outstanding options and SARs at beginning of period
SARs granted
Options exercised
Options forfeited
SARs forfeited

3,322
305
(136)
(94)
(53)

Outstanding options and SARs at end of period

3,344

11.19

4.8

$ 5,955

Outstanding options at end of period
Outstanding SARs at end of period
Options exercisable at end of period
SARs exercisable at end of period

2,224
1,120
2,224
446

9.71
14.13
9.71
15.64

3.1
8.0
3.1
7.4

5,955
–
5,955
–
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(Amounts in thousands)

2008

Year Ended December 31,
2007
2006

Intrinsic value of options exercised
Estimated fair value of options and SARs that vested
Share-based compensation cost recognized in income
Total tax benefit related to share-based compensation recognized
Total amount of cash received from options exercised
Tax benefit realized from options exercised
Cash used to settle equity instruments

$ 1,181
1,515
3,269
1,031
606
463
–

As of December 31, 2008, the total compensation cost
related to awards not yet recognized was $1.9 million. The
weighted average period over which this expense is expected to be recognized is one year. The Company’s policy
upon the exercise of options or SARs has been to issue
new shares into the market place.
Under certain conditions, stock options, SARs, restricted
stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs”) granted by the
Company are eligible for continued vesting upon a qualified retirement of the employee. FAS No. 123(R) clarifies
that the fair value of such stock-based compensation
should be expensed based on an accelerated service period,
or immediately, rather than ratably over the vesting period

stated in the grant, for employees who are eligible for a
qualified retirement prior to the completion of the vesting
period. The net effect of applying accelerated amortization
of expense recognized for those employees who were eligible or became eligible for a qualified retirement within the
vesting period was an increase of $0.8 million during the
year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $0.3 million
during the year ended December 31, 2007 and an increase
of $0.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2008.

(Amounts in thousands)

Restricted stock shares awarded
RSUs awarded
Total fair value of restricted stock and RSUs awarded
Total expense recognized for restricted stock and RSUs

Tax Benefits. The Company has elected to use the transition short-cut method to determine its pool of windfall tax
benefits in accordance with FAS No. 123(R). Tax attributes
are determined under the tax law ordering method.

NOTE 16: SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company identifies operating segments primarily
based on management responsibility. The Company has
one operating and reportable segment: Outdoor Products.
The corporate and other category includes centralized
administrative functions and a gear components
(Amounts in thousands)

$

436
2,310
3,589
1,168
210
114
–

$ 2,410
1,357
3,253
1,179
993
747
–

Restricted Stock Awards. Under the 2006 equity compensation plan, the Company from time to time issues restricted
stock and RSUs. The following activity occurred in the periods indicated.
2008

Year Ended December 31,
2007
2006

54
125
$ 2,148
$ 1,789

45
136
$ 2,138
$ 1,715

35
–
$ 318
$ 318

manufacturing business. See also Note 3 regarding the
disposition of the primary operating unit making up the
Company’s former Industrial and Power Equipment
segment, and the disposition of the former Lawnmower
segment. Outdoor Products manufactures and markets
cutting chain, bars, sprockets and accessories for chainsaw
use, concrete-cutting equipment, lawnmower blades and
accessories for yard care equipment.
The accounting policies of the segment are the same as
those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies.
2008

Year Ended December 31,
2007
2006

Sales:
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other

$ 565,557
31,478

$ 486,739
28,796

$ 455,009
32,485

Total sales

$ 597,035

$ 515,535

$ 487,494

Operating income (expense):
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other

$ 102,601
(15,121)

$

95,932
(15,232)

$

97,805
(17,345)

Total operating income

$ 87,480

$

80,700

$

80,460
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(Amounts in thousands)

2008

Year Ended December 31,
2007
2006

Depreciation and amortization:
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other

$ 23,617
4,946

$

16,796
4,796

$

14,212
4,575

Total depreciation and amortization

$ 28,563

$

21,592

$

18,787

Capital expenditures:
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other

$ 24,091
1,967

$

17,155
1,362

$

20,630
1,023

Total capital expenditures

$ 26,058

$

18,517

$

21,653

Sales by major product line:
Chainsaw components and accessories
Outdoor equipment parts and accessories
All others, less than 10% each

$ 455,485
82,242
59,308

$ 381,839
74,276
59,420

$ 360,332
64,856
62,306

Total sales

$ 597,035

$ 515,535

$ 487,494

Sales by geographic region:
United States
European Union
Brazil
Russian Federation
Canada
All others, less than 5% each

$ 203,714
163,601
29,792
30,417
16,746
152,765

$ 185,793
160,375
24,735
18,426
17,526
108,680

$ 192,322
143,838
20,659
14,403
18,199
98,073

Total sales

$ 597,035

$ 515,535

$ 487,494

The geographic sales information is by country of destination. One customer, Husqvarna AB, accounted for approximately 14% of sales in 2008, 2007 and 2006. While we expect this business relationship to continue, the loss of this
customer could significantly affect our operations. No other single customer represented more than 3.5% of sales in any of
the preceding three years.
December 31,
2008
2007

(Amounts in thousands)

Identifiable assets:
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other

$ 354,305
145,280

$ 316,834
84,163

499,585
99

400,997
10,952

Total assets

$ 499,684

$ 411,949

Goodwill:
Outdoor Products
Corporate and other

$

60,906
5,165

$

43,819
5,165

Total goodwill

$

66,071

$

48,984

$

69,739
19,384
17,351
12,091
654
530

$

41,673
18,240
15,310
11,201
2,970
335

$ 119,749

$

89,729

Total assets from continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Property, plant and equipment, net:
United States
Canada
China
Brazil
European Union
All others, less than 1% each
Total property, plant and equipment, net

Property, plant and equipment is shown net of accumulated depreciation. The European headquarters land and building
is classified as assets held for sale on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2008. Each of our business units
purchases certain important materials from a limited number of suppliers that meet quality criteria. Although alternative
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sources of supply are available, the sudden elimination of
certain suppliers could result in manufacturing delays, a
reduction in product quality and a possible loss of sales in
the near term.
NOTE 17: SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Year Ended December 31,
2008
2007
2006

(Amounts in thousands)

Interest paid
Income taxes paid, net

$ 23,638
13,189

$ 31,264
20,753

$ 33,044
9,873

NOTE 18: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION

The Company has manufacturing or distribution operations in Australia, Brazil, Canada, China, Europe, Japan,
Russia and the U.S. The Company sells to customers in
these locations and other countries throughout the world.
At December 31, 2008, approximately 33% of accounts receivable were from customers within the U.S. One customer
accounted for 13.2% and 10.3% at December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively, of the accounts receivable balance.
No other customer accounted for 10% or more of accounts
receivable at December 31, 2008 or 2007. Accounts

receivable are principally from dealers, distributors, mass
merchants, chainsaw manufacturers and other OEMs, and
are normally not collateralized.
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short term maturity of
those instruments. The carrying amount of accounts receivable approximates fair value because the maturity period is short and the Company has reduced the carrying
amount to the estimated net realizable value with an allowance for doubtful accounts. The carrying amount of the
revolving credit facility approximates fair value because
the interest rate is variable and the maturity period is relatively short. The fair value of the term loans is determined
by reference to prices of recent transactions. The fair value
of the fixed rate 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes is determined by reference to quoted market prices. The carrying
amount of other financial instruments approximates fair
value because of the short term maturity periods and variable interest rates associated with the instruments.
The estimated fair values of the term loans and 87⁄8% senior subordinated notes at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are
presented below. See also Note 7.
2008

(Amounts in thousands)

Term loans
87⁄8% senior subordinated notes

Foreign currency exchange rate movements create a degree of risk by affecting the U.S. Dollar value of certain
balance sheet positions denominated in foreign currencies.
Additionally, the interest rates available in certain jurisdictions in which the Company holds cash may vary, thereby
affecting the return on cash equivalent investments. The
Company’s practice is to use foreign currency and interest
rate swap agreements to manage exposure to foreign currency and interest rate changes. The objective is to minimize earnings volatility resulting from conversion and the
re-measurement of foreign currency balance sheet positions
to U.S. Dollars. Changes in the fair value of non-derivative
instruments are reported in current earnings as a component of interest income and were a gain of $0.4 million in
2008 and a loss of $0.1 million in 2007. There were no such
instruments used in 2006.
As of December 31, 2008, approximately 67% of the total accounts receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
were owed to the Company by foreign customers. If the
U.S. Dollar strengthens against foreign currencies, as it did
during the latter half of 2008, it becomes more costly for
these foreign customers to pay their U.S. Dollar balances
owed. They may have difficulty in repaying these amounts,
and in turn, the Company’s bad debts expense may increase.
Derivative Financial Instruments and Foreign Currency Hedging.

The Company makes regular payments to its wholly-owned
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Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

$ 119,770
175,000

$ 107,194
159,478

2007
Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

$ 122,000 $ 118,950
175,000
175,438

subsidiary in Canada, Blount Canada Ltd. (“Blount
Canada”) for contract manufacturing services performed
by Blount Canada on behalf of the Company. The Company
is exposed to changes in Canadian Dollar to U.S. Dollar
exchange rates from these transactions, which may adversely affect its results of operations and financial position.
Beginning in October, 2008 the Company began managing a portion of Canadian Dollar exchange rate exposures
with derivative financial instruments. These derivatives are
zero cost collar option combinations consisting of a purchased call option to buy Canadian Dollars and a written
put option to sell Canadian Dollars. Each pair of contracts
constituting a collar has the same maturity date in a
monthly ladder extending out 12 months. Each month, the
Company intends to extend the ladder one more month, on
a rolling basis, so that a 12 month rolling hedge is maintained. These instruments are designated as cash flow
hedges and are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
at fair value. The effective portion of the gains or losses on
these contracts due to changes in fair value is initially
recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss and is subsequently reclassified into cost of goods
sold when the Company settles the hedged payment to
Blount Canada. These contracts are highly effective in
hedging the variability in future cash flows attributable to
changes in currency exchange rates.

As of December 31, 2008, the fair value of these open
Canadian Dollar contracts was an unrealized pre-tax loss
of $1.8 million, included in other comprehensive loss and
accrued expenses on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
During 2008, none of these contracts matured and no
amounts were recognized in the Consolidated Statements

of Income. The Company also did not recognize any
amount from these contracts in earnings due to ineffectiveness. As of December 31, 2008, the aggregate notional
amount of these Canadian Dollar contracts outstanding
was $51.4 million.

As of December 31, 2008 the fair values of derivatives held by the Company are:

(Amounts in thousands)

Derivative financial assets
Derivative financial liabilities

Carrying
Value of
Assets
(Liabilities) on
Balance Sheet

$

446
(1,837)

As specified in FAS No. 157, the framework for measuring fair value is based on independent observable inputs of
market data and is based on the following hierarchy:
Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities.
Level 2—Significant observable inputs based on quoted
prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that
are not active and model-based valuations for which all
significant assumptions are observable.
Level 3—Significant unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity that are significant
to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
When developing fair value measurements, it is the Company’s policy to maximize the use of observable inputs and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Derivative contracts outstanding at December 31, 2008 were measured at
fair value using models or other market-accepted valuation

Assets
(Liabilities)
Measured at
Fair Value

$

446
(1,837)

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets
Inputs
Level 1

–
–

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
Level 2

$

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
Level 3

446
(1,837)

–
–

methodologies derived from observable market data. These
quoted prices are primarily industry-standard models that
consider various inputs including currency rates, market
interest rates, time value and volatility factors, as well as
other relevant economic measures.
In accordance with SFAS No. 157, the Company includes nonperformance risk in calculating fair value adjustments. The impact of the credit risk adjustments for all
outstanding derivatives was immaterial to the fair value
calculation at December 31, 2008.
NOTE 19: CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

See Note 8 for a discussion of the Company’s guarantor
subsidiaries. The following consolidating financial information sets forth condensed Consolidating Statements of
Operations, Balance Sheets and of Cash Flows of Blount
International, Inc., Blount, Inc., the guarantor subsidiaries
and the non-guarantor subsidiaries.
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations Information
(Amounts in thousands)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008
Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating income
Other, net
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies
Net income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating income
Other, net
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies
Net income
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Operating income
Other, net
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies
Net income
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Blount
International,
Inc.

Blount,
Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

NonGuarantor
Subsidiaries

Eliminations

Consolidated

–
–
–
–
–
$ (16,131)

$ 436,351
312,961
123,390
65,387
58,003
(9,399)

$ 47,470
39,068
8,402
4,214
4,188
(1,446)

$ 342,865
282,088
60,777
35,691
25,086
3,084

$ (229,651)
(229,854)
203
–
203
–

$ 597,035
404,263
192,772
105,292
87,480
(23,892)

(16,131)
(6,980)
(9,151)
–
47,750

48,604
20,725
27,879
(100)
19,971

2,742
1,186
1,556
(144)
–

28,170
9,814
18,356
–
–

203
–
203
–
(67,721)

63,588
24,745
38,843
(244)
–

$ 38,599

$ 47,750

$ 1,412

$ 18,356

$ (67,518)

$ 38,599

–
–
–
–
–
$ (23,015)

$ 375,561
252,626
122,935
57,912
65,023
(10,202)

$ 45,258
37,745
7,513
3,947
3,566
(729)

$ 327,975
282,272
45,703
32,398
13,305
1,419

$ (233,259)
(232,065)
(1,194)
–
(1,194)
–

$ 515,535
340,578
174,957
94,257
80,700
(32,527)

(23,015)
(7,634)
(15,381)
–
58,238

54,821
21,478
33,343
11,477
13,418

2,837
1,267
1,570
(70)
–

14,724
919
13,805
(693)
–

(1,194)
–
(1,194)
–
(71,656)

48,173
16,030
32,143
10,714
–

$ 42,857

$ 58,238

$ 1,500

$ 13,112

$ (72,850)

$ 42,857

–
–
–
–
–
$ (22,818)

$ 347,982
245,617
102,365
60,400
41,965
(10,703)

$ 49,088
40,478
8,610
3,653
4,957
(525)

$ 284,634
220,565
64,069
29,166
34,903
(23)

$ (194,210)
(192,845)
(1,365)
–
(1,365)
–

$ 487,494
313,815
173,679
93,219
80,460
(34,069)

34,880
8,871
26,009
(407)
–

(1,365)
–
(1,365)
–
(88,175)

46,391
13,746
32,645
9,901
–

$ (89,540)

$ 42,546

(22,818)
(8,671)
(14,147)
–
56,693
$ 42,546

31,262
11,880
19,382
5,829
31,482

4,432
1,666
2,766
4,479
–

$ 56,693

$ 7,245

$ 25,602

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
(Amounts in thousands)

December 31, 2008
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Intercompany receivables
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets
Total current assets
Investments in affiliated
companies
Property, plant and
equipment, net
Goodwill and other assets

Blount
International,
Inc.

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Blount,
Inc.

$

185
47,155
189,459
58,143
4,729
9,461
309,132

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

NonGuarantor
Subsidiaries

–
4,367
77,478
5,568
–
162
87,575

$ 59,158
24,033
5,022
26,736
763
5,317
121,029

$

Eliminations

$

Consolidated

(1,068)
–
(271,959)
(145)
–
–
(273,172)

$ 58,275
75,555
–
90,302
5,492
14,940
244,564

$ 229,389

256,374

–

–

(485,763)

–

–
–

58,093
111,983

11,646
11,883

50,010
13,509

–
(2,004)

119,749
135,371

Total Assets

$ 229,389

$ 735,582

$ 111,104

$ 184,548

$ (760,939)

$ 499,684

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Intercompany payables
Other current liabilities

–
–
$ 271,959
–

$ 31,981
16,358
–
35,714

–
(1,068)
(271,959)
–

$ 31,981
28,864
–
55,733

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, excluding
current maturities
Other liabilities

271,959

84,053

6,708

26,885

(273,027)

116,578

–
950

293,539
128,601

–
–

–
5,540

–
(2,004)

293,539
133,087

Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity (deficit)

272,909
(43,520)

506,193
229,389

6,708
104,396

32,425
152,123

(275,031)
(485,908)

$ 735,582

$ 111,104

$ 184,548

$ (760,939)

Total Liabilities and
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)

$ 229,389

$

–
3,656
–
3,052

$

–
9,918
–
16,967

$

543,204
(43,520)
$ 499,684
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet Information — Continued
(Amounts in thousands)

December 31, 2007
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Intercompany receivables
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets
Total current assets
Investments in affiliated
companies
Property, plant and
equipment, net
Goodwill and other assets
Total Assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current maturities of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Intercompany payables
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, excluding
current maturities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity (deficit)
Total Liabilities and
Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
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Blount
International,
Inc.

Blount,
Inc.

NonGuarantor
Subsidiaries

Eliminations

Consolidated

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

$ 10,512
34,885
179,631
42,107
5,137
8,706
280,978

121
4,881
82,438
6,849
–
216
94,505

$ 46,956
28,052
4,838
22,664
399
7,471
110,380

–
–
$ (266,907)
(1,347)
–
–
(268,254)

$ 57,589
67,818
–
70,273
5,536
16,393
217,609

$ 213,950

243,515

–

248

(457,713)

–

–
–

31,345
82,046

10,330
11,893

48,054
12,559

–
(1,887)

89,729
104,611

$ 213,950

$ 637,884

$ 116,728

$ 171,241

$ (727,854)

$ 411,949

–
–
$ 266,907
–
266,907

$

–
3,857
–
3,568
7,425

–
$ 10,107
–
15,148
25,255

–
–
$ (266,907)
–
(266,907)

$

295,758
71,835

–
–

–
10,179

–
(1,887)

423,934
213,950

7,425
109,303

35,434
135,807

(268,794)
(459,060)

$ 637,884

$ 116,728

$ 171,241

$ (727,854)

–
1,189
268,096
(54,146)
$ 213,950

1,242
15,835
–
39,264
56,341

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

$

1,242
29,799
–
57,980
89,021
295,758
81,316
466,095
(54,146)

$ 411,949

Condensed Consolidating Cash Flows Information
(Amounts in thousands)

Blount
International,
Inc.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2008
Net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
$ 6,741
Proceeds from sale of assets
–
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
–
Acquisition of Carlton, net of cash acquired
–
Discontinued operations
–
Net cash used in investing activities
–
Net borrowings under revolving credit facility
–
Repayment of long-term debt
–
Advances from (to) affiliates
(7,810)
Other
1,069
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
(6,741)
Effect of exchange rate changes
–
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
–
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
–
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
$
–
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007
Net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant & equipment
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Discontinued operations
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net borrowings under revolving credit facility
Repayment of long-term debt
Advances from (to) affiliates
Other
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Blount,
Inc.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

NonGuarantor
Subsidiaries

Eliminations

Consolidated

$ 25,243
1,605
(13,081)
(64,399)
1,725
(74,150)
30,750
(2,230)
10,060
–
38,580
–
(10,327)
10,512
$
185

$ (2,373)
16
(2,227)
–
–
(2,211)
–
–
4,463
–
4,463
–
(121)
121
$
–

$ 32,661
11
(10,750)
–
–
(10,739)
–
–
(6,713)
–
(6,713)
(3,007)
12,202
46,956
$ 59,158

$ (1,068)
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(1,068)
–
$ (1,068)

$ 61,204
1,632
(26,058)
(64,399)
1,725
(87,100)
30,750
(2,230)
–
1,069
29,589
(3,007)
686
57,589
$ 58,275

$ 6,875

$

(3,145)

$ (1,765)

$ 25,361

$ 1,852

$ 29,178

–
–
–
–
–
–
(7,199)
324
(6,875)
–
–
–
$
–

411
(10,717)
69,071
58,765
(27,000)
(26,875)
9,467
(700)
(45,108)
–
10,512
–
$ 10,512

1,623
(1,496)
–
127
–
–
1,669
–
1,669
–
31
90
$
121

275
(6,304)
–
(6,029)
–
–
(3,937)
–
(3,937)
2,163
17,558
29,398
$ 46,956

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
1,852
(1,852)
$
–

2,309
(18,517)
69,071
52,863
(27,000)
(26,875)
–
(376)
(54,251)
2,163
29,953
27,636
$ 57,589

$ 31,265

$ (5,512)

$ 26,880

$ (1,015)

$ 58,615

41
(11,229)
(919)
(12,107)
27,000
(79,195)
33,694
(700)
(19,201)
–
(43)
43
$
–

1
(1,104)
32,322
31,219
–
–
(25,617)
–
(25,617)
–
90
–
$
90

1,202
(9,320)
(503)
(8,621)
–
(4,653)
660
–
(3,993)
1,401
15,667
13,731
$ 29,398

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(1,015)
(837)
$ (1,852)

1,244
(21,653)
30,900
10,491
27,000
(83,848)
–
1,040
(55,808)
1,401
14,699
12,937
$ 27,636

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
Net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
$ 6,997
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant & equipment
–
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
–
Discontinued operations
–
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
–
Net borrowings under revolving credit facility
–
Repayment of long-term debt
–
Advances from (to) affiliates
(8,737)
Other
1,740
Net cash used in financing activities
(6,997)
Effect of exchange rate changes
–
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
–
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
–
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
$
–
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NOTE 20: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. 157.
FAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework
for measuring fair value in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the U. S., and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The Company
adopted FAS No. 157 for financial assets and liabilities on
January 1, 2008, with no immediate effect on the consolidated financial statements. As permitted by FASB Staff
Position No. FAS 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157,” the Company elected to defer the adoption
of SFAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
recurring basis. In February 2008, the FASB issued Staff
Position No. FAS 157-1, “Application of FASB Statement
No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting
Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements
for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13” (“FSP No. 157-1”). The Company also
adopted FSP No. 157-1 on January 1, 2008, with no immediate effect on the consolidated financial statements. In
October 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position
No. FAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial
Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active”
(“FSP No. 157-3”). The Company adopted FSP No. 157-3
on October 1, 2008, with no immediate effect on the consolidated financial statements.
In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159.
FAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value.
The Company chose not to elect the fair value option for its
financial assets and liabilities existing at January 1, 2008
and did not elect the fair value option on financial assets
and liabilities transacted subsequent to that date. Therefore,
FAS No. 159 has had no effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141(R).
FAS No. 141(R) replaces FAS No. 141. The provisions of
FAS No. 141(R) are effective for the Company beginning
January 1, 2009. The impact of adopting FAS No. 141(R)
will depend on the nature, terms and size of any business
combinations completed after the effective date. In addition,
certain transaction-related expenses that would have been
capitalized as part of a transaction under FAS No. 141, will
be expensed as incurred under FAS No. 141(R) beginning
January 1, 2009.
In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160.
FAS No. 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements. The provisions
of FAS No. 160 are effective for the Company on
January 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibited. The adoption of FAS No. 160 is not anticipated to have a material
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impact on the financial position and results of operations
of the Company.
In March 2008, the FASB issued FAS No. 161.
FAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an entity’s derivative and hedging activities. The provisions of
FAS No. 161 are effective for the Company on January 1,
2009, and will result in expanded disclosures about the
Company’s derivative instruments and hedging activities.
In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. 142-3. This
FASB Staff Position amends the factors that should be considered in developing assumptions used to determine useful
lives of recognized intangible assets under FAS 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. The provisions of
FSP No. 142-3 are effective for the Company on January 1,
2009 and earlier adoption is prohibited. The impact of
adopting FSP No. 142-3 will depend on the nature, terms
and size of any business combinations completed after the
effective date.
In December 2008 the FASB issued FSP No. 132(R)-1.
This FASB Staff Position amends FASB Statement No. 132,
Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits, to provide guidance on an employer’s disclosures about plan assets of a defined benefit pension or other
postretirement plan. The provisions of FSP No. 132(R)-1 will
be effective for us in our 2009 Form 10-K, and will result in
expanded disclosures in our financial statements.
NOTE 21: PLANNED CLOSURE OF FACILITY AND OTHER
RESTRUCTURING ACTIONS

In January 2009, the Company announced its intent to
close its manufacturing facility in Milan, Tennessee, during
the second quarter of 2009. Products currently manufactured
in that facility will be produced in the Company’s other manufacturing facilities after the closure. The Company also took
actions in early 2009 to reduce the number of employees at
certain of its other locations. The Company expects to record
charges of between $6.0 million and $7.0 million during the
first quarter of 2009 for the costs of the Milan closure and
move, including asset disposal and impairment charges, as
well as employee severance benefits related to Milan and
other locations. The closure and move related to the Milan
facility is expected to be completed during the second
quarter of 2009.

SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)
The following tables set forth a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for 2008 and 2007. Consistent
with the reclassifications on our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, presented below is the effect of exchange rate changes on cash flows for each of the quarters in 2007 and 2008.
2008 results were as follows:
(Amounts in thousands except per share data)

Sales
Gross profit
Net income
Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

1st Quarter

2nd Quarter

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

Total 2008

$ 133,207
42,478
6,836

$ 155,052
49,322
10,096

$ 175,006
56,536
14,750

$ 133,770
44,436
6,917

$ 597,035
192,772
38,599

$

$

$

$

$

0.14
0.14
$ (11,939)
1,086

$

0.21
0.21
25,212
150

$

0.31
0.31
26,436
(2,088)

$

0.15
0.14
21,495
(2,155)

$

0.81
0.80
61,204
(3,007)

Net income in the fourth quarter of 2008 reflects the year-to-date impact of $1.1 million, after tax, from a change in the
effective tax rate compared to the effective tax rate recognized through the third quarter of 2008. In addition, the Company
acquired Carlton on May 2, 2008. Accordingly, Carlton’s operating results are included in the above results for the second,
third and fourth quarters. Pretax purchase accounting effects from the acquisition of Carlton were $1.9 million in the
second quarter, $0.9 million in the third quarter and $0.7 million in the fourth quarter.
2007 results were as follows:
(Amounts in thousands except per share data)

Sales
Gross profit
Net income
Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

1st Quarter

2nd Quarter

3rd Quarter

4th Quarter

Total 2007

$ 118,316
40,055
4,666

$ 135,580
46,276
11,182

$ 129,853
43,926
9,443

$ 131,786
44,700
17,566

$ 515,535
174,957
42,857

$

$

$

$

$

0.10
0.10
$ (12,725)
171

$

0.24
0.23
19,507
269

$

0.20
0.20
5,961
976

$

0.37
0.37
16,435
747

$

0.91
0.89
29,178
2,163

The fourth quarter includes $4.5 million in severance, impairment and closure costs and a pretax gain of $26.0 million
related to the sale of our Forestry Division.

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

61

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Company management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as such term is defined under the Exchange Act
rules. The Company maintains financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s
Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and
that such information is accumulated and communicated to
the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In
designing and evaluating the financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that
any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed
and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving the desired control objectives, and management
is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the costbenefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

62

BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.

The Company, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, assessed the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s financial reporting and disclosure
controls and procedures. The Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (“COSO”) framework was applied in performing this assessment. Based on this assessment, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the Company’s financial reporting
and disclosure controls and procedures were effective at
the reasonable assurance level as of the end of the period
covered by this report.
Management’s report on internal control over financial
reporting and the related audit report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP are included in Item 8 of this Report.
There have been no changes in the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting during the Company’s
most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE
REGISTRANT

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED
TRANSACTIONS

See the “Election of Directors”, “Executive Officers”,
“Audit Committee Disclosure” and “Filing Disclosure”
sections of our Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which sections are incorporated
herein by reference.

See the “Certain Transactions and Other Matters”
section of our Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which section is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

See the “Executive Compensation”, “Compensation of
Directors”, “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Employment Contracts” sections
of our Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, which sections are incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

See the “Ratify the Appointment of Independent Auditors” section of our Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which section is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

See the “Principal Stockholders” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” sections of our Proxy Statement
for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which
sections are incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Page
Reference

(A) Certain documents filed as part of Form 10-K
(1) Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .33
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .34
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .35
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .36
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) for
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .37
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .38
Supplementary Data . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .61
(2) Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule II – Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .68
All other schedules have been omitted because they are not required or because the information is presented in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(B) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K:
*2(a) Agreement and Plan of Merger and Recapitalization, dated as of April 18, 1999, between Blount International, Inc.,
and Red Dog Acquisition, Corp. (included as Appendix A to the Proxy Statement-Prospectus which forms a part of
the Registration Statement) previously filed on July 15, 1999, by Blount International, Inc. (Reg. No. 333-82973).
*3(a) Post-Merger Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Blount International, Inc. (included as Exhibit A to the
Agreement and Plan of Merger and Recapitalization which is Exhibit 2.1) filed as part of the Proxy StatementProspectus which forms a part of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-82973) previously
filed on July 15, 1999, by Blount International, Inc.
*3(b) Post-Merger Bylaws of Blount International, Inc. (included as Exhibit B to the Agreement and Plan of Merger
and Recapitalization which is Exhibit 2.1) filed as part of the Proxy Statement-Prospectus which forms a part of
the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-82973).
*4(a) Registration Rights and Stock Transfer Restriction agreement filed as part of Registration Statement on Form S-4
(Reg. No. 33-63141) of Blount International, Inc., including amendments and exhibits, which became effective
on October 4, 1995 (Commission File No. 33-63141).
*4(b) Form of Stock Certificate of New Blount Common Stock filed as part of the Proxy Statement-Prospectus which
forms a part of the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-82973) filed by Blount International,
Inc. on July 15, 1999.
*4(c) Registration Right Agreement by and among Blount, Inc., Blount International, Inc., BI Holdings Corp.,
Benjamin F. Shaw Company, BI. L.L.C., Blount Development Corp., Omark Properties, Inc., Gear Products,
Inc., Dixon Industries, Inc., Frederick Manufacturing Corporation, Federal Cartridge Company, Simmons
Outdoor Corporation, Mocenplaza Development Corp., CTR Manufacturing, Inc., and Lehman Brothers, Inc.
dated as of August 19, 1999, filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter ended
September 30, 1999.
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*4(d) Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 9, 2004 among Blount Inc., Dixon Industries, Inc.,
Fabtek Corporation, Frederick Manufacturing Corporation, Gear Products, Inc., Omark Properties, Inc., and
Windsor Forestry Tools LLC, as US Borrowers, Blount Canada Ltd., as Canadian Borrower, the other credit
parties signatory thereto, as Credit Parties, from time to time, as Lenders, General Electric Capital Corporation,
as Administrative Agent and US Lender, and General Electric Capital Canada Inc., as Canadian Administrative
Agent and Canadian Lender, GECC Capital Markets Group Inc., as Lead Arranger and Book Runner and BNP
PARIBAS, as Syndication Agent, which was filed as Exhibit 99.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2004.
*4(e) Amendment No. 1 dated as of December 1, 2004 to the Amended and Restated Senior Credit Amendment dated
August 9, 2004 among Blount Inc., Dixon Industries, Inc., Fabtek Corporation, Frederick Manufacturing
Corporation, Gear Products, Inc., Omark Properties, Inc., and Windsor Forestry Tools LLC, as US Borrowers,
Blount Canada Ltd., as Canadian Borrower, the other credit parties signatory thereto, as Credit Parties, from
time to time, as Lenders, General Electric Capital Corporation, as Administrative Agent and US Lender, and
General Electric Capital Canada Inc., as Canadian Administrative Agent and Canadian Lender, GECC Capital
Markets Group Inc., as Lead Arranger and Book Runner and BNP PARIBAS, as Syndication Agent, which was
filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the report on Form 8-K filed by Blount International, Inc., on December 3, 2004.
*4(f) Third amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and First Amendment to Amended and Restated
US Security Agreement dated as of March 23, 2006, by and among Blount Inc., Dixon Industries, Inc., Fabtek
Corporation, Frederick Manufacturing Corporation, Gear Products, Inc., Omark Properties, Inc., and Windsor
Forestry Tools LLC, as US Borrowers, Blount Canada Ltd., as Canadian Borrower, the other credit parties
signatory thereto, as Credit Parties, from time to time, as Lenders, General Electric Capital Corporation, as
Administrative Agent and US Lender, and GE CFS Canada Holding Company, as Canadian Administrative
Agent and Canadian Lender, which was filed as Exhibit 1.1 to the report on Form 8-K filed by Blount
International, Inc., on March 23, 2006.
*4(g) Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-114840) with respect to the 8 7/8% Senior Subordinated Notes
of Blount, Inc. which are guaranteed by BI, LLC, Omark Properties, Inc., 4520 Corp., Inc., Gear Products, Inc.,
Dixon Industries, Inc., Frederick Manufacturing Corporation, Fabtek Corporation and Windsor Forestry Tools
LLC and 10,000,000 shares of common stock of Blount International, Inc. including amendments and exhibits,
which became effective on August 3, 2004.
*4(h) Registration Statement on Form S-3 (Reg. No. 333-132024) with respect to 9,248,218 shares of common stock
of Blount International, Inc., which became effective May 2, 2006.
*9(a) Stockholder Agreement, dated as of April 18, 1999, between Red Dog Acquisition, corp., a Delaware
corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Merchant Banking Partners II L.P., a Delaware
limited partnership, and The Blount Holding Company, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership which was filed as
Exhibit 9 to the Form 8-K/A filed April 20, 1999.
*10(a) Supplemental Retirement and Disability Plan of Blount, Inc. which was filed as Exhibit 10(e) to the Annual Report
of Blount, Inc., on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1992 (Commission File No. 1-7002).
*10(b) Written description of the Blount International, Inc. 2006 Executive Management Annual Incentive Plan,
effective as of January 1, 2006, filed as Exhibit A to the Proxy Statement of Blount, International, Inc. for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders held April 25, 2006 (Commission File No. 001-11549).
*10(c) Supplemental Retirement Savings Plan of Blount, Inc. which was filed as Exhibit 10(i) to the Annual Report of
Blount, Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1992 (Commission File No. 1-7002).
*10(d) Blount, Inc. Executive Benefit Plans Trust Agreement and Amendment to and Assumption of Blount, Inc. Executive
Benefit Plans Trust which were filed as Exhibits 10(x)(i) and 10(x)(ii) to the Annual Report of Blount International,
Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1996 (Commission File No. 001-11549).
*10(e) Blount, Inc. Benefits Protection Trust Agreement and Amendment To Add Assumption of Blount, Inc. Benefits
Protection Trust which were filed as Exhibits 10(y)(i) and 10(y)(ii) to the Annual Report of Blount International,
Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 29, 1996 (Commission File No. 001-11549).
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*10(f) Blount International, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan filed as Exhibit B to the Proxy Statement of Blount,
International, Inc. for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held April 25, 2006 (Commission File No. 001-11549),
and the Amendment to the Blount International, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan dated as of February 23, 2007,
as part of exhibits to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-149584), which became effective
on March 6, 2008.
*10(g) 1999 Stock Incentive Plan and 2000 Stock Incentive Plan of Blount International, Inc. filed as part of
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Reg. No. 333-913-90) exhibits, which became effective June 27, 2002.
*10(h) The Blount Deferred Compensation Plan which was filed as Exhibit 10(cc) to the Annual Report of Blount
International, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998 (Commission File No. 001-11549).
*10(i) Employee Stockholder Agreement dated as of August 19, 1999, among Blount International, Inc., Lehman
Brothers Merchant Banking Partners II L.P. and Certain Employee Stockholders.
*10(j) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement of James S. Osterman dated October 17, 2007, filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K dated October 17, 2007.
*10(k) Amendment No. 1, dated November 10, 2008, to the Amended and Restated Employment Agreement of
James S. Osterman, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K dated November 10, 2008.
*10(l) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Richard H. Irving, III, as Senior Vice President, General
Counsel and Secretary of Blount dated July 14, 2008, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q dated August 8, 2008.
*10(m) Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Blount International, Inc. and Calvin E. Jenness dated
March 1, 2004 filed as Exhibit 10(u) to Form 10-K dated March 7, 2005.
*10(n) Employment Agreement between Blount, Inc. and Kenneth O. Saito dated June 1, 1999.
*10(o) Amendment to Employment Agreement between Blount Inc. and Kenneth O. Saito dated August 16, 2002.
**10(p) Employment Agreement between Blount, Inc. and Russell L. German dated April 30, 2008.
**10(q) Employment Agreement between Blount, Inc. and James Lee VanderZanden dated October 1, 2002.
**10(r) Employment Agreement between Blount, Inc. and Cyrille Benoit Michel dated June 1, 1999.
*10(s) Stock Purchase Agreement among Blount International, Inc., Blount, Inc., Carlton Holdings, Inc., The Shareholders
of Carlton Holdings, Inc. and Jerry A. Parsons and Richard L. Hawkins, as the Shareholders’ Representative dated
as of May 2, 2008, filed as Exhibit 2.1 to Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008.
*10(t) Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Caterpillar Forest Products Inc., Caterpillar Inc. and the Caterpillar
Subsidiaries set forth therein and Blount, Inc., Blount International, Inc. and the Blount Subsidiaries set forth
therein dated November 5, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10(q) to Form 10-K dated March 13, 2008.
*14 Code of Ethics for Covered Officers as approved by Audit Committee on February 2, 2004.
21 A list of the significant subsidiaries of Blount International, Inc. included herein on page 69.
23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm included herein on page 69.
31.1 Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by James O. Osterman, Chief
Executive Officer included herein on page 70.
31.2 Certification pursuant to section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Calvin E. Jenness Chief Financial
Officer included herein on page 71.
**32.1 Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by James O. Osterman, Chief
Executive Officer.
**32.2 Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 by Calvin E. Jenness Chief Financial
Officer.
* Incorporated by reference
** Filed electronically herewith. Copies of such exhibits may be obtained upon written request from:
Blount International, Inc.
P.O. Box 22127
Portland, Oregon 97269-2127
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant had duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
BLOUNT INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Dated: March 10, 2009
By:

/s/ Calvin E. Jenness

/s/ Mark V. Allred

Calvin E. Jenness
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Mark V. Allred
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report is signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Dated: March 10, 2009

/s/ Eliot M. Fried

Lead Director

Eliot M. Fried
/s/ Harold E. Layman

Director

Harold E. Layman
/s/ R. Eugene Cartledge

Director

R. Eugene Cartledge
/s/ James S. Osterman

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Director

James S. Osterman
/s/ Joshua L. Collins

Director

Joshua L. Collins
/s/ E. Daniel James

Director

E. Daniel James
/s/ Thomas J. Fruechtel

Director

Thomas J. Fruechtel
/s/ Robert D. Kennedy

Director

Robert D. Kennedy
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SCHEDULE II
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Blount International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Dollar amounts in millions)
Column A

Description

Column B

Column C

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Additions
Charged
(Credited) to
Business
Cost and
Acquisitions
Expenses (Dispositions)

Column D

Column E

(Deductions)
Recoveries

Balance at
End of
Period

$ (656)
–

$ 3,800
2,348

Year Ended December 31, 2008:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets

$ 2,181
2,318

Year Ended December 31, 2007:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets

2,545
2,667

(428)
(349)

(163)
–

227
–

2,181
2,318

Year Ended December 31, 2006:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets

2,239
2,907

245
(240)

(44)
–

105
–

2,545
2,667
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$ 685
30

$ 1,590
–

EXHIBIT 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
At December 31, 2008, consolidated, directly or indirectly, wholly-owned Significant Subsidiaries of Blount International, Inc. were deemed as follows:
NAME OF SUBSIDIARY

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Blount, Inc.
Delaware
Blount Canada Ltd.
Canada
Blount Europe, S.A.
Belgium
Blount Holdings Ltd.
Canada
Blount Industrial Ltda
Brazil
Blount Industries Company Ltd.
China
The names of certain subsidiaries have been omitted because when considered in the aggregate or as a single subsidiary
they would not constitute a “Significant Subsidiary” as of December 31, 2008.

EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-3 (No. 333-132024) and
Form S-8 (No. 333-149584) of Blount International, Inc. of our report dated March 10, 2009 relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this
Form 10-K.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Portland, Oregon
March 10, 2009
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, James S. Osterman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2008 of Blount
International, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors:
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2009

/s/ James S. Osterman
James S. Osterman
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Calvin E. Jenness, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2008 of Blount
International, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors:
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2009

/s/ Calvin E. Jenness
Calvin E. Jenness
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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The graph below matches Blount International, Inc.’s cumulative 5-year total shareholder return on common stock with
the cumulative total returns of the NYSE Composite index, and two customized peer groups of companies that includes the
old peer group of eight companies, which are: Actuant Corp., Kaydon Corp., Kennametal Inc, Lincoln Electric Holdings
Inc, Regal Beloit Corp., Snap-On Inc, Terex Corp. and The Toro Company; and another new peer group of eight companies
which are Briggs & Stratton Corp., Husqvarna AB, Illinois Tool Works Inc, Kennametal Inc, Snap-On Inc, Stanley Works,
The Black & Decker Corp. and The Toro Company. The graph assumes that the value of the investment in our common
stock, in each of the peer groups, and the index (including reinvestment of dividends) was $100 on 12/31/2003 and tracks it
through 12/31/2008.
COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Blount International, Inc., The NYSE Composite Index,
An Old Peer Group and a New Peer Group
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* $100 invested on 12/31/03 in stock & index-including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
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The stock price performance included in this graph is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.
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board of directors

R. Eugene Cartledge

Eliot M. Fried

Robert D. Kennedy

Retired Chairman,
Savannah Foods & Industries, Inc.
Retired Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Union Camp Corporation
Savannah, Georgia

Retired Managing Director,
Lehman Brothers Inc.
San Francisco, California

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Union Carbide Corporation
New Canaan, Connecticut

Director since 1999
Lead Director since 2005
Executive Committee Chairman,
Compensation Committee Chairman,
Audit Committee member, Nominating &
Corporate Governance Committee member

Director since 2005
Nominating & Corporate Governance Committee
Chairman, Compensation Committee member

Director since 2002
Audit Committee Chairman,
Compensation Committee member, Nominating &
Corporate Governance Committee member

Joshua L. Collins

Thomas J. Fruechtel

Principal,
Collins Willmott & Co. LLC
New York, New York

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Leupold & Stevens, Inc.
Portland, Oregon

Director since 2005
Nominating & Corporate Governance
Committee member

Director since 2003
Audit Committee member, Nominating &
Corporate Governance Committee member

E. Daniel James
Managing Director,
Lehman Brothers Inc.
New York, New York
Director since 1999
Executive Committee member,
Compensation Committee member

Harold E. Layman
Retired President and Chief Executive Officer,
Blount International, Inc.
Ormand Beach, Florida
Director since 1999
Audit Committee member

James S. Osterman
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Blount International, Inc.
Portland, Oregon
Director since 2002
Executive Committee member

management team

James S. Osterman
Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

Calvin E. Jenness
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Elected CEO 2002
Elected Chairman 2005
Joined the Company 1959

Elected 2002
Joined the Company 2000

Russell L. German
Senior Vice President –
Carlton Operations
Elected 2008
Joined the Company in 2008

Mark V. Allred
Vice President –
Corporate Controller
Elected 2005
Joined the Company 2005

Richard H. Irving, III
Senior Vice President
General Counsel and
Secretary

Kenneth O. Saito
Senior Vice President –
Manufacturing and
Operations

Elected General Counsel
1995
Elected Secretary 1999
Joined the Company 1995

Elected 2008
Joined the Company in 1973

Cyrille B. Michel
Senior Vice President –
Sales and Customer
Support

James L. VanderZanden
Senior Vice President –
Business Development
and President – ICS

William C. Alford
President
Gear Products, Inc.

Elected 2008
Joined the Company 1983

Elected 2008
Joined the Company in 1987

Matthew D. Clark
Vice President of Finance

Wendy J. Gilligan
Treasurer

Elected 2008
Joined the Company in 2005

Elected 2005
Joined the Company 1987

Joined the Company in 2002

Dale C. Johnson, Jr.
Vice President –
Human Resources

Chad E. Paulson
Assistant Secretary and
Corporate Counsel

Elected 2004
Joined the Company 2003

Elected 2007
Joined the Company 2006

Blount has a significant share of the
global cutting chain and guide bar market
and our products are used as original
equipment by approximately 90% of the
world’s chainsaw manufacturers.

Felix St. Clair Renard / Riser / Getty Images

corporate information
The Company’s primary business is the Outdoor
Products segment. This segment manufactures and
markets cutting chain, guide bars, sprockets and
accessories for the chainsaw industry, outdoor care
products for the lawn and garden industry, and
concrete-cutting systems for the construction
industry. The segment operates eight manufactur
ing facilities and distributes its products through a
diverse network of distributors, dealers, mass
merchants and original equipment manufacturers.
The segment sells its products under the Oregon®,
Carlton®, ICS®, Windsor® and Tiger® brand names.
The Company also owns and operates Gear
Products, Inc., a manufacturer of rotational
bearings, hydraulic pump drives and winches used
by heavy equipment manufacturers for the utility,
construction, environmental and forestry industries.

Blount International, Inc. is a leading provider of equipment, accessories
and replacement parts to the global forestry, lawncare and construction
industries. Blount manufactures and markets branded products to focused
end markets, serving professional loggers, construction workers and home

Inquiries
Stockholders with questions about
their stock holdings are invited
to call 1-877-498-8865 between
8am and 7pm Eastern Time,
Monday through Friday. Internet
account access is available at
www.computershare.com.

Blount International, Inc.
Common Stock
The common stock is traded on
the New York Stock Exchange
under the ticker symbol “BLT.”
Blount International, Inc. is
incorporated under the laws of
the State of Delaware.

Inquiries for general information
about Blount International, Inc.,
including stock records or address
changes, should be directed to
Richard H. Irving, III, Senior Vice
President, General Counsel and
Secretary, at the Corporate office.
Security analysts, portfolio
managers and others seeking
financial information should
contact Calvin E. Jenness, Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer, at the Corporate office.

Trademarks
The following are trademarks
of the Company: Oregon®,
Carlton®, Windsor®, Tiger®, Power
Match®, INTENZ®, Jet-Fit®, Fusion®,
Arborol®, Gator Mulcher®,
Magnum Edger™, Gator Dig™, ICS®,
FORCE4™, RentMAX™, SealPro®
and Speedhook®. Some forms of
Windsor® are used under license
from affiliates of Snap-On, Inc.

Also, please see Blount’s Website
at www.blount.com.

owners through a distribution network consisting of equipment distributors
and dealers, original equipment manufacturers and mass merchants. We

Year End
The Company’s fiscal year ends
December 31.

believe we are a global leader in chainsaw cutting chain, guide bars and
related accessories. The Company sells its products in more than 100
countries around the world with approximately 66% of 2008 sales generated
outside the United States. Blount is headquartered in Portland, Oregon.

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
A Proxy Statement and Notice
of Annual Meeting is expected
to be mailed by April 28, 2009
to stockholders of record as of
March 27, 2009.
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Registrar and Transfer Agent
Computershare Investor Services
PO Box 43078
Providence, RI 02940-3078 U.S.A.
781-575-2879
877-498-8865
Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Portland, OR U.S.A.
Corporate Office
4909 SE International Way
Portland, OR 97222-4679 U.S.A.
Ph: 503-653-8881
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Forward-Looking Statements
Forward-looking statements
in this report, as defined by
the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, are based
upon available information
and upon assumptions that the
Company believes are reasonable;
however, these forward-looking
statements involve certain risks
and uncertainties and may not
be indicative of actual results
that the Company may achieve
in the future.
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